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Key consolidated financial data for the last five years

Preliminary comments:

As from January 1, 2019 Vivendi applies the neve accounting standard IFRS 16 — Leases. In accordance with IFRS 186, the impact of the
change of accounting standard was recorded in the opening balance sheet as of January 1, 2019. Mareover, Vivend: applied this change of
accounting standard to the Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Earnings and Statement of Cash Flows in 2019, theretore, the data
relative to prior years is nat comparable. For a detailed description, please refer to Notes 1.1, 1.3.5.7 and 11 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements for the year ended December 31, 2019

As a reminder, in 2018, Vivendi applied two new accounting standards:

e IFAS 15 — Revenues from Contracts with Customers: in accordance with IFAS 15, as from 2017, Vivendi applied this change of
accounting standard to revenues. The data prasented below with respect to fiscal years 2015 to 2016 are historical and therefore
unrestated, and

e FRS 9- Financial Instruments: in accordance with IFRS 3, as from 2018, Vivendi appiied this change of accounting standard to the
Statement of Eamnings and Statement of Comprehensive Income restating its opening balance shest as of January 1, 2018,
therefore, the data relative to prior years in this report Is not comparable.

In addition, Vivendi deconsolidated GVT as from May 78, 2015, the date of its effective sale by Vivendi. In compliance with IFRS 5, this

busingss was reported as a discontinued operation for 2015 as set out in the table of selected key consolidated financial data below in
respect of data reflected in the Statement of Earnings and Statement of Cash Flows.

Year ended December 31,

2019 2018 2017 018 2015

Consolidated data
Revenues 15,858 13,832 12,518 10,814 10.762
Ingome from gperations {al 1718 1439 1,098 853 1,061
Adjusted earnings before interest and income taxes [EBITAI (a) 1,528 1.288 969 724 942
Earnings before interest and incame taxes {EBIT) 1,381 1,187 1,018 857 521
Earnings attributable to Vivendi SA sharegwners 1583 127 1.216 1,756 1932

of which garnings from continuing operations attributable to Vivendi SA shareawners 1583 127 1.216 1,236 599
Adjusted net income {a} 1,741 1,197 1,300 755 697
Net Cash Position/iFinancal Net Debt) {a) 14,064) 176 {2,340} 1.231 7172
Tota! oquity 15575 17,634 17,866 19,612 21,086

of which Vivendi SA shareowners' eguity 15,353 17313 17,544 19.383 20,854
Cash flow from pperations [CFFO) (a) 903 1,128 989 729 892
Cash flow from operatians after interest and income tax paid {CFAIT) {a) 567 822 1,346 3 169)
Financial investments 12.284) 1694} (3,685} 14,084) {3.927]
Financiai divestments 1,068 2,303 976 1971 9,013
Dividends paid by Vivendr SA to its shareholders 636 h6% 499 2588 {b) 2.727 b
Purchases/isales) of Vivendi SA's traasury shargs 2573 - 203 1623 492
Par share data
Weighted average number of shares outstanding 12335 1,263.5 12527 12726 1.361.5
Earnings attributable to Vivend SA shareowners per share 128 0.10 0.97 0.99 1.42
Adjustad net income pes share 1.41 0.92 1.04 0.5% 0.51
Mumber of shares outstanding at the end of the period {excluding treasury shares) 11706 1,268.0 1,256.7 1,2585 13423
Equity per share, attributable to Vivendi SA shareownars 1312 13.65 14.04 1539 15.54
Dividends per share paid 050 .45 0.40 200 b 2.00 (b}

'n millions of eurcs, rumber of shares in millions, data per shate in euros.

a.  The non-GAAP measures of Income from operations, EBITA, Adjusted net income, Net Cash Position {or Financial Net Debt), Cash flow
from operations (CFFO) and Cash flow from operations after interest and income tax paid {CFAIT) should be considered in addition to,
and not as a substitute for, other GAAP measures of operating and financial performance as presented in the Consolidated Financial
Statements and the related Notes, or as described in this Financial Report. Vivendi considers these io be relevant indicators of the
group’s operating and financial performance. Fach of these indicators is defined in the appropriate section of this Financial Report. In
addition, it should be noted that other companies may have definitions and calculations for these indicators that differ fram those used
by Vivendi, thereby affecting comparability.

b.  With respect to fiscal year 2015, Vivendi paid an ordinary dividend of €3 per share, i.e., an aggregate dividend payment of
£3,951 million. This amount included €1,363 million paid in 2015 {first interim dividend of €1 per share) and €2,588 million paid in 2016
{€1,218 million for the second interim dividend of €1 per share and €1,270 million representing the balance of €1 per share). In addition,
in 2015, Vivendi paid a dividend with respect o fiscal year 2014 of €1 per share, i.e., £1,364 million.
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Nota:

In accordance with European Commission Regulation (EC) BGS/2004 {Article 28}, which sets out the disclosure obligations for issuers of securities
listed on a regulated market within the European Union (implementing Directive 2003/71/EC, the "Prospectus Regulation”), the following items are
incorporated by reference into this report:

e the 2018 Financial Report, the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2018, prepared under IFRS and the
related statutory auditors’ report on the Consalidated Financial Statements, presented on pages 196 to 318 of the Docurnent de Référence
No. 0.19-0132, which was filed on March 11, 2019 with the French Autorité des Marchés Financiers (AMF) and on pages 196 to 318 of the
English translation of the Document de Référence No. D.19-0132; and

e the 2017 Financial Report, the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2017, prepared under IFRS and the
related statutory auditors’ report an the Consolidated Financial Statements, presented on pages 188 ta 317 of the Document de Référence
No. D.18-0126, which was filed on March 13, 2018 with the French Autorité des Marchés Financiers (AMF) and on pages 188 to 317 of the
English translation of the Document de Référence No. D.18-0128.
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/- 2019 Financial Report

Preliminary comments:

On February 10, 2020, the Management Board approved the Financial Report and the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the year
ended December 31, 2019. Upon the recommendation of the Audit Committee, which met on February 11, 2020, the Supervisory Board, at its
meeting held on February 13, 2020, reviewed the Financial Report and the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended
December 31, 2019, as previously approved by the Management Bpard on February 10, 2020.

The Consolidated Financial Statements for the vear ended December 31, 2019 were audited and certified by the statutory auditors without
qualitied opinion. The statutory auditors’ report on the Consolidated Financial Statements is included in the preamble to the Financial
Statements.

1 Earnings analysis: group and business segments

Preliminary comments:

Change of accounting standards

As from January 1, 2018, Vivendi applies the new sccounting standard IFRS 16 — Leases. In accordance with IFRS 16, the impact of the
change of accounting standard was recorded in the opening balance sheet as of January 1, 2019, Moreover, Vivendi applied this change of
accounting standard to the Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Farnings and Statement of Cash Flows in 2019 therefore, the data
refative to 2018 is not comparable. For a detailed description, please refer to Notes 1.1, 1.3.57 and 1] fo the Uonsolidated Financial
Statements for the year ended December 31, 2019

Non-GAAP measures

“Income from operations”. "FBITA” and “adjusted net income”, all non-GAAP measures, should be considersd in addition to, and not as a
substitute for, other GAAF measures of operating and financial performance as presented in the Consolidated Financial Staterments and the
related Notes, or as described in this Financial Report. Vivendi considers these to be relevant indicators for the group's operating and
financial performance.

Vivendi Management uses income from operations, EBITA and adjusted net income for reporting, management and planning purposes
because they exclude mast non+ecurring and non operating ftems from the measurement of the business segments’ performances. Under
Vivandi’s definition:
o the difference between EBITA and EBIT consists of the amortization of intangible assets acquired through business combinations, the
impairment of goodwill and other intangibles acquired through business combinations, as welf as other income and chaiges related
10 transactions with sharsowners,
e jncome fram operations is calculated as EBITA, as presented in the Adjusted Statement of Farnings, before share based
compansation casts and special items. due ta their unusval nature and particular significance, and
* adjusted net income includes the faflawing items: £BITA, income from equity affifiates — nan-operational, interast (carresponding to
interest expense on borrowings net of interest income earned on cash and cash equivalents), income from investments (including
dividends and interest received from unconsolidated companies). and taxes and non-controliing interests refated to these ftems. It
does not include the following items: amortization of intangible assets acquired through business combinations and refated to equty
affiliates,” impairment losses on goodwill and other intangible assets acquired through business combinations, other charges and
income related to transactions with shareowners, other financial charges and income; earnings from discontinued operations,
provisions for income taxes and adjustments attyibutable to non<ontrolling interests, non-recurring tax items (in particular, changes
in deferred tax assets pursuant to Vivendi SA's Tax Group and the Consolidated Global Profit Tax Systems).

I addition, it should be noted that other companies may have definitions and calculations for these non-GAAP measures that differ from
those usad by Vivendi, thereby affecting comparability.
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1.1 Consolidated Statement of Earnings

Year ended December 31,

2019 2018 % Change
REVENUES 15,893 13,932 +14.1%
Cost of revenues (8,845) (7.618)
Selling, general and administrative expenses excluding amortization of intangible assets acquired
through business combinations (5,334) (4,875)
Incame fram operations* 1,719 1439 + 18.5%
Restructuring charges (161} {115}
Other operating charges and income {32} (36)
Adjusted earnings before interest and income taxes (EBITA}* 1,526 1.288 +18.5%
Amortization and depreciation of intangible assets acquired through business combinations (145) {113}
Other charges and income - 7
EARNINGS BEFORE INTEREST AND INCOME TAXES (EBIT} 1,381 1,182 +16.9%
Income from equity affiliates - non-operational 67 122
Interest {46) {47
Income from investments 10 20
Other financial charges and income 65 (763)

29 (790)

Earnings hefore provision for income taxes 1.417 514 x29
Provision for income taxes 140 {357}
Earnings from continuing operations 1,617 157 x 10,3
Earnings from discontinued operations - -
Earnings 1.617 157 x 103
Non-controlling interests {34) (30)
EARNINGS ATTRIBUTABLE TO VIVENDI SA SHAREOWNERS 1,583 127 x 12,5
Earnings attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners per share - basic {in euros) 1.28 0.10
Earnings attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners per share - diluted (in euros) 1.28 0.10
Adjusted net income* 1.1 1,157 + 50.5%
Adjusted net income per share - basic {in guros}® 1.41 0.92
Adjusted net income per share - diluted {in euros)™ 1.49 0.9

In millions of euros, except per share amounts.

* non-GAAP measures.

1.2 Analysis of the Consolidated Statement of Earnings

1.2.1 Revenues

In 2019, revenues were £15,898 million, compared to £13.932 million in 2018, an increase of €1,966 million (+14.1%}), mainly resulting from
the growth of Universal Music Group (UMG) (+£1,138 millien), Canal+ Group (+£102 million, including €122 million relating to M7'} as well as
the consolidation of Editis as from February 1, 2019 (+£687 million). At constant currency and perimeter', revenues increased by 5.6%
compared to 2018, primarily driven by the grawth of Universal Music Group {+14.0%).

For the second half of 2019, revenues were €8,545 million, compared to €7,456 million for the second half of 2018, an increase of
£1,089 million (+14.6%), mainly resulting from the growth of Universal Music Group (+€506 million}, Canal+ Group {+£159 million, including
£122 millien relating to M7') as well as the consolidation of Editis (+£427 million). At constant currency and perimeter’, revenues increased
by 4.6% compared to the second half of 2018, primarily driven by the growth of Universal Music Group {+10.5%}.

For the fourth quarter of 2019, revenues were £4,575 miflion, compared to €4,055 million for the fourth quarter of 2018, an increase of
£520 million (+12.8%), mainly resulting from the growth of Universal Music Group (+£201 million), Canal+ Group {+€121 million, including

" Constant perimeter natably reffects the impacts of the acquisition of M7 by Canalr Group (September 12, 2019} the acquisition of the remaining interest in Ingrooves Music
Group, which has been consolidated by Universal Music Group {March 15, 2013), the acquisition of Editis (January 31, 2013), the acquisition of Paylogic by Vivends Village [April
16, 2018} and the sale of MyBastPro by Vivend: Viliage (December 21, 2018)
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£101 million relating to M7') as well as the consolidation of Editis (+£217 million). At constant currency and perimeter’, revenues increased
by 2.4% compared to the fourth quarter of 2018, primarily driven by the growth of Universal Music Group (+6.3%).

For a detailed analysis of revenues by business segment, please refer to Sectian 1.3 below and to Note 3.1 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements for the year ended Becember 31, 2014,

1.2.2 Operating results

Cost of revenues was £8,845 million, compared ta £7,618 million in 2018, an increase of €1,227 milkian.

Selling, general and administrative expenses excluding amortization of intangible assets acquired through business
combinations were £5,334 millian, compared to £4,875 million in 2018, an increase of £459 million.

Depreciation and amortization of tangible and intangibfe assets are included either in the cost of revenues or in selling, general and
administrative expenses. Depreciation and amortization of tangible and intangible assets, excluding amartization of intangible assets
acquired through business combinations, amounted 1o £599 million including amortization of rights-af-use relating to leases for €220 miflion,
in accordance with the application of the new accounting standard IFRS 16 — Leases as from Jarwary 1, 2019. Excluding the impact of IFRS
16 in 2019, depreciation and amortization of tangible and intangible assets, excluding those acquired through business combinations,
amounted to £379 million [compared to £340 million in 2018), and notably related to Canal+ Group’s set-top boxes, as well as Studiocanal's
catalogs. films and television programs.

Income from operations was €1,719 miilion, compared to €1,433 million in 2018, an increase of €280 million (+19.5%]. At constant
currency and perimeter, income from operations increased by £180 million (+11.7%), primarily driven by the growth of Universal Music Group
{+£203 million).

EBITA was £1,526 million, compared to £1,288 million in 2018, an increase of €238 million {+1B.5%). At constant currency and perimeter,
EBITA increased by £149 million {+10.8%), primarily driven by the growth of Universal Music Group [+€205 million), partially offset by the
decline of Canal+ Group {-£82 million), grimarily due to restructuring charges {please see below). In this respect, EBITA included:

« restructuring charges of £161 million, compared to €115 million in 2018, primarily incurred by Canal+ Group (€92 million notably
relating to the launch during the second half of 2019 of a plan aimed to transform its French activities, compared to €28 million in
2018}, Havas Group {€35 million, compared to £30 million in 2018}, Universal Music Group (€24 millien, compared to €29 million in
2018) and Corporate (EZ million, compared 1o €19 million in 2018}

« other operating charges and income excluded from income from operations, which was a net charge of €32 million, compared to
a net charge of €36 million in 2018. They notably included the charge related to share-based compensation plans for -€32 million,
compared to -€22 million in 2018; and

« the €34 million favarabte impact on EBITA resulting from the application, as from January 1, 2019, of the new accounting
standard IFRS 16 — Leases, mainly at Universal Music Group (+€19 mitlion) and Havas Group (+£15 million}. For infarmation, on a
comparable basis with 2018, EBITA would have increased by 8.4% at constant currency and perimeter excluding the favorable
impact of the initial application of the new accounting standard (FRS 16, compared to an increase of +10.8% inciuding the favorable
impact of the initia! application of the new accounting standard IFRS 16.

For a detailed analysis of income from operations and EBITA by business segment, please refer to Section 1.3 below,

EBIT was £1,381 million, compared to £1,182 miltion in 2018, an increase of €139 million i+16.9%). It includes amortization and depreciation
of intangible assets acquired through business combinations far €145 million, compared to £113 million in 2018. This increase was notably
attributable to Canal+ Group, primarily due to the preliminary allocation of M7's purchase price {please refer to Note 2.3 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2019) and to the write-off of the “n” brand name in Poland (-€19 million}, the charnel
now being broadeasted solely under the Canal+ brand name.

1.2.3 Income from equity affiliates - non-eperational
lncome from equity affiliates - aon-operational was a profit of €67 millian, compared 1o & profit of €122 million in 2018. This amount
related to Vivend!'s share of Telecom ltalia’s net earnings, calculated based on the financial information publicly disclesed by Telecom lalia

{corresponding to the fourth quarter of the previous vear and the first nine manths of 2013 due to a three-manth reperting lag). Please refer
to Note 12.2 to the Cansolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2618,
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1.2.4 Financial results

In 2019, interest was an expense of €46 million, compared to €47 million in 2018. 0f this amount:

» interest expense on borrowings was €69 million, compared to €64 million in 2018. This change mainly reflected the increase in the
average outstanding borrowings to €5.9 billion {(compared to €4.6 billion in 2018), partially offset by the decrease in the average
interest rate on horrowings ta 1.17% (compared to 1.39% in 2018); and

s interest income earned on the investment of cash surpluses was €23 million, compared to €17 million in 2038. This change mainly
reflected the increase in the average interest rate on cash investments to 0.64% (compared to 0.50% in 2018} and. to a lesser extent,
1o the increase in the average pwtstanding cash investments to €3.6 billion {compared ta €3.4 billion in 2018).

Income from investments was €10 million, compared to €20 million in 2018. In 2018, it included dividends received frem Telefonica
(interest sold by Vivendi at the end of 2018) for €11 million.

Other financial charges and income were a net inceme of £65 million, compared to a net charge of £763 million in 2018, a favorable
change of €828 million.

In 2019, this amount included the revaluation of the interests in Spotify and Tencent Music for a net amount of €139 million, compared to a
net amount of €312 million for the same period in 2018. In addition, in 2018, it included the write-down of the value of the Telecom ltalia
shares accounted for under the equity method {-€1,066 million), as well as a portion of the capital gain realized on the sale of the interest in
Ubisoft (€53 million), recorded to profit or loss in accordance with the new accounting standard [FRS 9.

As a reminder, Yivendi realized a capital gain of €1,213 million on the sale of the interest in Ubisaft. Of this amount, only the portion
corresponding to the revaluation of such interest in 2018 {£53 million) was recorded in the Statement of Earnings far the year ended
December 31, 2018, in accordance with IFRS 9, which became applicable on January 1, 2018. The remaining portion of the capital gain
{1,160 million), corresponding to the revaluation of such interest up until December 31, 2017, was recorded in “charges and income directly
recognized in equity” as of December 31, 2017, in accordance with the former IAS 3% accounting standard, and was reclassified as retained
eamings as of Janvary 1, 2018 as a result of the first-time application of IFRS 9, Under IAS 39, which was applicable up until December 31,
2017, it would have been recorded to profit or loss.

In 2019, other financial charges included interest expenses on lease liabilities for €43 million, pursuant to the application of the new
accounting standard IFRS 16 — Leases. Please refer ta Notes 1 and 11 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December
31, 2019.

1.25 Provision for income taxes

fn 2019, provision for income taxes reported to adjusted net income was a net income of €177 million, compared to a net charge of
£253 million in 2018, representing a favorable change of €430 million. In 2019, it included a current tax income of €473 million resulting from
a favorable decision from the French Council of State {Conseif d'Ftat) on December 19, 2019 regarding the use of foreign tax receivables
upon exit from the Global Profit Tax System, i.e., €244 millicn with respect to fiscal year 2012 (€218 million principal and €26 million
moratorium interest) and €229 million with respect 1o fiscal year 2015 (€203 miltion principal and €26 million moratorium interest). For a
detailed description, please refer to Note 6.1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 3%, 2019. Excluding this
impact:

s provision for income taxes reported to adjusted net income was a net charge of €296 million, representing an unfavorable change of
€43 million, notably reflecting the growth in taxable income from activities, particularly at Universal Music Group in the United
States and in Europe; and

s the effective tax rate reported to adjusted net income was stable at 19.9%, compared to 20.1% in 2018,

In 2019, pravision for income taxes reported to net income was a net income of €140 miflion, compared to a net charge of €357 millian
in 2018, representing a favorable change of €497 million. In 2019, it included the aforementioned current tax income of €473 million.
Excluding this impact, provision for income taxes reported to net income was a net charge of €333 million, representing a favorable change
of £24 million. This change notably reflected the decrease in the deferred tax charge relating to the revaluation of the interests in Spotify and
Tencent Music {-€36 million, compared to -£72 million in 2018},

1.2.6 Non-controlling interests

In 2019, earnings attributable to non-controlling interests were €34 million, compared to £30 million in 2D18. They primarily included
the non-contraliing interests of Havas Group and Canal+ International (including Canal+ in Poland and VTV in Vietnam).
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1.2.7 Earnings attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners

In 2019, earnings attributahle to Vivendi SA shareowners amounted to a profit of £1,583 million {or €1.28 per share - basic), compared
to £127 million in 2018 {or €0.10 per share - basic), an increase of €1,456 million. This change notably reflected the increase in EBIT
{+£199 million), the improvement in other financial charges and income (+€828 million), mostly due to the write-down in 2018 of the value of
the Telecom Italia shares actounted for under the equity method {-€1,066 million), and the current tax income of €473 million recorded at the
end of 2019 following a favorable decision of the French Council of State (Conseif d'Etat) regarding the use of foreign tax receivables upon
exit from the Global Profit Tax System with respect to the fiscal years 2012 and 2015,

1.28 Adjusted netincome

Year ended December 31,

0

lin millions of euros} 2019 2018 " £hange
Revenues 15,398 13,932 +14.1%
Income from operations 1,719 1,439 +19.5%
EBITA 1,526 1.288 +18.5%
Qther charges and income - 7

Income from equity affiliates - non-operational 127 187

Interest (46} 47|

Income from investmenis 10 20

Adjusted earnings from continuing eperations before provision for income taxes 1,817 1,450 +11.5%
Provision for income taxes 177 {253}

Adjusted net income befare non-controlting interests 1.794 1,147

Non-controlling intergsts (53} (40}

Adjusted net income 1741 1,157 + 50.5%

in 2019, adjusted net income was a profit of €1,741 million (or €1.41 per share - basit), compared to €1,157 million in 2018 {or €0.92 per
share - basicl. an increase of £584 million [+50.5%). This change mainly reflected the growth in EBITA of €238 million, driven by the
performance of Universal Music Group (+£222 million}, and the current tax income of €473 million recorded at the end of 2019 following a
favorable decision of the French Council of State (Conseil ¢'Etat) regarding the use of foreign tax receivables upon exit from the Global Profit
Tax System with respect to fiscal years 2012 and 2015,

Reconciliation of earnings attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners to adjusted net income

Year ended December 31,

{in milkions of euros) 2018 2018
Earnings attributable to Vivendi SA shareswners {a} 1,583 127
Adjustments

Amortization and depreciation of intangible assets acquired through business combinations 145 113
Amorfization of intangible assets related to equity affiliates 60 80
Other financial charges and income {65) 7863
Provision for income taxes an adjustments Ky} 104
Impact of adjustments on non-controlling interests {19) 110)
Adjusted net income 1,141 1,151

a. Asreported in the Consolidated Statement of Earnings.

Adjusted net income per share

Year ended December 31,

2019 2018
Basic Diluted Basic Diluted

Adjusted net income {in millions of euros) 1,743 1,741 1,157 1,157
Number of shares {in millions)

Weighted average number of shares outstanding {a) 12335 1,2335 1,263.5 12635
Potential dilutive effects related to share-based compensation - 49 - 5.1
Adjusted weighted average number of shares 1,2335 12384 12635 1,268.6
Adjusted net incame per share {in euros}) 1.4 1.4 092 0.9

a.  Net of the weighted average number of treasury shares (28.0 mitlion shares in 2019, compared to 38.5 million in 20181
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1.3 Analysis of revenues and operating results by business segment

As from January 1, 2019, Vivendi applies the new accounting standard IFRS 16 — Leases notably to the Statement of Earnings for the year
ended December 31, 2019, therefore. the data below is nut comparable to the data for the year ended December 31, 2018, For a detailed
description, please refer to Notes 1.1, 1.3.5.7 and 11 tu the Consolidated Financial Statements for the vear ended December 31, 2018.

Year ended December 31,

% Change at

% Change at constant
constant currency and

{in millions of euros) 2019 2018 % Change currency perimeter (3)
Revenues
Universal Music Group 7,159 6,023 +18.9% +15.6% +14.0%
Canal+ Group 5,268 5,166 +2.0% +2.0% -0.9%
Havas Group 2,378 2,319 +2.6% +0.2% -1.0%
Editis 687 - na na na
Gameloft 259 293 -11.8% -13.6% -16.0%
Vivendi Village 141 123 +14.6% +14.2% +38.9%
New Initiatives 71 66 16.2% +6.2% +9.3%
Elimination of intersegment transactions {65) {58)
Total Vivendi 15,898 13,932 +14.1% +12.2% +5.6%
Income from operations
Universal Music Group 1,168 946 +235% +20.6% +21.1%
Canal+ Group 431 429 +0.3% +0.2% -5.2%
Havas Group 268 258 +3.9% +2.4% +0.6%
Editis 59 - na na na
Gameloft {28} 4
Vivendi Village {186} (9)
New Initiatives {68} {79)
Corporate {95) (110
Total Vivendi 17119 1,439 +19.5% +12.3% +11.7%
EBITA
Universal Music Group 1,124 902 +24 6% +21.8% +22.3%
Canal+ Group 343 400 -14.3% -14.3% -19.3%
Havas Group 225 215 +4.5% +2.7% +0.5%
Fditis 52 - na na na
Gameloft {36) 2
Vivendi Village {17) {9
New Initiatives (65) (99}
Corporate (100) 123}
Total Vivendi 1,526 1,288 +18.5% +16.2% +10.8%

na: not applicable,

a. Constant perimeter notably reflects the impacts of the acquisition of M7 by Canal+ Group {September 12, 2019), the acquisition of the
remaining interest in lngrooves Music Group, which has been consolidated by Universal Music Group {March 15, 2019), the acquisition
of Editis {January 31, 2019). the acquisition of Paylogic by Vivendi Village (April 16, 2018) and the sale of MyBestPro by Vivendi Village
{December 21, 2018).
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Year ended Oecember 31,

% Change at
% Change at constant
constant currency and
{in millions ot euros) 2019 2018 % Change CUITENCY perimeier (aj
Recorded music 5534 4878 +16.7% +13.4% +11.6%
Subscriptions and streaming 3375 2,596 +28.1% +24.4% +21.5%
Other digital safes (B} 428 479 -10.6% -14.0% -15.2%
Physical safes 1,011 349 +6.5% +3.5% +3.1%
License and other 870 804 +8.2% +5.6% +5.3%
Music publishing 1,052 941 +1.7% +8.2% +9.2%
Merchandising and other 489 273 +79.4% +73.7% +13.7%
Elimination of intersegment transactions (16} ng)
Revenues 7,159 6,023 +18.9% +15.6% +14.0%
Income from operations 1.168 946 +23.5% +20.6% +21.1%
Income from operations margin 16.3% 15.7% +0.6 pts
Restructuring charges {24} {79}
Income/(charges) related to share-based compensation plans (5} (4)
Other special items excluded from income from operations 15) {11)
EBITA 1124 902 +24.6% +21.8% +22.3%
EBITA margin 15.7% 15.0% +0.7 pts
Recorded music revenues by geographic area
North America 2,636 2224 +18.5% +12.5% +8.7%
Europe 1,742 1,580 +10.2% +10.1% +10.1%
Asia n 818 +24 6% +18.5% +18.5%
Latin America 184 153 +20.4% +255% +25.5%
Rest of the world 301 253 +19.2% +20.4% +20.4%
5,634 4328 +16.7% +134% +11.6%

a. Constant perimeter retlects the impact o significant acquisitions, including the acquisition of the remaining interest in Ingreoves Music

Group by Universal Music Group (March 15, 2019).

b.  Mainly included download sales.

Recorded music best seliers, in value {Source: Consumption)

Year ended December 31, 2019

Year ended December 31, 2018

Artist Title Artist Title
T When We All Fail Asleep, )
Billie Eilish Where Do We Go? P Drake Scorpion
Post Malane Hollywood's Bleeding Post Malone Beerbongs & Bentleys
Taylor Swift Lover Lady Gaga and Bradley Coaper A Star /s Born
Ariana Grande Thank U, Next The Beatles The Beatles (White Album}
Lady Gaga and Bradley Cooper A Star Is Born XXXTentacion 7
The Beatles Abbey Road Migos Cufture If
Shawn Mendes Shawn Mendes Imagine Dragons Evolve
Biltie Eitish Don't Smiife at Ma Ariana Grande Swestener
Post Malone Beerbongs & Bentfeys Kendrick Lamar Biack Panther: The Album
King & Prince King & Prince Post Malene Stoney
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In 2019, Universal Music Group's {UMG]) revenues were €7,159 million, up 14.0% at constant currency and perimeter compared ta 2018 {up
18.9% on an actual basis).

Recorded music revenues grew by 11.6% at constant currency and perimeter thanks to the growth in subscription and streaming revenues
(+21.5%] and the release driven improvement in physical sales (+3.1%), which more than offset the continued decline in download sales {-
23.2%).

Recarded music best sellers far 2019 included new releases from Billie Eilish, Post Malone, Taylor Swift, Ariana Grande and the Japanese
band King & Prince, as well as continued sales of the soundtrack from A Star /s Born, The Beatles 50" anniversary release of Abbay Aoad
and multiple albums from Queen.

In 2019, UMG had an artist at the top of five major platfarms (Amazon, Apple, Oeezer, Spotify and YouTube}, and for each platform, a
different top artist (Taylor Swift, Billie Eilish, J Balvin, Post Malone, Daddy Yankee). In addition, according te Billboard, UMG had seven of
the Top 10 singles and albums in the United States for 2019 and the top three artists (Post Malone, Ariana Grande and Billie Eilish),

Music publishing revenues grew by 9.2% at constant currency and perimeter compared to 2018, also driven by increased subscription and
streaming revenues.

On February 6, 2020, Taylor Swift, one of the music industry’s most creatively and cammercially successful artist-sangwriters in histary,
signed an exclusive global publishing agreement with Universal Music Publishing Group.

Merchandising and ather revenues were up 73.7% at constant currency and perimeter compared to 2018, thanks to increased touring activity
and growth in retail and D2C (direct-to-consumer) revenues.

Driven by the growth in revenues, UMG’s FBITA was €1,124 million, up 22.3% at constant currency and perimeter compared to 2018 (+24.6%
on an actual basis).
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1.32 Canal+ Group

Year ended December 31,

% Change at
% Change at canstant
tonstant currency and
{in millions of euros) 2019 2018 % Change curigncy perimeter (a}
International TV 1,781 1.567 +13.7% +13.8% +£.1%
TV in Mainland France (b) 3,053 3137 -2.7% 27% -2.8%
Studiocanal 434 467 -5.9% -5.9% -12.8%
Revenues 5,268 5,166 +2.0% ¥2.0% -0.9%
Income from oparations 431 423 +0.3% +1.2% -5.2%
Incoma From operations margin 82% 83% D uts
Income/(charges) related to share-based compensation plans 5 3
Other special items excluded from income from operations 9 2
EBITA before restructuring charges 435 428 +1.6% +1.6% -3.9%
EBITA matgin 83% 83% -pt
Restructuring charges 192} (28)
EBITA 343 420 ~14.3% -14.3% -19.3%
Canal+ Group subseribers {in thousands}
Africa 4,699 4,173 +726
Furope fexcluding M7) 2,794 2744 +50
Oversgas 657 664 7
Asia Pacific 1,267 336 +271
M7 (Benefux, Central Europe) 2,758 - +2,258
Q@ and intetnational subscribers 11,875 8577 (ci +3.298
Selt-distributed indwidugl sybscribers in Mainland France 4,548 4,697 -149
Wholesale subscrbsrs {d) 3,385 3.405 E]
Collective subscribers in Mainland France 513 509 +4
Subscribers in Mainland France 8,416 8.611 (c) -195
Total Canal+ Group subscribers 20,291 17.188_(c) +3.103

a.  Constant perimeter natably reflects the impacts of the acguisition of M7 by Canal+ Group (September 12, 2019}
h.  Relates to pay-TV and free-to-air channels {C8, CStar and CNews] in mainland France.
¢. 2018 pro forma data natably included wholesale subscribers.

d. Includes the strategic partnership agreements with Free, Orange and Bouygues Telecom, as well as subscribers to Thema packages.
Certain subscribers may also have subscribed to a Canal+ offer.

At the end of December 2019, the total subscriber portfolio {individual and coliective} of Canal+ Group's, which now includes M7's
operations, reached 20.3 million. compared to 17.Z miiiion at the end of ODecember 2018 on a pro forma basis, including 8.4 million in
mainland France.

In 2019, Canal+ Group's revenues ware £5,268 million. up 2.0% compared to 2018 {down (.9% at constant currency and perimeter}.

Revenues fram television operations in mainland France feil slightly (down 2.8% at constant currency and perimeter) due to the decline in
the seif-distributed individual subscriber base. However, the Canal+ subscriber base recorded a net increase in subscribers of 72,000 over
the past 1Z months.

Revenues from international operations grew strongly by 13.7% {up 6.1% at constant currency and perimeter) driven both by organic growth
and the integration of M7,

Studiocanal's revenues were €434 million, reflecting a year-on-year decrease of 12.8% at constant currency and perimeter due to fewer
theatrical releases compared to 2018.

EBITA before restructuring charges was €435 milkien, compared to €428 million in 2018. EBITA after restructuring charges amounted to
£343 million, compared to £400 million in 2018.

In the fourth quarter of 2019, several important agreements involving the operations in France were announced, including with Netflix, UEFA
for the Champions League, The Walt Disney Company (in particular for the marketing of Disney +) and BelN Sports, the latter agreement
allowing Canal + to broadcast two matches of Ligue 1 per championship day starting with the upcoming 2020/2021 season. In January 2020,
Canal + Group extended its agreement with Formula One Management to remain the exclusive broadcastes for all of the next three seasons
of Formula 1.
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1.3.3 Havas Group

Year ended December 31,

% Change at % Change at

constant canstant
currency and

{in millions of euras) 7019 2018 % Change eurreney perimetar
Revenues 2,378 2,319 +2 6% +0.2% -1.0%
Net revenues (a) 2,256 2,195 +2.8% +0.3% -1.0%
Income from operations 268 258 +3.9% +2.4% +0.6%
Income fram operations/net revenues 11.8% 11.8% +0.1 pts
Income/icharges) related to share-based compensation plans (12) 112}
Qther special items excluded from income from opgrations 4 (1}
EBITA befere restructuring charges 260 245 +6.1% +4.5% +2.5%
EBITA before restructuring charges/net revenues 11.5% 11.2% +0 3pts
Restructuring charges (35) {30
EBITA 225 215 +.5% +2.7% +0.5%
Netrevenues by geographic area
Europe 1,105 1,109 -0.4% -0.5% -2.0%
North America 83 766 +8.5% +2.7% +0.4%
Asia Pacific and Africa 193 192 +0.6% -1.7% -3.0%
Latin America 127 128 -0.4% +2.3% +1.7%

2,256 2,195 +2.8% +0,3% -1.0%
Net revenues by segment
Havas Creative 46% 16%
Havas Media 35% 37%
Havas Health & You 19% 1%

100% 160%

a.  Net revenues correspond to Havas Group's revenues less the pass-through costs rebilled to customers. Please refer to Note 1.3.4.3 to
the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2019.

Havas Group’s revenues for 2019 were €2,378 miltion. up 2.6% (down 1.0% at constant currency and perimeter) compared to 2018. Net
revenues® increased by 2.8% to €2,256 million. Acquisitions contributed +1.3% and exchange rates had a positive impact of 2.5%. Organic
grawth was down 1.0% compared to 2018.

[n a contrasting sector environment, particularly in Europe, Havas Group's performance was supported by the media business thanks to the
new Meaningful Media approach launched at the beginning of 2019. Strong performances were delivered by the healthcare cammunications
business and the creative pure players {BETC, Rosapark, Edge), while the general network moved purposefully ahead with its transformation
in order to adapt itself to evolving client needs.

Havas Group accelerated its financial investments in the second half of the year, making four acguisitions of strategic importance in terms of
geographic expansion and strengthening its expartise: Buzzman in France, Langoor and Shobiz in India, and Gate One in the United Kingdom.

in 2019, Havas Group continued its worldwide development, winning new clients bath locally and globally. In addttion, Havas Group agencies
were lavishly awarded in 2019. The Group was named “Most Sustainable Comparny in the Communication Industry” by World Finance
magazine in November 2019, and BETC was named " International Agency of the Year 2013” by Adweek.

Havas Group consolidated its profitability. EBITA before restructuring charges was €260 million, up 5.1% compared to 2018. After
restructuring charges, EBITA was €225 million, up 4.5%. Its EBITA/net revenues margin thus gained an additional 0.2 points.

Major awards and wins by Havas Group:

Havas continued its worldwide development in 2019, winning prestigicus new clients and brands in creation, media and healthcare at both
local and glabal levels.

In creation, Havas signed new local contracts with Boston Beers, Gap, Lacoste and Core Water in the United States, Huawei, Lloyds and
Compare the Market in the United Kingdom, COOP in Italy and 7TV and Ferrerro in Germany. Glabally, Havas Creative won contracts with
Pimco, Michelin and Bel.

In media, South Korean car manufacturers Hyundai Kia re-selected Havas Media to handle its media mandate for Europe, Russia and
Turkey. Havas Media has been warking with Hyundai Kia for ten years. Havas Media also won a number of global assignments
including TripAdvisor, Meetic and Visit California. Some multilocal wins included Continental Foods, Mango, and UPower. Locally, it won

?Net revenues correspond to revenues less pass-through costs rebilled to customers.
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contracts with Sanafi, Planet Fitness and Stap n” Shop in the United States, Corby in Canada, Legal & General, Homebase, Dreams and
Starbucks in the United Kingdom, Hassia Group, Vattenfall and Stepstone in Germany. SFR and GRDF in France, Carvefour in Belgium, Tinder
and Gameskraft in India and Unigla in Singapore.

Havas Health & You had major global and local wins worldwide with AbbVie, Alcon, Amgen, AstraZeneca, BioMarin, Celgene, Genentech,
Guardant Health, Guidewell, Ipsen, Ironshore, Klosterfrau, Lundbeck, Merck Inc, Novartis, Takeda, TherapeuticsMD and Unicef.

1.3.4 Editis

As a reminder, since February 1, 2019, Vivendi has fully consolidated Editis.

11-month pro forma data

11 months ended % Change at
December 31, constant
2019 (a) 208 % Change currency and
{in millions of euros) perimeter
Literature 82 777 +3.5% +2.0%
Education and Reference 184 158 +16.8% +16.8%
Diffusion and Distribution 221 211 +4.2% +4.2%
Revenues 687 646 +7.0% +6.3%
Income from operations 59 46 +27.0% +26.8%
Restructuring charges (3t 4
Income/(charges) related to share-hased compensation plans -
Other special items excluded from income from operations 14) i}
EBITA 52 35 +41.9% +16.9%

a. Carresponds to the financial data consalidated by Vivendi since February 1, 2019,

Vivendi has fully consolidated Editis since February 1, 2018, Editis’ contribution to Vivendi's revenues was €687 million for eleven months, up
6.3% on a pro farma basis at constant currency and perimeter compared to the same period in 2018.

Since February 1, 2018, Education & Reference revenues have risen sharply (up 16.8%) Thanks to the reform of high schaol curricula in
France, Editis reinforced its leading position in textoook publishing with its strong French brands, Nathan, Bordas and Le Robert.

Literature continues to grow (up 2.0% un an eleven-month pro forma hasis). Editis confirms its leading position in this segment with 6
authors in the top 10 of the best-selling authors in France in 2019 and also leads many other segments: N® 1 in thrillers, History, youtubers
and influencers, and N°2 in youth, leisure / practical life and tourism (GfK 2019).

Diffusion & Distribution revenues refated to third-party publishers are also increased (up 4.2% on eleven-month pro formal, driven in
particular by the distribution of the Goncourt Prize, Tous fes hommes n'habitent pas le monde de {a méme fagon from Jean-Paul Dubois
{L"Ofivier).

In the second half of 2019, Editis continued its external growth policy with Robert Laffont's acquisition of the publishing houses Seguier,
Nathan’s purchase of the publishing houses L'Agrume and the publishing house Le Retz's acquisition of I'Ecole Vivante, as well as the
purchass in July 2019 of the V' Archipel publishing group which specializes in literature and essays.

In August 2019, Editis also entered the graphic nove! and comic book segments following an agreement concluded with Jungle Publishing (a
subsidiary of the Steinkis group).

Editis’ EBITA was €52 million since February 1, 2019, up 46.9% pic forma compared to the same period in 2018, thanks to the increase in
revenues and cost contral.
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135 Gameloft

Year ended December 31,

% Change at

% Change at constant
constant currency and

{in millions of euras) 2019 2018 % Change currency permeter
Revenues 259 293 -11.8% -13.6% -16.0%
Income from operations {28) 4
Restructuring charges {3) 4
Income/icharges) related to share-based compensation plans {4} 2
Other special items excluded from income from operations {1) -
EBITA {36} 2
Revenues by geographic area
North America 92 97
EMEA (Europe, the Middle East, Africa) 86 100
Asia Pacific 62 73
Latin America 19 23

259 293

With 1.5 million downloads per day across all platforms during 2019, Gamneleft is one of the warld's leading video game publishers,

In 2019, Gameloft's revenues were €259 million, down 11.8% vear-on-year. Gameloft's sales on OTT platforms, representing 72% of
Gameloft's total sales, declined by 11.1%. The postponement to 2020 of three majar games initially scheduled for release in the second half
of 2019 and the saturation of the mobile gaming segment largely explain the lower OTT revenues in 2019. The advertising business,
representing 11.6% of Gameloft's total revenues, was up 4.8%.

§5% of Gameloft's revenues were generated by its own gaming franchises and 35% by the franchises of major international groups such as
Disney or Lego. For Disney, Gameloft released Disney Princess Majestic Quest in October 2019 and Disney Getaway Blast at the end of
January 2020. For Lego, it will release LEGQ Legacy. Heroes Unboxed in March 2020.

Gameloft is developing its presence on all platforms and has released twao games on Nintendo Switch: Modern Combat Blackout and Asphalt
9 legends.

The recent subscription-based game distribution model provides another growth avenue for Gameloft. It developed Ballistic Baseball, one of
the first games included on Apple Arcade, Apple’s new game subseription service. It also launched a ctoud gaming service, in partnership
with Blacknut, which coffers operatars and manufacturers a new range of cross-platform games streamed frem the cloud.

In 2019, the decrease in fixed costs anly partially offset the decline in revenues and higher marketing investments. Gameloft's EBITA was -
€36 million.

1.36 VivendiVillage

Year ended December 31,

% Change at

% Change at constant
constant currency and
{in milliens of euros} 2019 2018 % Change currency perimeter {a)
Revenues iy 123 +14.6% +14.2% +38.9%
of which Vivend; Ticketing 66 58 +14.4% +13.6% +65.5%
Live 68 34 +99.1% +89.1% +99.1%
Income from operations {16) {9)
Restructuring charges (1) (2)
Income/{charges) related to share-based compensation plans - -
Other special items excluded from income from operations - ?
EBITA {1 (s}

a.  Constant perimeter notably reflects the impacts of the acquisition of Paylogic {April 16, 2018) and the sale of MyBestPro (December 21,
2018).

In 2019, Vivendi Village's revenues were €141 million, a significant increase of 38.9% at constant currency and perimeter {14.6% on an actual
basis) compared to 2018.
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This growth is mostly attributable to the development of the live activities in France and Great-Britain, as well as the venues in France and
Africa. Their revenues nearly doubled in a year {x1.9), reaching €68 million. This change resulted in particular from the organic growth of the
concert and show promation business, which currently manages some 75 artists. it is also due to acquisitions, notably Garorack in France,
which attracted 160,000 festival-goers in 2019.

I addition, Olympia Production formed a jaint venture with OL Groupe ta praduce the Felyn Stadium Festival in Lyons in June 2020.

L' Olympia in Paris enjoved a recerd year with slightly over 300 shows. Three new CanalOlympia venues were inaugurated in Africa in 2019 (14
in total in ten countries).

The ticketing businesses, united under the See Tickets brand, generated revenues of €66 millien {up 14.4% compared to 2018 and up 6.5% at
canstant currency and perimeter). This growth Is partly atiributable to the development of the operations in the US, where revenue has almost
doubled in ane year, With the acquisition of Starticket in Switzerland on December 30, 2018, See Tickets is now present in nine European
countries and in the United States, selling about 30 million tickets annually {25 million in 2019).

Vivendi Village's EBITA was a loss of €17 million, compared 1o a loss of £9 million in 2018. Excluding the investments in Africa, EBITA was
mostly at break-even.

1.3.7 New Initiatives

in 2019, New Initiatives, which hrings together entities in the faunch or development phase, recorded revenues of €71 miflion, up 6.2%
compared to 2018 {up 9.3% at constant currency and perimeter).

GVA continued to roll out its fiber network in Africa in order to provide its customers with very high- speed internet access. After Libreville
and Lomé, GVA experienced further development in 2019, in Pointe Noire {Republic of Cango).

In 2019, GVA provided more than 25,000 subscribers in the three cities where the company is established.

Dailymotion entered into over 280 agreements with leading global publishers in 2019, including 70 in the United States and dozens in
territories where the company had litde presence (Indonesia, Taiwan, Mexico). The audience in these new countries has increased
significantly. At the end of 2019, the premium content audience represented mare than 70% of its global audience, compared to less than
30% in 2017, and its total monthly users increased by 20% in two years to exceed 350 million at the end of 2019.

in 2018, Dailymotion also completed the overhaut of its advertising ecosystent. i created a proprietary programmatic platform and a content
monetization system (live or programmatic).

New Initiatives' EBITA was a loss of £65 millian, compared o a loss of €39 million in 2014.
1.38 Corporate

Corporate’s income from operations was a net charge of €95 million, compared to a net charge of €110 million in 2018, a favorable change of
€15 million, primarily due to non-recurrent items impacting the pension charges. Please refer to Note 18.2.2 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements for the year ended December 31, 2019.

Corporate’s EBITA was a net charge of €100 millien, compared te a net charge of £123 million in 2018, a favarable change of €23 million
mainly relating to the change in income from operations and a decrease in rastructuring charges.
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2 Liquidity and capital resources

2.1 Liquidity and equity portfolio

Preliminary comments:

e The”

‘Net Cash Position” and the “Financial Net Debt”, both non-GAAP measures, should be considered in addition to, and not as a

substitute for, GAAP measures presented in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, as well as any other measure of
indebtedness reparted in accordance with GAAP. Vivendi considers these to be relevant indicators of the group's liquidity and capital
resources. Vivendi Management uses these indicators for reporting, management and planning purposes.

o The Net Cash Position (and the Financial Net Debt) are calculated as the sum of:

I

i,
ili.

less:
v.

cash and cash equivalents, as reported in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, corresponding to cash in banks, mongy
market funds and bond funds, which satisfy the ANC's and AMF's decision released in November 2018, and other highty liguid
short-term investments with initia! maturities of generally three months or less, as required by IAS 7 {please refer to Note 1.3.5.12
to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2019}

cash management financial assets, included in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position under “financial assets”, relating
to financial investments, which de nat safisfy the criteria for classification as cash equivalents set forth in IAS 7, and. with respect
to money market funds, the ANC's and AMF’s decision released in November 2018, and

derivative financial instruments, net (assets and liabilities) where the underlying instruments are Financial Net Debt items, as well
as cash deposits securing borrowings included in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position under “financial assets”™.

value of borrowings at amortized cost.

e for a detailed description, please refer to Note 15 "Cash position” and to Note 20 "Borrowings and other financial liabilities and
financial risk management” to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended Decembar 31, 2013

211 Changes in liquidity

Cash and cash Borrowings at amorti;ed N NetVCash_
equivalents cost an(_j other financial Position/iFinancial Net

{in millions of euros) items {a) Debt}
Net Cash Position as of December 31, 2018 3719 (3.617) 176
{Outflows) / inflows:

Operating activities 1,268 - 1,268

Investing activities (1,610} {403) (2,013}

Financing activities (1,317} (2,178} (3.495)
Foreign currency translation adjustments {4) 4 -
Financial Net Debt as of December 31, 2019 2,130 (6,794) {4,064}

a.  "Other financial items” include cash management financial assets and derivative financial instruments relating to the interest rate and
foreign currency risk management {assets and liabilities).

As of December 31, 2819, Vivendi's Financial Net Debt amounted to -€4,064 million, compared to a Net Cash Position of €176 million as of
December 31, 2018, i.e., a change of -£4 240 million. This change was mainly attributable to the following items:

on January 31, 2019, Vivendi completed the acquisitien of 100% of Editis’s share capital, representing a €829 million outflow,
including the repayment of Editis's debt iplease refer to Note 2.2 to the Consclidated Financial Statements for the year ended
December 31, 2019);

on April 18, 2019, Vivendi paid a dividend with respect to fiscal year 2018 of €0.50 per share representing a €636 miltion outflow;

as of May 28, 2019, Vivendi implemented a share buyback program for up to 10% of Vivendi's share capital at a maximum price of
€25 per share, for the purpose of canceling the shares acquired. Between May 28, 2019 and December 31, 2019, share
repurchases represented a €2,673 million outflow, including fees and taxes for €9 million. Please refer to Note 16 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2019; and

on September 12, 2019, Vivendi completed the acquisition of M7, representing a €1,136 million outflow (please refer to Note 2.3 to
the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2019).
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These items were partially offset by the following:

« on March 7, 2018, Vivendi received €429 miilion under the farward sale of its remaining interest in Ubisoft (please refer to Note
2.4 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended Decernber 31, 2018);

» on March 25, 2019, Vivendi received the refund of the deposit of €70 million paid in March 2017 pursuant to an agreement to
purchase a plot of land on the le Seguin in the Parisian suburb of Boulogne Billancourt; and

« netcash provided by operating activities (after income tax paid} for €567 miltion,

2.1.2 Equity porttolio

As of December 31, 2019, Vivendi held a partfolio of listed non-cantralling equity interests {including Telecom ftalia) for an aggregate market
value of approximately £3.95 billion (befare taxes), compared te €3.91 biltion as of December 31, 2018 (which notably included a receivable
an the sale of its remaining interest in Ubisoft for €429 million: please refer to Note 2.4 to the Consalidated Financial Statements for the
year ended December 31, 2019).

As of February 10, 2020 {the date of Vivendi's Management Board meeting that approved the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year
ended December 31, 2019), the value of this portfolio was approximately €3.65 hillion (before taxes).
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2.2 Cash flow from operations analysis

Preliminary comment:

“Cash flow from operations” (CFFO) and “cash flow from operations after interest and income tax paid” (CFAIT), both non-GAAP measures,
should be considered in addition to, and not as substitutes for, other GAAP measures of operating and financial performance as presented in
the Consolidated Financial Statements and the related notes or as described in this Financial Report. Vivendi considers these to be relevant
indicators of the group’s operating and financial performance.

Year ended December 31,

{in millions of eurgs) 2019 2018 % Change
Revenues 15,898 13,932 +14.1%
Operating expenses excluding depreciation and amortization (13.620) (12,192} -11.7%
2278 1,740 +31 0%
Restructuring charges paid (101) (106) +4.5%
Content investments, net (676) {137} x4,9
of which payments to artists and repertoire owners, net at UMG:
Payments {1.210) {933) 297%
Recoupment and other 1.018 817 +25.3%
{192) {121) 59.5%
of which ilm and tefevision rights, net at Canal+ Group:
Acguisition paid {502} {508} +1.2%
Consumption 567 670 -15.3%
65 162 -59 8%
of which sports rights, net at Canal+ Group:
Acquisition paid (1,075} {906) -121%
Consumption 957 865 +14.1%
{28} {41} 131.6%
Neutralization of change in provisions inclurled in operating cxpenses (24) {29) +16.7%
Uther cash operating items 7 g -18.2%
Other changes in nat working capital 57 (28} na
Net cash provided byf{used for) operating activities before income tax paid 1,551 1,449 +7.1%
Dividends received from equity affiliates and unconsolidated companies 1 18 -38.2%
Capital expenditures, net (capex, net) (405) (341 -18.6%
Repayment of lease liabilities and related interest expenses (a) (254) na na
Cash flow from operations (GFFO} 903 1.126 -19.7%
Interest paid, net (46) 47} +1.9%
Other cash items related to financial activities {7) 5 na
Income tax {paid)/received, net (283) (762} -8.6%
Cash flow from operations after interest and income tax paid {CFAIT) 567 822 -31.0%

na: not applicable.

a. Included a €211 million repayment of lease liabilities and €43 million of related interest expenses in 2013,

2.2.1 Changes in cash flow from operations {(GFFQ)

In 2019, cash flow from operations (CFFO} generated by the group’s business segments amounted to €903 million {compared to
€1,126 milfion in 2618}, a €223 million decrease.

Net EBITDA from the change in the working capital of the group’s business segments amounted to €4,817 million (compared to
€4,280 million in 2018}, an increase of €537 million. This increase notably resulted from the strong cperating performance of Universal Music
Group (+8337 million) and a favorable impact at Canal+ Group {+€133 million) relating to the change in the working capital, as well as the
impact of the consolidation of Editis as from February 1, 2019 {+£89 million).

This favorable change was offset by content investments which amounted to €3,427 million (compared to €2,734 miflion in 2018}, an
increase of €693 million, of which +£508 million for Universal Music Group related ta an increase in advance payments to artists.

Furthermore, capital expenditures generated by the group’s business segments amaunted to €405 millicn {compared to €341 million in 2018),
an increase of £64 million. This change mainly reflected the increase in investments at Canal+ Group {(+895 million}, notably related to the
engoing deployment of a new generation of set-top boxes.
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222 Cash flow trom operations {CFFQ} by business segment

Year ended December 31,

{in millions of euros) 2019 2018 % Change
Universal Music Group 704 838 -16.0%
Canaf+ Group 167 253 -35.5%
Havas Group 239 230 +3.8%
Editis 22 - na
Gameloft [26) 1

Vivendi Vitlage {24} 3

New Initiatives (72} (82}

Corporate 107) M7

Cash tlow from aperations {CFFQ) 903 1,126 -19.7%

na: not applicable.
2.2.3 Changes in cash flow from operations after interest and income tax paid (CFAIT)

In 2019, cash flow from operations after interest and income tax paid {CFAIT) was a €567 million net inflow {compared to a €822 million net
inflow in 2018), an unfavorable change of £255 million, primarily resulting from the change in net cash flow from operations (CFFO).

In 2019, cash flow relating to income taxes was a €283 million net outflow [compared to €262 million in 2018), an increase of £21 million. As
a reminder, an February 15, 20139, pursuant to a decision of the Versailles Admimstrative Court of Appeal regarchng the use of foreign tax
receivables by Vivendi for the payment of income tax in respect of the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012, Vivendi comptied with the tax
authorities’ request and vepaid an amount of €233 million (€218 million principal and £21 million moratarium interest). Following a favorable
decision of the French Council of State {Conseif d Ftat) on December 19, 2019, the tax authorities repaid €223 million to Vivendi {€218 million
principal and £5 million moratorium interest) en December 27, 2019. In addition, in January 2020, the tax authorities repatd €250 million to
Vivendi, i.e., a balance of €21 miliion with respect to moratorium interest for fiscal year 2012 and €229 million with respect to fiscaf year
2015 (€203 million principal and €26 million moratarium interest).

In 2019, the financial activities generated a £57 miflion net outflow (compared to €42 million in 2018). in 2019, this amount mainly included
net interest paid {(-£46 million, compared ta -€47 million in 2018). In addition, cash outflows generated by foreign exchange risk hedging
instruments was a +£25 million inflow {compared to +£13 million in 2018).

224 Reconciliation of CFAIT to net cash provided by operating activities

Year ended December 31,

{in millions of euras) 2018 2018

Cash flow from operations after interest and income tax paid {CFAIT) 567 822

Adjustments

Repayment of lease liabilities and related interest expenses 254 na
Capital expenditures, net (capex, net) 405 347
Dividends received from equity affiliates and unconsclidated campanies (11} (18
Interest paid, net 46 47

Other cash items related to financial attivities ! {5)
Net cash provided by operating activities (a) 1,268 1187

na: not applicable.

a.  Aspresented in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows.
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231 Investing activities

lin millions of euros)

Financial investments

Acquisition of Editis

Acguisition of M7

Acquisition of cash management financial assets
Other

Totat financial investments

Financial divestments

Sale of the remaining (nterest in Ubisoft

Refund cf the fle Seguin land deposit

Disposal of cash management financial assets

Dther

Total financial divestments

Dividends recewad from equity affiliates and unconsolidated companies
Capital expenditures, net

Net cash provided by/{used for) investing activities {a)

a. As presented in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows.

2.3.2 Financing activities

{in millians of euros)

Transactions with shareowners
Distribution to Vivendi SA's sharcowners
Sale/{purchase) of Vivendi SA's treasury shares

Capital increase subscrived by employees as part of the Stock Purchase Plan
Exercise of stock subscription options by executive management and employges

Other
Total transactions with shareowners

Transactions on borrowings and other financial liabilities
Issuance of bonds

Issuance of short-term marketable securities

Redemptton of bands

Interest paid, net

Other

Total transactiens on barrowings and other financial liabilities
Repayment of lease liabilities and related interest expenses

Net cash provided by/{used for} financing activities (a)

a. Aspresented in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows.

Refer to Notes to
the Consolidated

Year ended

Financial Decembear 31, 2019
Statements

2.7 (829)
23 {1,135}
15 (100)
(219)
(2.284)

724 4729
231 70
15 485
74

1,068

T
3 {405)
(1,610}

Refer to Notes to
the Consclidated

Year ended

Financia! December 31, 2019
Statements

16 (636)
16 (2673

18 113

19 61
{53}
{3,188)

20 2,100
20 870
20 (700)
5 {46}
(99)

2125
11:5 (254)
{1,317)
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3 QOutlook

Dividend

On April 20, 2020, the General Shareholders” Meeting will vote on the proposal of an ordinary dividend of €0.60 per share with respect to the
2019 fiscal year. This amount reprasents an increase of 20% over the dividend paid with respect to fiscal year 2018 (£0.50 per share) and a
yield of 2.4% (based on the average price for Vivendi shares over the last 12 months). The ex-dividend date wauld be Aprit 21, 2620, with
payment on April 23, 2020.

4 Forward-Looking Statements

Cautionary note

This Financial Beport contains forward-looking statements with respect to Vivendi's financial condition, results of operations, business,
strategy, plans and outlook, including the impact of certain transactions and the payment of dividends and distributions, as well as share
repurchases. Although Vivend believes that such forward-looking statements are based on reasonable assumptions, such statements are
not guarantees of future perfarmance. Actual results may differ materially from the forward-looking statements as a result of a number of
risks and uncertainties, many of which are outside Vivendi's control, incfuding, but not timited to, risks related to antitrust and other
regulatory approvals, and to any other approvals that may be required in connection with certain transactions, as well as the risks described
in the decuments filed by Vivendi with the Autorité des marchés financiers (the "AMF"} {the French securities regulator), and in its press
releasas, if any, which are also available in English on Vivendi’s website (www.vivendi.comj. Accordingly, readers are cautioned against
relying on such forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements are made as of the date of this Financial Report. Vivendi
disclaims any intention or obligation to provide, update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information,
tuture events, or atherwise.

5 Other Disclaimers

Unsponsored ADRs

Vivendi does not sponsor any American Depositary Receipt [ADR) facibty in respect ul its shares. Any ADR facility rurrently in existence is
“unsponsored” and has no ties whatsoever to Vivendi. Vivendi disclaims any lability in respect of any such facility,

Transiation

This Financial Heport is an English transtation of the french version of the repart and is provided solely for the convenience of
English-speaking readers. This translation is qualified in its entirety by the French version, which is available on the company's website
www.vivendi.com). In the event of any inconsistencies between the French version of this Financial Report and the English translation, the
Frenich version will prevail.
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{in millions of euros)
Revenues

Universal Music Group
Canal+ Group

Havas Group

Editis {a}

Gameloft

Vivend Village

New Initiatives
Elimination of intersegment transactions
Total Vivendi

lin millions of euros}

Revenues

Universal Music Group

Canal+ Group

Havas Group

Gamelofi

Vivendi Viliage

New Initiatives

Elimination of intersegment transactions
Total Vivendi

2013
Three manths ended Three months ended Three months ended Three manths ended
March 31, June 30, Septernber 30, December 31,

1,602 1,756 1,800 210

1,252 1,266 1,285 1,465

525 h89 567 698

89 1m 210 217

68 65 §1 65

23 43 42 33

15 19 16 20
{15} (15} {11) {24)

3,459 3,894 3,970 4575

2018
Three months ended Three months ended Three months ended Three months ended
March 31, June 30, Septermber 30, December 31,

1,222 1,406 1,495 1,900

1,298 1,277 1,247 1344

506 567 553 593

70 n 74 78

23 29 36 35

16 16 15 19
(1) {14} {19} 14

3,124 3,362 3,401 4,055

a.  Asareminder, Vivendi has fully cansolidated Editis since February 1, 2019.

Financial Repart and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the yvear ended December 31, 2019

Vivend: / 25



Thursday February 13, 2020

Intentionally left blank

Financial Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2019 Vivendi / 26



Thursday February 13, 2020

IlI- Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the
year ended December 31, 2019

Preliminary comment:

As from January 1, 2019, Vivendi applies the new accounting standard IFRS 16 — Leases. In accordance with IFRS 16, the impact of the
change of accounting standard was recorded in the opening balance sheet as of January 1, 2019. Moreover, Vivendr applied this change of
accounting standard to the Statemant of Financial Position, Statament of Earnings and Statement of Cash Flows in 2019, therefore, the data
relative to prior years is not comparable. For a detaifed description, please refer to Notes 1 and 17 to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended December 31, 2019,

As a reminder, in 2018, Yivendi applied two new accounting standards.

o RS 15 — Revenues from Contracts with Customers: in accordance with IFRS 15, Vivendi applied this change of accounting
standard to 2017 revenues, and

s [fAS 8 — Financial Instruments: in accordance with IFRS 9, Vivendi applied this change of accounting standard to the 2018
Statement of Farnings and Statement of Comprehensive Incame and restated its opening bafance sheet as of January 1, 2018,

Statutory auditors’ report on the Consolidated Financial
Statements

To the Shareholders’ Meeting of Vivendi SE

Opinion

In compliance with the engagement entrusted to us by your shareholders’ meetings, we have audited the accompanying consolidated
financial statements of Vivendi SE for the year ended 31 December 2018.

fn our opinien, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the assets and liahilities and of the financial position of the
group as at 31 December 2019 and of the results of its operations for the year then ended in accordance with Imternational Financial
Reporting Standards as adoepted by the European Union,

The audit opinion expressed above is consistent with our report to the Audit Committee.

Basis for Qpinion
s Auwdit Framework

We conducted our audit in accordarce with professional standards applicable in France. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Statutory Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report.

o Independence

We conducted our audit engagement in compliance with independence rules applicable to us, for the period from 1 January 2019 to the date
of our repert and specifically we did not provide any prohibited non-audit services referred to in Article 5(1) of Regulation {(EU} No. 537/2014
or in the French Code of Ethics for Statutory Auditors {Code de déontologie de 2 profession de commissaire aux comptes).

Ohservations

Without qualifying our conclusion above, we draw your attention to sections 1.1 and 11 of the nates t the consolidated financial
statements, which describe the changes in accounting methods relating to the mandatory application as from 1 January 2019 of the standard
IFRS 16 “Leases”.
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Justilication of Assessmemts — Key Audit Matters

In accordance with the requirements of Articles L.823-9 and R.823-7 of the French Commercial Code {Code de commerce) relating to the
justification of our assessments, we inform you of the key audit matters relating to risks of material misstaternent that, in our professianat
judgment, were of mast significance in ow audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period, as well as how we addressad
those risks.

These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon. We do not provide a separate apinion on spacific items of the cansclidated financiat statements.

. Valuation of goadwill allocated to cash-generating units (CGUs) or groups of CGUs: Groupe Canal + [Pay TV / Free TV and
Stadio Canal), Havas, Gameloft and Dailymotion (Notes 1.3.5.2, 1.3.5.8 and 3 to the consalidated financial statements)

Key audit matter

As at 31 December 2019, goodwill is recorded in the balance sheet
for a net carrying amount of €14,690 million, for a total balance
sheet of €37,346 million. 1t has been allocated to the cash
generating units (CGUs} or, where applicable, groups of cash-
generating units, of the activities into which the cempanies
acquired have been integrated. The goodwil! relating to the CGUs:
Graupe Canal + (Pay TV / Free TV and Studio Canal}, Havas,
Gameloft and Dailymotion totals £8,306.8 million.

Each year, management ensures that the carrying amount of the
goodwill does not exceed its recoverable amount. The impairment
test methads thus implemented by management are described in
the notes to the consolidated financial statements; they involve a
significant amount of judgements and assumptions, notably
cancerming, as the case may be:

- tuture cash-flow forecasts;

- perpstual growth rates used for projected flows;

- discount rates applied to estimated cash flows;

- the selection of sample companies included among the
transaction or stock market comparables.

Consequently, any variation in these assumptions may have a
significant impact on the recoverable amount of the goodwill and
necessitate the recognition of an impairment loss, where
applicahie.

We consider the valuation of goodwill to be a key audit matter due
to (i) its materiality in the group’s financial statements, {ii} the
judgements and assumptions required to determine its recoverable
amount.
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Qur response

We analysed the compliance of the methods adopted by your
company with the accounting standards in force, in particular
conceming tha determination of the CGUs and the methods used to
estimate the recoverable amount.

We obtained the impairment tests for each CGU or group of CGUs
and examined the determination of the value of each CGU. We paid
particular attention to those for which the carrying amount is close to
the estimated recoverable amwount, those for which the historical
performance showed differences in relation to the forecasts, and
those oparating in volatile economic environments.

We assessed the competence of the experis appointed by your
comparny for the valuation of certain COUs or groups of CGUs. We
took note of the key assumptions used for all the CGUs or groups of
CGUs and, as the case may be:

- compared the business forecasts underpinning  the
determination of cash flows with the information available,
including the market prospects and past achievements, and in
relation to management’s latest estimates [assumptions,
budgets and strategic plans where applicable);

- compared the perpetual growth rates used for the projected
flows with market analyses and the consensus of the main
professionals concerned,

- compared the discount rates used with our internal databases,
assisted by financial valuation speciatists included in our
teams;

- examined the selection of companies inciuded among the
transaction or stock market comparables in erder to compare it
with the relevant samples according to market analysis and our
knowledge of the market;

- compared the market data used with available public and non-
public information.

We obtained and reviewed the sensitivity analyses performed by
management, which we compared with our own calculaticns to
assess what level of variation in the assumptions would require the
recognition of goodwill impairment.

Finally, we assessed the appropriateness of the information
disclosed in the notes ta the consalidated financial statements.
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. Valuation of the Telecom Mtalia equity affiliate (Notes 1.3.7 and 12.2 ta the consolidated financial statements)

Key audit matter

The value of the Telecom ltalia equity-accounted nvestment
amounts to €3,248 million as at 31 Oecember 2019, after
impairment recorded in 2018. At the year-end, your company
ensures that it is not necessary to recognize an impairment loss for
this investment, by comparing its recoverable amount with the
carrying ameunt recarded in the group's financial statements.

The recoverable amount has been estimated using the usual
valuation methods (value in use determined by discounting future
cash flows, and fair value determined using market datal.

Your company used the services of an expert to assist you in the
valuation of this asset’s recoverable amount. Given the decline
observed in Telecom Italia’s stock market performance during the
last financial year, we consider the assessment of this equity-
accounted investment to be a key audit matter.

Our response

We obtained the documentation relating to the valuation of the
equity-accounted value of Telecom italia.

We assessed the competence of the expert appointed by your
company.

With the assistance of our valuaticn specialists:

- we took note of the models and key assumptions used to
determine discounted cash flows {perpetual growth rate,
discount rate), comparing these items with the information in
our internal databases;

- we took note of the market multiples used by the expert to
assess the relevance of the estimates resulting from the
discounted cash flows method, comparing these items with
market practice and data.

Finally, we assessed the appropriateness of the information
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

s Analysis of the disputes with the Mediaset group and foreign institutional investors (Notes 1.3.8, 1.5, 17 and 24 to the

conselidated financial statements)

Key audit matter

The group's activities are conducted in a constantly evolving
environment and within a complex international regulatory
framework. The group is not only subject to significant changes in
the legislative environment and in the application and
interpretation of regulations, but it also has to contend with
litigation arising in the normal course of its business.

Your company exercises its judgement in assessing the risks
relating ta the disputes with the Mediaset group and with certain
foreign institutional investors, and recognizes a provision when the
expense liable to result from these disputes is probable and the
amaunt can either be guantified or estimated within a reasonable
range.

We consider these disputes to be a key audit matter given the
amounts at stake and the level of judgement required for the
determination of the pravisions.
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Qur response

We analysed all the information made available to us. including,
when applicable, the written confirmations from external legal
advisors mandated by your company, relating to (i} the disputes
between your comparny and the Mediaset group and its shareholders
and (i) the disputes between your company and certain forgign
institutional investors concerning alleged harm resulting from
financial communications of your company and its former CEQ
between 2000 and 2002,

We examined the risk estimates performed by management and
notably compared them with the infarmation made available to us by
the Vivendi group’s advisers.

In addition, we analysed the lawyers' answers received in response
to our requests for confirmation concerning these disputes.

Finally, we verified the information concemning these disputes
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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Specific Verifications

As required by French legal and regulatary texts, we have also verified in accordance with professional standards applicable in France the
information pertaining to the Group presented in the Management Board’s management report.

We have no matters to report as to its fair presentation and its consistency with the consolidated financial statements.

We attest that the consolidated non-financial performance statement provided for in Arficle L.225-102-1 of the French Commercial Code is
included in the information relating to the Group given in the Group's management report, it being specified that, in accordance with the
provisions of Article 1.823-10 of said Code, we have not verified the faimess of the information contained in this statement or its consistency
with the consolidated financial statements that must be verified in a report by an independent third party.

Repart on Other Legal and Requlatory Requirements
o Appointment of the Statutory Auditors

Deloitte & Associds and Ernst & Young et Autres were respectively appointed as the statutory auditors of Vivendi SE at the Shareholders’
Meetings of 25 Aprif 2017 and 15 June 2000.

As of 31 December 2018, Deloitte & Assaciés and Ernst & Young et Autres were in the third year and twentieth year of total uninterrupted
engagement, respectively.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Conselidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European tnian and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary 10 enable the preparation of consalidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
arror.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless it is expected to
liquidate the Company or ta cease operations.

The Audit Committee is responsible for monitoring the financial reporting orocess and the effectiveness of internal contro} and risk
managemenl( systems and where applicabie, its internal audit, regarding the accounting and financial reporting pracedures.

The consolidated financial statements were appraved by your Management Board,

Statutory Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
. Objective and audit approach

Our role is to issug a report on the consolidated financial statements, Qur objective is to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with professional standards wilt always detect a material misstatement when it
exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As specified in Article L.B23-10-1 of the French Commercial Code, our statutory audit does not include assurance on the viability of the
Company or the quality of management of the affairs of the Company.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with professional standards applicable in France, the statutory auditor exercises professianal
judgment throughout the audit and furthermare:

- identifies and assessas the risks af material misstatement of the consalidated financial statements, whether due to fraud ar errar,
designs and performs audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtains audit evidence considersd to be sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for his opinian. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

- obtains an understanding of internat contral refevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are approprate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the internal contral.

- evaluates the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by management in the consolidated financial statements.
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- assesses the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern. This assessment is based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of his audit report.
However, futute events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. i the statutory auditor
concludes that a material uncertainty exists, there is a requirement to draw attention in the audit report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are not provided or inadequate. to medify the opinion expressed
therein.

- evaluates the pverall presentation of the consolidated financial statements and assesses whether these statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

- obtains sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the
Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. The statutory auditor is responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the audit of the consolidated financial statements and for the apinion expressed on these
consolidated financial statements.

s Report to the Audit Committee

We submit a report to the Audit Committee which includes in particular a description of the scope of the audit and the audit program
implemented, as well as the results of our audit. We also report significant deficiencies, if any, in intemal control regarding the accounting
and financial reporting procedures that we have identified.

QOur report ta the Audit Committee includes the risks of material misstatement that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and which are therefare the key audit matters that we are required
to describe in this report,

We also provide the Audit Committee with the declaration provided for in Article 6 of Regulation (EU) No. 537-2014, confirming our
independence within the meaning of the rules applicable in France as set out in particular in Articles L.822-10 to L.822-14 of the French
Commercial Code and in the French Code of Ethics for Statutory Auditors. Where appropriate, we discuss with the Audit Committee the risks
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and the related safeguards.

Paris-La Défense, February 13, 2020

The Statutory Auditors
French original signed by

DELOITTE & ASSOCIES ERNST & YOUNG et Autres

Thierry Queran and Géraldine Segond Jacques Pierres and Claire Pajora
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Consolidated Statement of Earnings

Revenues

Cast of revenues

Selting, general and administrative expenses

Restructuring charges

[mpairment fosses on intangible assets acquired through business cembinations
income from equity affiliates - operatianal

Earnings before interest and incame taxes (EBIT)

Income from equity affiliates - non-operational

Interest

Income from investments
Other financial income
Other fmanctat charges

Earnings hefore provision for incame taxes

Provision for incorre taxes

Eamings from centinuing opetations

Earnings from discontinued operations

Eamings

Of which

Earnings attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners

Nan-cantrolling interests

Earnings attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners per share - basic
Earnings aftributable to Vivendi SA shareowners per share - diluted

in millians of euros, except per share amounts, in euros.

Nota

Thursday Febriary 13, 2020

Year ended Decermber 31,

2019 2018
15,898 13,932
18,845} {7.618}
{5,495} {5,022
{161} (t1s)
(20) (2]
4 7
1,381 1,182
87 122
{46} (47)
10 20
235 418
(170 {1.181)
29 (790}
1477 514
140 1357)
1617 157
1617 157
1,583 127
34 30
1.28 0.10
128 0.10

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Cansolidated Financial Statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Year ended December 31,

{in millions of euros) Note 2019 208
Earnings 1,617 157
Actuarial gains/losses) related to employee defined benefit plans, net (143) 31
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (37) (233}
Comprehensive income from equity affiliates, net 12 (8] (2
Items not subsequently reclassified to prafit or loss {188) {204)
Foreign currency translation adjustments 170 228
Unrealized gains/ilosses), net (4} 2
Comprehensive income from equity affiliates, net 12 61 {182)
(ther impacts, net 22 38
Items to be subsequently reclassified ta profit or loss 249 106
Charges and income directly recognized in equity 8 61 {98)
Total comprehensive income 1,678 59
Of which

Total comprehensive income attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners 1.639 a0
Total comprehensive income attributable to non-controlling interests 39 19

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

{in millions of euros)

ASSETS

Goodwill

Non-current content assets
Other intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment
Rights-of-use relating to leases
Investments in equity affiliates
Non-~current financial assets
Geferred tax assets
Non-current assets

Inventories

Current tax receivables

Current content assets

Trade accounts receivable and other
Current financial assets

Cash and cash eguivalents

Current assets

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Share capital

Additional paid-in capital

Treasury shares

Retained garnings and other
Vivendi SA shareowners’ equity
Non-controlling interests

Tatal equity

Non-current provisions

Lang-term borrewings and other financial liabilities
Deferred tax Liabilities

Long-term lease labilities

Other non-current liabilities

Non-current fiabilities

Current provisions

Short-term borrowings and other financial liabilites
Trade accounts payable and other

Short-term lease liabilities

Current tax payables

Current liahilities

Total liabilities

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

na: not applicable.

Note December 31, 2018

i
12
13

16
14
13
15

17
20

n

17
20
14
1

January 1,2019

December 31, 2018

14,690 12,438 12,438
2,745 2,194 2,194
883 437 437
1,097 967 986
1,245 1,131 na
3520 3418 3,418
2,763 2107 7102
782 713 675
271,226 23,400 22,250
277 206 206
374 135 135
1423 1,345 1,346
5,661 53N 5314
255 1,090 1,090
7130 3,793 3,793
10120 11,881 11,884
37,346 35,281 34,134
6,515 7.184 7,184
2,353 4475 4,475
(694 (643} (649
7,179 6,187 5,303
15.353 17,192 17,313
272 220 721
15,575 12,412 12.534
1127 871 858
5,160 3,448 3,448
1.037 1,076 1,076
1,223 1,122 na
183 223 248
8,730 6,740 5,630
494 419 419
1777 888 888
10,494 9,513 9,572
236 218 na

A0 91 91
13.041 11,129 10,970
21,7 17,869 16,600
37,346 35,281 34,134

The accompanying nates are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended December 31,

{in millions of euros} Note 2018 2018

Operating activities
£BIT 4 1,381 1,182
Adjustments 71 179 432
Content investments, net {676) {137
Gross cash provided by eperating activities before income tax paid 1,483 1.477
Other changes 1n net working capital 67 (28)
Net cash provided by operating activities before income tax paid 1,551 1,449
Income tax (paid)/received, net 6.2 (283) {262}
Net cash provided by operating activities 1,268 1.187

Investing activities
Capital expenditures 3 813 {351)
Purchases of cansolidated companies, after acquired cash 2 {2,106) {116}
Investments in equity affiliates {1 {3
Increase in finzncial assets 13 {177) {579)
Invastments {2.697) {1.045)
Proceeds from sales of progerty, plant, equipment and intangible assets 3 8 10
Proceeds from sales of consolidated companigs, after divested cash 22 16
Disposal af equity affiliates X 2
Decrease in financial assets 13 1,046 2,285
Divestitures 1.076 2,313
Dividends received from equity affiliates 7 8 5
Dividends raceived from uncansohdated companies 13 3 13
Net cash provided byA{used for} investing activities {1,610} 1.286

Financing activities

Net praceeds from issuance of common shares in connection with Vivendi SA's share-based compensation plans 19 175 190
Sales/iputchases) of Vivendi SA’s treasury shares 18 {2,673) -
Distributions to Vivendi SA's shareowners 16 (636} (568
Other transactions with shargowners {13) (16}
Dividends paid by consolidated companies to their non-centrolling interests {41} {47)
Transactions with shareawners {3.188) {441)
Setting up of long-term borrowings and increase in other long-term financial liabilities 20 z2.101 4
Principal payment on long-term boarrowings and decrease in other long-term financial liabilities 20 (6} {3}
Principal payment on short-term borrowings 0 1787 {193}
Other changes in shart-term borrowings and other financial liabilities 20 870 65
Interest paid, net 5 {45} (47}
Other cash items related to financial activities 7) 5
Transactions on horrowings and other financial liabilities 2125 {169}
Repayment of lease liabilities and related interest expenses 11,5 {254) na
Net cash provided by/used for) financing activities (1317} {610)
Foreign currency translation adjustments of continuing operatians (4) {21)
Change in cash and cash equivalents (1,663) 1,842

Cash and cash equivalents
At heginning of the pericd 15 3,793 1,951
At end of the period 18 2,130 3,793

na: not applicable.

The accampanying notes are an intagral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Year ended December 31, 2019 Capital Retained earnings and ather
Comimon shares
Additional Other Total
Mumberof o pwtw Y gy | REEE ehensa  Sumotal | equity
Sharas b shares ' earnngs
P captal captal meome
Dom salhions of ewes. except number of shares) Nete] fin thousands)
BALANCE AS DF DECEMBER 31, 2018 1306238 2334 4,475 {648} palull 2,486 1942) 5.524 13534
to Wivendi SA 1,306,234 7184 4,475 1649} 1.010 7221 1918} 6,303 17,313
to inferests - - - - - 245 29 221 221
Rosiatements related to the application of IFRS 16 - - - - - 2 - {122) 122}
A to Vivendr SA - - fran 1121 12t
—
Attrthutable to non cortroiling interests - in {1 it)
BALANCE AS OF JANUARY 1, 23 1,306,224 RAL) 4475 {649) nen) 1343 {841} 6,102 17402
Attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners 1,306,234 7184 4475 1&549) 110870 L 7.io00 {918) 5182 17.192
Atfrilustable to mon-conirolling interasts - - - - - 243 123) 220 20
| Contributions by/distributions te Vivendi SA shareawners {121,658 (66% 2122 {85 {28%) (634) - (634)) (a7}
Capital reductwon thraugh canceliation of treasury shares 16 {130331! 11201 12,245 2985 -
Salesf{purchases) of Lieasury shares 16 - - (3033 13,043 - (3,033}
Dividend paud on Apnl 18, 2318 with respect to frscal yedr 2816 {€0.50 per shaiel 5 - - - - {636} {B3E} 1535)
Capital ncreast related to share-based compensatian plans 19 9273 kil 123 3 1a7 2 2 33
ot which emplnyer Stock Purchase Plans [July 17, 2019 5.3% 0 g4 - i 14
sxercise of stack options by executive management did winiuyes s 3897 2T e &1 34
Changes in Vivendi SA’s ownorship intarast in its subsidiaries that do not result in a 1033 of control - . - - . 1) - (8} (8)
|\CHANGES 14 EQUITY ATTRIBUTASLE Y0 VIVENGI SA SHAREOWNERS (A) (121,658 (963) {z.122) (45 (2,836} [Z5] - (o} {RATR}
Contributions by/distributions ta fion-conteolling mterests - 19 - {39 [5E
Chdnges in aen-controfling terasts that result s a ganytioss] of contral - 2 - 2 2
|CHANGES IN EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TD NON-CONTROLUNG INTERESTS (B) - - - - - [EX] : (37), {317)
Earntags - 1517 - 1517 1817
Civarges and ncome direttly recognizad i equity 8 - - - 2 39 61 61
9 y 18cog al S
ToTAL COMPREHENSIVE \NCOME {(C) - - - - - 1528 39 1,676 1.678
TOTAL CHANGES OVER THE PERIOD (A+B+L) 1121,658) {663) 12.122) {45} {2.835) 960 39 593 {1.837)]
Artrrty to Vivend: $4 sh: (121,6581 {669} (2,122 {45} {283 JF'N 959 38 957 11.538)
Atttibutable to poi Sontroiing mterests - - - - i 1 2 2
BALANCE AS OF 31, 201% 1,184,576 6515 1353 (6341 LAK] L 8,303 (992) 140 15515
o Vivendi SA sharsow, 1.184,576 6515 2353 [[Zail 8174 5,059 f8g0) 2173 15,353
Artributably to non-controliing intarests - - - - - 244 22/ @ 22z
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Year ended December 31, 2018 Capital Retained sarnings and other
[2 h | X
_ :emmcn s ares Addional . 1 Retaned Other ! Total
umber of Shate pad-in reasury i Subtotal eraine comprehensive ' Subtotal aguity
shares shares | earmings '
capital capital ncome
yinmillions of eurcs, except number ol sharss) Nate| fin . |
BALANCE AS OF JANUARY 1, 2018 1.296,058 7128 430 (670) 10,789 1.863 (206) 7.057 17,85
i to Vivendi SA shareowiers 1.296,09% 7128 4341 1670/ 10.793 7,620 1785} 6835 17,634
Attributable to non<ontrelling interesis - - - - - 243 21 222 222
Contributions by/distributions to Yivendi $A shareowners 18115 56 138 2 Fil | (572) - | {572) {361)
Dradend paid on Apnl 24, 2018 with respect 1o fiscal year 2017 (€0 45 par share) 16 - - - . 1564) - {5681 1568t
Capital Increase related to share-based compensation plans 13 s 56 124 ! all (44 o ] 207
af whieh empicyee Stock Purchase Plans (July 19 2618) 5186 28 7z - o0 ' 100
exercise of stock aphons by executive management and employees 4989 27 82 : 8 89
Changes @ Vivendi SA's ownership interest in its subsidiaries that do not result in a loss of control - - - - - - - - -
CHANGES IN EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO VIVENDI SA SHAREOWNERS (A} 10175 % 134 Fi I Fi)| {572) - {572 1361}
Conlributions by/distributions to aon-contiolling interests - - - - (40 ‘ 1441] {40
Changes m nian-contralli ng 1nterests that resylt in a ganAloss) of contral - - - - 20 : 20 20
CHANGES IN EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE 10 NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (B} - - - - - {20) - {20 (20}
Earnings ‘ - - - - 187 - 157 157
Charges and Income directly d In Bruity 3 - - - - - 38 1136} 188} t98)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME {C} - - - - - 195 {136) 59 59
TOTAL EHANGES OVER THE PERIOD (A+8+C) 13175 56 i34 2t 211 {397) (135) (533)) f322)
Atiributable o Vivendt SA shareawners 10,175 56 &2 21 21 1395) 13n 522 327)
Antributabie to tion conftoling mierests - - - - - Z {3/ i1 {7
BALANCE AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2018 1.306.234 FALL) 4475 {548 1n.nma 1A66 1942} 6,524 12524
Attributairle to Vivendi SA sharsowhers 1,306,234 7184 4475 (648} 11810 7221 {918} &.383 17213
Atnibutabie to roncontieiiing interasts - - - - - 245 {24) 221 221

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Vivendi, a limited liability company incorporated under French law as of December 31, 2019, was registered in its new European form on
January 7, 2020. As from that dats, its name is followed by the words “Société Furopéenne”™ or the abbreviation "SE". Vivendi is subject to
the provisions of French commercial company law that are applicable to it in France, including Council Regulation EC No. 2157/2001 of
October 8, 20061 on the statute for a Eurepean company and the French Commercial Code (Code de commerce/ Vivendi was incorporated on
December 18, 1987, for a term of 99 years expiring on December 17, 2086, except in the event of an early dissolution or unless its term is
extended. ts registered office is focated at 42 avenue de Friediand - 75008 Paris (France). Vivendi is listed on Euronext Paris {Compartment
Al

Vivendi is an integrated content, madia and communications group. The company operates businesses throughout the media value chain,
from tatent discovary ta the creation, production and distribution of cantent. Universal Music Group is the world leader in music, engaged in
recorded music, music publishing and merchandising. It owns mare than 50 tahels covering all music genres. Canal+ Group is the leading
pay-TV operator in France. also operating in Benelux, Pofand, Central Curope, Africa and Asia. lts subsidiary Studiocanal is a leading
Furopean piayer in the production, sale and distribution of movigs and TV series. Havas Group is one of the world's fargest global
communications group covering ail the communications disciplines: creativity, media expertise and healthcare/wellness. Editis is the second-
largest French-language publishing group with more than 50 prestigious publishing houses and a large portfolio of internationally-acclaimed
authors. Gameloft is one of the leading mabile game publishers in the world, with 1.5 million games downloaded daily across all platforms.
Vivendi Village brings together Vivendi Ticketing {in Furope and the United States), as well as live performances through Olympia Production,
Festival Production and venues in Paris [L'Olympia and Theatre de L'(Euvre} and in Africa (CanalOlympia). New Initiatives groups together
Dailymotion, one of the world's largest video content aggregation and distribution platferms and Group Vivendi Africa {GVA), a subsidiary
dedicated to the development of ultra-high-speed Internet service in Africa.

The Consolidated Financial Statements reflect the financial and accounting situation of Vivendi and its subsidiaries (the “group”) together
with interests in equity affiliates. Amounts are reported in euros and all values are rounded to the nearest million,

On February 10, 2020, at a meeting held at the headquarters of the company, the Managernent Board approved the Financial Repart and the
Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2679, They were reviewed by the Audit Committee at its
meeting held on February 11, 2020 and by the Supervisory Board at its meeting held on February 13, 2020.

The Consolidated Financial Statements far the year ended December 31, 2019 will be submitted to Vivendi's shareholders for approval at the
Annual General Shareholders” Megting to be held on April 2B, 2020.

Note 1 Accounting policies and valuation methods

1.1 Compliance with accounting standards

The 2019 Consolidated Financial Statements of Vivendi SA have been prepared in accordance with (nternationat Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) as endorsed by the European Union (EUJ, and in accordance with IFRS published by the international Accounting Standards
Board (IASB} with mandatory application as of December 31, 2019.

Among the new IFRS standards and IFRIC interpretations, which apphied from January 1, 2019, the main subjects for Vivendi relates to IFRS
16 ~ Leases.

IFRS 16 — leases, which was issued by the |ASB on January 13, 2016, endorsed by the EU on Qctober 31, 2017 and published in the Official
Journal of the EU on November 9, 2017, applies mandatorily from January 1, 2019. Vivendi applies IFRS 16 with retrospective effect as from
January 1, 2019 without restating comparative periods in the consolidated financial statements.

Licenses of intellectual property granted by a lessor and rights held by a lessee under licensing agreements being excluded from the scope of
IFRS 16, and commercial supply agreements for the Canal+ Group satellite capacity, which are in general commercial service agreements for
which contract costs are expensed as operational costs for the period, Vivendi mainly focused on the accounting of real estate leases for
which Vivendi is the lessee, which mainly results in the recognition of a lease liability equal to the present value of future lease payments
against a right-of-use asset relating to leasss.

The determination of the iease liability as of January 1, 2019 was made hy:

1} analyzing operating leases for which contractual obligations were disclosed as off-balance sheet commitments until December 31,
2018 {please refer 1o Note 22 “Contractual obligations and other commitments” to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the
vear ended December 31, 2018, page 307 of the 2018 Annual Report);
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2) assessing the lease term that relates to the non-cancellable period of the lease, and taking into account all options to extend the
lease which Vivendi is reasonably certain to exercise and al options to terminate the lease which Vivendi is reasonably certain not
1o exercise. Vivendi determined that real estate lease terms in France are generally nine years; and

3i  estimating the incremental borrowing rate as of January 1, 2019 of each lsase contract, taking into account their residual lease
term at this date and their duration to reflect the interest rate ¢f a loan with a similar payment profile to the lease payments.

As of January 1, 2019, the initial application of IFRS 16 resulted in the recognition of a lease liability of €1,340 million and a right-of-use
asset relating to leases of €1,131 million, the difference being a negative impact of -€122 million net of deferred tax {iability recorded in
retained earmnings. The difference between the lease liability and right-of-use asset is mainly due to the choice made for some significant
leases ta measure the right-of-usg asset at its carrying amount as if IFRS 16 had been applied since the fease’s commencement date, and
subsequently discounted using its incremental borrowing rate as of January 1, 2019.

As of January 1, 2019, the main impacts of such application are detailed in Note 11, it being specified that:
« this valuation does not include the impact of the consolidation of Editis as from February 1, 2019;
= for some leases, as permitted by IFRS 16, Vivendi uses hindsight, such as in determining the lease term if the contract contains
options to extend or terminate the |ease at the initial application date; and
s Vivendi has applied the practical expedient provided by IFRS 16 to exclude initial direct costs frem the measurement of the right-of-
use asset at the date of initial application.

The lease liability is a current ar nen-current operating liability excluded fram the caiculation of Financial Net Debt. Depreciation of right-of-
use assets is included in Adjusted Eamings Before Interest and Income Taxes (EBITA) and the income from operations. The effect of
undiscounting the lease liability (interest expense on lease liabilities) is included in other financial charges and is therefore excluded from
adjusted net income (ANI}. Cash payments for the principal of the lease liability and any interest thereon, which are presented as financing
activities in the condensed statement of cash flows, impact Cash Flow From Operaticns {CFFO).

Vivendi considers Adjusted Farnings Before Interest and Income Taxes {EBITA}, income from operations, adjusted net income {AN!) and Cash
Flow From Operations (CFFO), all non-GAAP measures defined in Note 1.2.3 "Operating performance of each operating segmant and the
group”, to be relevant indicators of the group’s operating and financial performance.

in addition, the interpretation IFRIC 23 - Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments, which was issued by the [ASB on June 7, 2017, endorsed
by the EU on October 23, 2018 and published in the Qfficial Journal of the EU on October 24, 2018, applies mandatorily from January 1, 2019,
This interpretation clarifies the determination of taxable income {taxable profit or loss}), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and
tax rates when there is uncertainty over an income tax treatment and the acceptability of such treatment by a taxation authority,

1.2 Presentation of the Consolidated Financial Statements
121  Consolidated Statement of Earnings

The main line items presented in Vivendi's Consolidated Statement of Earnings are revenues, income from equity affiliates, interest,
pravision for income taxes. net earnings from discontinued or held for sale operations, and net earnings. The Consclidated Statement of
Farnings presents a subtotal of Farnings Before Interest and Tax (EBIT) equal to the difference between charges and income {excluding
financing activities, discontinued or held for sale operations, and income taxes).

The charges and income relating to financing activities cansist of interest, income from investments, as well as other financial charges and
income as defined in paragraph 1.2.3 and presented in Note 5.

Changes in presentation of the Consolidated Statement of Earnings

To ensure the consistancy of the presentation of Vivendi's Consolidated Statement of Earnings with the one prepared by Bolloré Group,
which decided to fully consolidate Vivendi into its Consolidated Financial Statements as from April 26, 2017. Vivendi made the follawing
changes in the presentation of its Corsolidated Statement of Earnings as from January 1, 2017:
e when the companies over which Vivendi exercises a significant influence engage in operations that are similar in nature to the
group’s operations, income from equity affiliates is classified to "Farnings Before Interest and Income Taxes” {EBIT); and
o the impacts related to financial investment operations, which were previously reported in “ather operating charges and income” in
EBIT. are reclassified to “other financial charges and income”. They include capital gains or losses on the divestiture or depreciation
of equity affiliates and ather financial investments.

Moreover, the impacts of transactions with shareowners (except when directly recognized in equity) continue to be recorded in EBIT,

In accordance with 1AS 1, Vivendi has applied these changes in presentation to all periods previously publishea.
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122 Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Net cash provided by operating activities

Net cash provided by operating activities is calculated using the indirect method based on EBIT. EBIT is adjusted for non-cash items and
changes in net warking capital. Net cash provided by operating activities excludes the cash impact of financia) charges and income and nat
changes in working capital related to property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets.

Net cash used for investing activities

Net cash used for investing activities includes changes in net warking capita! related to property. plant and equipment, and intangible assets
as well as cash from investments [particularly dividends received from equity affiliates). It also includes any cash flows arising from the gain
or loss of control of subsidiaries.

Net cash used for financing activities

Net cash used for financing activities includes net interest paid on borrowings, cash and cash equivalsnts, bank overdrafts, as well as the
cash impact of other items related to financing activities such as premiums from the garly redemption of borrowings and the settlement of
derivative instruments. It also includes cash flows from changes in pwnership interests in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control
linchuding increases in ownership interests).

1.2.3  Dperating performance of each operating segment and the group

Vivendi considers Adjusted Earnings Befare Interest and Tax {EBITA). income from operations, Adjusted net income {ANY), and Cash Flow
From Operations {CFFD), all non-GAAP measures, to be relevant indicators of the group’s operating and financial performance.

EBITA

Vivendi considers EBITA, a non-GAAP measure, to ba a relevant measure to assess the performance of its operating segments as reported in
the segment data. it enables Vivendi to compare the operating performance of operating segments regardless of whether their parformance
is driven by the operating segment’s organic growth or by acguisitions. To calculate EBITA, the accounting impact of the following items is
excluded from the income from EBIT:

» the amortization of intangible assets acquired through business combinations;

« impairment losses on goodwill and cther intangibles acquired through business combnnat\ons and

« other income and charges related to transactions with shareowners, as defined above in Note 1.2.1.

Income from operations

Vivendi considers income from operations, a non-GAAP measure, to be a relevant measure to assess the performance of its operating
segments as reported in the segment data. As defined by Vivendi, income from operations is calculated as EBITA, before share-based
compensation costs related to equity-settled plans and cash-settled plans, and special items due to their unusual nature or particular
significance.

Adjusted aetincame

Vivendi considers adjusted net income, a non-GAAP measure, to be a relevant measure to assess the group’s operating and financial
performance. Vivendi Management uses adjusted net income because it better illustrates the underlying performance of continuing
operations by excluding mast non-recurring and non-operating items. Adjusted net income includes the following items:

EBITA {**);

income from equity affiliates —~ non-operational (%),

interest {*}. equal to interest expense on borrowings net of interest income earned on cash and cash equivalents;

income fraom investments {*), including dividends and interest received from unconsolidated companies; and

taxes and non-controlling interests related to these items.

It does not include the following items:

* amortization of intangibles acquired through business combinations (**] as well as impairment losses on gocdwill and other
intangibles acquired through business combinations {*} (**};

« other financiat charges and income (*), equal to capital gains or losses related to divestitures, or the depreciation of equity affiliates
and other financial investments, the profit and loss recognized in busiress combinations as well as the profit and lass related to the
change in value of financiat assets and the termination or change in valus of financial liabilities, which primarily include changes in
the fair value of derivative instruments, premiums fram the early redemption of barrowings, the aarly unwinding of derivative
instrurments, the cost of issuing or cancelling credit facilities, the cash impact of foreign exchange transactions {other than thase
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related to aperating activities, included in EBIT), as well as the effect of undiscounting assets and liabilities, and the financial
components of employee benefits {interest cost and expected return on plan assets);

s earnings from discontinued operations (*); and

e provisions far income taxes and adjustments attributable to non-controlling interests and non-recurring tax items [notably the
changes in deferred tax assets pursuant to Vivendi SA’s tax group and the Consolidated Global Profit Tax Systems, and the reversal
of tax liabilities relating to risks extinguished over the period).

{*) ltems as presented in the Consolidated Statement of EFarnings, (**} ltems as reported by each operating segment as reported in the
segment daia.

Cash Flow From Operations (CFF0)

Vivendi considers cash flew from operations {CFFQ), a non-GAAP measure, to be a relevant measure to assess the group’s operating and
financial performance. CFFQ includes net cash provided by operating activities, before income tax paid, as presented in the Statement of
Cash Flows, dividends received from equity affiliates, and unconsolidated companies, as well as cash payments for the principal of the lease
liability and any interest therean, which are presented as financing activities in the condensed statement of cash flows. It also includes
capital expenditures, net that relate to cash used for capital expenditures, net of proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment, and
intangible assets.

The difference betwean CFFO and net cash provided by operating activities consists of dividends received from equity affiliates and
unconsolidated companies and capital expenditures, net {which are included in net cash used for investing activities), income tax paid, net
and net cash provided by operating activities of discontinued operations, which are excluded from CFFO.

124  Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Assets and labilities that are expected to be realized, or intended for sala or consumption, within the entity’s normal operating cycle
(generally 12 monthsj, ara recorded as current assets or fiabilities. If thair maturity exceeds this period, they are recorded as non-current
assets or liabilities, Moreover, certain reclassifications were made to the 2018 and 2017 Consolidated Financial Statements to conform to
the presentation of the 2019 and 2018 Consolidated Financial Statements.

1.3 Principles governing the preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Pursuant to IFRS principles, the Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, with the exception of
certain assets and liabilities, notably IFRS 13 — Fair Value Measurement relating to measurement and disclosures applies. Relevant
categories are detailed below,

The Consolidated Financial Statements include the financial statements of Vivendi and its subsidiaries after eliminating intragroup items and
transactions, Vivendi has a December 31% year-end. Subsidiaries that do net have a December 31% year-end prepare interim financial
statements at that date, except when their year-end falls within the three months preceding December 31%.

Acquired subsidiaries are included in the Consolidated Financial Statements of the group as of the date of acquisition.
131 Use of estimates

The preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements in compliance with IFRS requires the group’s management to make certain estimates
and assumptions that they consider reasonable and realistic. Although these estimates and assumptions are regularly reviewed by Vivend
Management, based in particular on past or anticipated achievements, facts and circumstances may lead to changes in these estimates and
assumptions which could have an impact on the reported amount of group assets, liabilities, equity or earnings.

The main estimates and assumptions relate to the measurement of:

s revenue: estimates of provisions for returns and price guarantees {please refer to Note 1.3.4);

e goadwill and other intangible assets: valuation methads used to identify intangible assets acquired thraugh business combinations
(please refer to Note 1.3.5.2);

e goodwill, intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and assets in progress: assumptions relating to impairment tests performed
on each of the group’s cash-generating units (CGUs), future cash flows and discount rates are updated annually (please refer to
Notes 1.3.5.8 and 9);

= UMG content assets: estimates of the future performance of beneficiaries who received advances are recognized in the Statement of
Financial Position (please refer to Notes 1.3.5.3 and 10);

s provisions: risk estimates, performed on an individual basis, noting that the eccurrence of events during the course of procedures
may lead t0 a risk reassessment at any time (please refer to Notes 1.3.8 and 17);

Financial Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements far the year ended December 31, 2019 Vivendi / 41



Thursday February 13, 2020

e emplayee benefits: assumptions are updated annually, such as the probability of employees remaining within the group until
retirament, expected changes in future compensation, the discount rate and the inflatian rate (please refer to Notes 1.3.8 and 18);
+ share-based compensation: assumptions are updated annually, such as the estimated term, volatility and the estimated dividend
yield (please refer to Notes 1.3.10 and 18j;
» lease fiabilities and right-of-use assets, at the commencement date of each lease contract please refer to Notes 1.1, 1.3.5.7 and 11):
- assessing the lease term that refates to the non-cancellable perind of the lease, taking into account ali optians to extend the
lease that Vivend’ is reasonably cestain to exercise and all options to terminate the lease that Vivendi is reasonably certain not
10 exercise; and
- estimating the lessee’s incremental harrowing rate, taking into account their residual lease term and their dusation o refiect
the interest rate of a loan with a simifar payment profile to the igase payments.
o deferred taxes: estimates used for the recognition of deferred tax assets are updated annually with factors such as expected tax
rates and future tax results of the group {please refer to Notes 1.3.9 and 6); and
e certain financial instruments: valuation method at fair value defined according to the three following classification levels (please
refer to Notes 1.3.5.9,1.3.7, 13, 15 and 20}
- Level 1: fair value measurement based on quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
- Level 2: fair value measurement based on observable market data {othar than guoted prices included under Level 1); and
- Level 3: fair value measurement based on valuation techniques using inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data.
The fair value of trade accounts receivable and other, cash and cash equivalents. and trade accounts payable is a reasonable
estimate of fair value, due to the short maturity of these instruments.

1.3.2  Principles of consolidation

For a list of Vivendi's major subsidiaries, joint ventures and associated entities, please refer to Note 25.
Consofidation

All companies in which Vivend has a controlling interest, namely those in which it has the power to govern financial and operational policies
1o obtain benefits from their operations, are fully consolidated.

Control as defined by IFRS 10 ~ Consolidated Financial Statements is based on the three criteria below to be fulfilled cumulatively to assess
if the parent company exercises control:

« a parent company has powe uver a subsidiary when the parent company has existing rights that give it the current ability to direct
the relevant activities of the subsidiary, i.e., the activities that significantly affect the subsidiary’s returns. Power may arise lium
existing or potential voting rights, or contractual arrangements, Voting rights must be substantial, i.e., exercisable at any time
without limitation, particularly during decision-making processes related to significant activities. Assessment of the exercise of
power depends on the nature of the subsidiary’s relevant activities, the internal decision-making process, and the allocation of rights
among the subsidiary’s other shargowners;

« the parent company is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the subsidiary which may vary as a result
of the subsidiary's performance. The concept of returns is broadly defined and includes, among other things, dividends and other
economic benefit distributions, changes in the value of the investment in the subsidiary, economies of scale, and business synergies;
and

s the parent company has the ahility to use its power to affect the returns. Exercising power without having any impact on returns
does not qualify as control.

Consolidated Financial Statements of a group are presented as if the group was a single economic entity with two categories of owners:
(i) the owners of the parent company (Vivendi SA sharsowners) and (i) the owners of non-controlling interests (minority shareholders of the
subsidiaries). A non-controlling interest is defined as the interest in a subsidiary that is not attributable, whether directly or indirectly, to a
parent company. As a result, changes to a parent campany's ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of contral only
impact equity, as control of the economic entity does not change. Hence, in the event of the acquisition of an additional interest in a
consolidated entity after January 1, 2009, Vivendi recognizes the difference between the acquisition price and the carrying value of non-
controlling interests acquired as a change in equity attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners. Gonversely, any acquisition of contrel achieved
in stages or a loss of control gives rise to profit or loss in the statement of earnings.

Accounting for jeint acrangements
IFRS 11 — Joint Arrangements establishes principles for financial reporting by parties ta a joint arrangement.

In a joint arrangement, parties are bound by a contractual arrangement, giving these parties joint controi of the arrangement. An entity that
is a party to an arrangement shall assess whether the contractual arrangement gives all the parties or a group of the parties comtrol of the
arrangement collectively. Once it has been established that all the parties or a group of the parties collectively control the arrangement, joint
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control exists only when decisions abiout the relevant activities require the unanimous cansent of the parties that collectively control the
arrangement.

Joint arrangements are classified into two categories:

= jaint operations: these are joint arrangements whereby the parties that have joint contral of the arrangement have rights to the
assets, and abligations for the liabilities, relating to the arrangement. Those parties are called joint operators. A joint operator shall
recognize 100% of wholly-owned assets/liabilities, expenses/revenues of the joint operation, and its share of any of those items
held jointly; and

» joint ventures: these are joint arrangements whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net
assets of the arrangement. Those parties are called joint venturers. Each joint venturer shall recognize its interest in a joint venturs
as an investment and shall account for that investment using the equity method in accordance with 1AS 28 — Investments in
Associates and Joint Ventures (please see below).

Equity accounting
Entities over which Vivendi exercises significant influence as well as joint ventures are accounted for under the equity method.

Significant influence is deemed to exist when Vivendi holds, whether directly or indirectly, at least 20% of the vating rights in an entity
unless it can be clearly established that Vivendi does not exercise a significant influence. Significant influence can be evidenced through
other criteria, such as representation on the entity’s board of directors or equivalent gaverning body, participation in policy-making of
financial and operational processes, material transactions with the entity or the interchange of managerial personnel.

1.3.3  Foreign currency translation

The Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in millions of euros. The functional currency of Vivendi SA and the presentation
currency of the group is the euro,

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are initially recorded in the functional currency of the entity at the exchange rate prevailing at the date of the
transaction. At the closing date, foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are translated into the entity's functienal currency at the
exchange rate prevailing on that date. All foreign currency differences are expensed, with the exception of differences resulting from
borrowings in foreign currencies which constitute a hedge of the net investment in a fareign entity. These differences are allocated directly
to charges and income directly recognized in equity until the divestiture of the net investment,

Financial statements denominated in a foreign currency

Except in cases of significant exchange rate fluctuation, financial statements of subsidiaries, joint ventures or other associated entities for
which the functional currency is not the euro are translated into euros as follows: the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position is
translated at the exchange rate at the end of the period, and the Consalidated Statement of Farnings and the Cansolidated Statement of
Cash Flows are translated using average manthly exchange rates for the period. The resulting translation gains and lasses are recorded as
fareign currency translation differences in charges and income directly recognized in equity. In accordance with IFRS 1, Vivendi elected to
reverse the accumulated foreign currency translation differences against retained earnings as of January 1, 2004, These foreign currency
translation differences resutted from the translation into euros of the financial statements of subsidiaries that use foreign currencies as their
functional currencies. Consequently, these adjustments are not applied to earnings on the subsequent divestiture of subsidiaries, joint
ventures of associates whose functional currency is not the suro.

1.3.4 Revenues and associated costs

Revenues from contracts with customers are recorded when perfarmance abligations promised in the contract are satisfied, and for an
amount for which it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognized will not occur. Revenues
are reported net of discounts. :

Vivendi has made the accounting of intellectual property licensing reverwes a major point of attention.
Intellectual property licensing {(musical and audiovisual works)

Thesa licenses transfer to a customer either a right to use an entity's intellectual property as it exists at the point in time at which the
license is granted {static license), or a right to access an entity's intellectual property as it exists throughout the license periad {dynamic
license).

Revenues are accaunted for when the performance obligation promised in the contract is satisfied {static license) or over time upon
satisfaction (dynamic license), i.e., when the seller transfers the risks and rewards of the right to use/access the intellectual property and the

Financial Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2019 Vivendi /43



Thursday February 13, 2020

custorner obtains cantrol of the use/access of that license. Consequently, revenues from static licenses are recognized at the point in time
when the license is transferred and the customer is able to use and benefit from the license. Revenues from dynamic hicenses are accounted
for pver time, over the license period from the date the customer is able to use and benefit from the license.

Analysis of the Agent/Principal relationship in the sales transactions involving a third party

If the nature of the entity’s promise is a performance obligatian to provide the specified goeds or services itself, then the entity acts on its
own hehalf and it is "principal” in the sale’s transaction: it accounts for revenue the gross amount of consideration to which it expects to be
entitled in exchange for the goods or services provided, and the commission due to the third-party as cost of revenues. If the entity arranges
for a third-party to provide the goeds or services specified in the contract, then it recognizes as revenues the net amount of consideration to
which it expects to be entitled in exchange for the goods or services provided.

1.3.41 Universal Music Group (UMG}

Recorded Music

The sales of recorded music (physical. digital downloading or streaming) are intellectual property licenses granted by UMG to distributors or
digital platforms and which give them certain rights over the company’s musical works. In its relationship with the distributor/digital
platfarm and the end customer, UMG cannot be "principal”, as the distributor or the digital platform is responsible for setting the transfer of
control conditions of the right of use granted by the license to the end customer {broadcasting, price setting and conditions for reselling the
physical devices).

Physical sales of recorded music (CDs, DVDs and Vinyls}

These intellectual property licenses are static licenses transferring to the customer a right 10 use UMG’s recordings as they exist at the point
in time at which the license is granted, i.e., on the physical devica sold.

Revenues from the physical sales of recorded music, net of a provisian for estimated returns {please refer to Note 1.3.4.6 and rebates, if any,
are accounted for, either: (i) upon the sale to the distribiutor, at the shipping point far products sold free an board {FOB) or on delivery far
products sold free on destination; or {ii) upon the sale to the final customer for consignment sales.

Digital sales of recorded music, via downloading or streaming by subscription or free of charge

These intellectual property licenses are generally dynamic licenses providing a right to access the entire catalog of recorded music as it
exists throughout the license period considering potential add-ons to, or withdrawals from, the catalog during that period.

The consideration paid by the digital platform is variable in the form of a sales-based or a usage-based royalty. Revenues are then accounted
for when these subsequent sales or usages occur. Revenues from digital sales of recorded music, for which UMG has sufficient, accurate,
and reliable data from digital platforms, are recognized at the end of the month in which the sale or usage is made by the end customer. If
such data is not available, revenues are recognized when the digital platform notifies UMG of the sale or usage by the end customer.

For digital sales of recorded music streaming by subscription or free of charge, certain contracts may include a non-refundable minimum
guarantee which is generally recoupable and is in substance an advance payment. In the case of a dynamic license, the minimum guarantee
is spread over the period te which it relates to and takes into account the amount of royalties that is actually recoupable. The minimum
guarantee is hence apportioned in accordance with the accounting for these royalties.

Music publishing

Music publishing relates to the use by a third party of the copyrights on musical works owned or administered by UMG, which are
intellectual property licenses that UMG grant to the third party and which provides a right to access a catalog of recorded music, as these
intellectual property licenses are dynamic licenses.

The consideration paid by the third-party, notably a collection saciety {e.g., company for the collective management of intellectual-property
rights) is variable in the form of a royalty based on the usage by the third party. The variable consideration being accounted for when these
subsequent usages occur, revenues from music publishing are accounted for when the collection society notifies UMG of the usage by the
end customer and collectability is assured.

Merchandising

Revenues from merchandising are recognized either upon sale to the end customer, from direct sales during touring, concessions and aver
the internet; on delivery for sales by a third-party distributor; when a contract is signed, or when an invoice has been issued and the
colfectability is assured for sales of rights attached to merchandising products.
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1.34.2 Canal+ Group

Terrestrial, satellite or ADSL television subscription services
Subscription to programs

Each subscription to a contract for pay-TV services is considered as a series of distinct sarvices that are substantially the same and that have
the same pattern of transfer to the customer. The provision of set-top boxes, digital cards and access fees do not represent distinct services
or goods, and they are combined with the suhscription service as a single performance obligation satisfied over time, as the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by Canal+ Group's performance as the pay-TV services are supplied. In its
relationship with the third-party distributor and the end customer, Canal+ Group acts as “principal” in the transaction with the end customer
for the self-distribution contracts as it is responsible for the activation of the subscription of the end customer and for setting the selling
price.

Revenues, net of potential gratuities granted, are then accounted for over the period the service is provided from the activation date of the
subscription and as the service is provided.

Video-on-demand and television-on-demand services

The video-on-demand service, which allows customers to have unlimited access to a catalog aof programs through streaming and the
television-on-demand service, and through providing access to ore-time programs by downloading or streaming, are distinct services from
the subscription service. In its relationship with the third-party distributor and the end customer, Canal+ Group is not “principal”, as the third-
party distributor is responsible for the performance of the service bath technically and commercially.

The video-on-demand service is a performance obligation which is satisfied aver time, and the revenues are accounted for aver the period it
is provided to the customer. The television-on-demand service is & performance obligation satisfied at a point in time, and the revenues are
accounted for when the content is available for broadcasting.

Sales of advertising spaces

These are sales of television advertising spaces {in the form of classic TV commercials and of partnerships for shows or evants) or onling
advertising spaces {videos and advertising banners),

Pay and free-to-air television

In regard to commercials, the distinct parformance obligation is the reach of a given gross rating point (GRP} which generally camprises a set
of advertising messages aimed at a specific target audience and satisfied over time. Revenues from these sales. net of rebates if any, are
accounted for over the period of the advertising campaign, generally because the advertising commercials are broadcasted considering
potential free periods granted.

Website

Each type of advertising imprint (advertising display} represents a distinct performance cbligation, because the advertiser can benefit
separately frem each type of advertising imprint, satisfied at a point in time. Revenues from the sale of online advertising spaces, net of
rebates, if any, are accounted for when the advertising imprints are produced, i.e., when the advertisements are broadcasted on the website.

Film and television programs

Physical sales of mavies (DVDs and Blu-rays}

Please refer to the section on physical sales of recorded music (CDs, DVDs and Vinyls) at UMG.
Sales of exploitation rights of audiovisual works

These sales are intellectual property licenses granted by Canal+ Group to broadcasters ar to distributors and which give them certain rights
over its audiavisual works. Thase licenses are static licenses because they transfer a right to use the films as they exist at the point in time
at which the licenses are granted, In its relationship with the third-party distributor and the end customer, Canal+ Group is not “principal” in
the transaction with the end customer, as the distributor is responsible for the delivery of the film and for the price setting to the end
customer.

Revenues from the sale of the exploitation rights are recorded from the moment the client is able to use it and obtain the remaining benefits.
When the consideration paid by the customer is a fixed price, revenues from the sales of exploitation rights are recorded from the latest of
the delivery and the opening of the exploitation window set contractually or legaily {refer to the media chronclogy in France). When the
consideration paid by the custamer is variable in the form of a sales-based royalty to the end customer, revenues are recognized as the
subseguent sale cecurs.
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1.3.43 Havas Group

Revenues from Havas Group derive substantially from fees and commissions for its activities:
e Creative: advice and services provided in the fields of communications and media strategy; and
* Media: planning and purchase of advertising spaces.

For each sale's transaction, Havas Group identifies if it acts as “principal” or not, based on its level of responsibility in the execution of the
performance obligation, the control of the inventory and the price setting. Revenues are then recognized, net of costs incurred for production
when Havas Group does not act as “principal”.

When Havas Group acts as “principal”, certain pass-through costs rebillad to custamers, which were deducted from revenues in accordance
with IAS 18 {applicable until Gecember 31, 2017}, are now recorded as revenues and as costs of revenues in accordance with IFRS 15. Given
that these pass-through costs are not included in the measurement of the operating performance, Havas Group decided to use a new
indicator, "net revenues”, corresponding to revenues less these pass-through costs rebilled to customers,

Commissions are accounted for at a point in time, either at the date the service is performed or at the date the media is aired or published,

Fees are accounted for as revenues as per the following:
e ane-off or project feas are recagnized at the point in time when the service is performed. If these fees include a qualitative aspect,
they are result is assessed by the client at the end of the project; and
e fixed fees are generally recognized over time on a straight-line basis reflecting the expected duration of the service; fees based on
time spent are recagnized as work is performed.

Certain contractual arrangements with clients alse include perfermance incentives pursuant to which Havas Group is entitled to receive
additional payments based upon its performance for the client, measured against specified qualitative and quantitative objectives. Havas
Group recognizes the incentive portion of the revenue under these contractual arrangements when it is considered highly probable that the
gualitative and quantitative goals are achieved in accordance with the arrangements.

1.3.44 Editis

Physical sales of books

The intellectual property licenses presented in Note 1.3.5.3 are static licenses transferring to the customer a right to use books sold by Editis
as they exist at the paint in time at which the license is granted, i.e., on the physical device sald.

Revenues from the physical saies of books, net of a provision for estimated retums {please refer to Note 1.3.4.6) and rebates, if any, are
accounted at the shipping point of products,

1.3.45 Gameloft

Digital sales of video games on mobile devices

The gaming experience sold by Gameloft is composed of a license to use a video game on mobile devices {which can be pre-set on the
mobile terminal}, and, if any, adds-in, which allows the player to progress i the video game {virtual elements, time-limited events and muiti-
player functionality).

The grant of a video game to an end customer through a third-party distributor, digital platform, telecom operator or mobile device
manufacturer, as well as the virtual elements acquired in the video game, the time-limited events and the mult-player functionality,
represent a single perfarmance abligation in the form of an intellectual property license granted by Gamelaft ta third-party distributors.

These licenses are static because they transfer a right to use the videa game as it exists at the point in time at which the license is granted,
as Gameloft has no obligation to update the video game. In its relationship with the third-party distributor and the end customer, Gameloft
acts as “principal” in the transaction with the end customer, when Gameloft is responsible for providing the video game license and for
setting the price ta the end customer.

The consideration pait by the third-party distributor s variable in the form of a sales-based royalty. Revenues are then accounted for when
the subsequent sale occurs.
Sales of advertising spaces in video games, in the form of videos and advertising banners

The advertising display in a video game is an advertising imprassion corresponding to a distinct performance obligation, as the advertiser can
benefit separately from each type of advertising impression, satisfied at a paint in time.
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Revenues from the sale of advertising spaces in video games, net of rebates if any, are then accounted for wher the advertising impressions
are produced, i.e., when the advertisements are published. When the sale is made by a third party [media agency or auction platform,
Gameloft is generally “principal” in the sale’s transaction with the advertiser, notably when Gameloft is responsible for technically supplying
the advertising impression, as well as for setting the price.

1346 Other

Provisions for estimated returns and price guarantees are deducted from sales of products to customers through distributors. The
provisions are estimated based on past sales statistics and take into account the economic environment and product sales forecast to final
customars.

Selling, general and administrative expenses primarily include salaries and employee henefits, rent, consulting and service fees,
insurance costs, travel and entertainment expenses, administrative department costs, pravisions for receivables and other operating
expenses.

Advertising costs are expensed when incurred.

Slotting fees and cooperative advertising expenses are recorded as a reduction in revenues. However, cooperative advertising at UMG
is treated as a marketing expense and expensed when its expected benefit is individualized and can be estimated.

135  Assets
1.3.5.1 Capitalized financial interest

When appropriate, Vivendi capitalizes financial interest incurred during the construction and acquisition peried of intangible assets, and
property, plant and equipment, these interests being included in the cost of gualifying assets.

1.35.2 Goodwill and business combinations

Business combinations from January 1, 2009

Business combinations are recorded using the acguisition methad. Under this method, upon the initial consalidation of an entity aver which
the group has acquired exclusive control:
e the identifiable assets acquired and the fiabilities assumed are recognized at their fair value on the acquisition date; and
« non-controlling interests are measured either at fair value or at the non-cantrolling interest’s proportionate share of the acquiree’s
net identifiable assets. This option is available on a transaction-by-transaction basis.

On the acquisition date, goodwill is initially measured as the difference between:
(i) the fair value of the consideration transferred, plus the amount of non-contralling interests in the acquiree and, in a business
combination achieved in stages, the acquisition-date fair value of the previously held equity interest in the acquiree; and
(i1} the net fair value af the identifiable assets and liabilities assumed on the acquisition date.

The measurement af non-controlling interests at fair value results in an increase in goodwili up to the extent attributable 1o these interests,
thereby leading to the recognition of a “full goodwill”. The purchase price allocation shall be performed within 1Z months after the
acquisition date. If goodwill is negative, it is recognized in the Statement of Eamnings. Subsequent to the acquisition date, goodwill is
measured at its initial amount less recorded accumulated impairment losses {please refer to Note 1.3.5.8 below}.

[n addrtion, the following principles are applied to business combinations:

= on the acquisition date, to the extent possible, goodwill is allocated to each cash-generating unit likely to benefit from the business
combination;

« contingent consideration in a business combination is recorded at fair value on the acquisition date, and any subseguent adjustment
occurring after the purchase price allocation period is recognized in the Statements of Earnings;

s acquisition-related costs are recognized as expenses when incurred;

+ in the event of the acquisition of an additional interest in a subsidiary, Vivendi recognizes the difference betwaen the acquisition
price and the carrying value of non-controlling interests acquired as a change in equity attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners; and

e goodwill is nat amartized.
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Business comhinations prior to January 1, 2009

Pursuant to IFRS 1, Vivendi elected not to restate business combinations that occurred prior to January 1, 2004. IFRS 3, as published by the
IASB in March 2004, retained the acquisition method. However, its provisions differed from those of its revised standard in respect of the
main following items:
« minority interests were measured at their preportionate share of the acquiree's net identifiable assets as there was no option for
measurement at fair valug;
e contingent consideration was recognized in the cost of acquisition anly If the payment was likely ta occur and the amounts could be
reliably measured,
transaction costs that were directly attributable to the acquisition formed part of acquisition costs; and
in the event of the acquisition of an additional interest in a subsidiary, the difference hetween the acquisition cost and the carrying
value of minority interests acquired was recognized as goodwill,

1.35.3 Content assets

UMG

Royalty advances to artists, songwriters, and co-publishers are capitalized as an asset when their current popularity and past parformances
pravide a reasonable basis ta cenclude that the probable future recoupment of stch royalty advances against earnings otherwise payable 1o
them is reasonably assured. Rovalty advances are recognized as an expense as subsequent royalties are earned by the artist, songwriter ar
co-publisher. Any portion of capitalized royalty advances not deemed to be recoverable against future royalties is expensed during the period
in which the loss becomes evident. These expenses are recorded in cast of revenues.

Rovyalties earned by artists, songwriters, and co-publishers are racognized as an expense in the period during which the sale of the product
occurs, less a provision for estimated returns.

Change in estimate

Music rights and catalogs include music catalogs, artists’ contracts and music publishing rights acauired through business combinations. The
annual review of the value of the intangible assets, undertaken by Vivend: at year-end 2016 led to a change in the amortization method of
music rights and catalogs as from January 1, 2017, which natably resulted in an extension of the amortization periad from 15 to 20 vears. As
part of this review, Vivendi concluded that the value of music rights and catalogs had increased and that the useful life was longer than
previously estimated, given recent changes in the outlook for the international music market, driven in particular by the development of
subscription streaming services. 1n 2017, U impact over the period of this forward-looking change in estimate on the amortization expense
amounted to €94 million {net of deferred taxes).

Canal+ Group
Film, television or sports hroadcasting rights

When entering into contracts for the acquisition of film, television or sports brosdcasting rights, the rights acquired are classified as
contractual commitments. They are recorded in the Statement of Financial Position and classified as content assets as follows:
» film and television broadcasting rights are recognized at their acquisition cost when the program is available for screening and are
expensed over their broadcasting period;
» sports broadcasting rights are recognized at their acguisition cost at the opening of the broadcasting period of the related sports
season or upon the first payment and are expensed as they are broadcast; and
« expensing of film, television or sports broadcasting rights s incfuded in cast of revenues.

Theatrical films and televisjon rights produced or acquired to be sold to third parties

Theatrical films and television rights produced or acquived before their initial exhibition to be sold to third parties, are recorded as a cantent
asset at capitalized cost {mainly direct production and overhead costs) or at their acquisition cost. The cost of theatrical films and television
rights are amortized, and other related costs are expensed, pursuant to the estimated revenue method (i.e., based on the ratio of the current
period’s gross revenues to estimated total gross revenues from all sources on an individual production basis). Vivendi considers that
amortization pursuant to the estimated revenue method reflects the rate at which the entity plans to consume the future econamic benefits
related to the asset, and there is a high correlation between revenue and the consumption of the economic benefits embodied in the
intangible assets.

Where appropriate, estimated fosses in value are provided in fuli against earnings for the period in which the fosses are estimated, on an
individual product basis.
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Film and television rights catalogs

Catalogs comprise film rights acquired for a second television screening, or produced or acquired film and telavision rights that are sold to
third parties after their first television screening (i.e., after their first broadcast on a free terrestrial channel). They are recegnized as an asset
at their acquisition or transfer cost and amortized as groups of films, or individually, based respectively on the estimated revenue method.

Editis
Editorial creatien

Editorial creation costs include all expenses incurred during the first phase of the production of a waork {i.e., pre-press, reading, correction,
flat-rate translation, photo rights, illustration, iconographic research, layout). The editorial phase covers the period of conception, creation
and fine-tuning of a final layout,

Editarial creation expenditures are accounted for as a fixed asset if and only if:
« the costs can be reliably measured and relate to clearly individualized projects.
s the publishing company can demonstrate the technical and commercial feasibility of the project, and
s the publishing cempany can demanstrate the existence and intent of probable future ecanomic benefits and the availability of
sufficient resources to complete the development and marketing of the baok.
Expenses relating to research budgets and market research are considered as expenses when incurred, For all projects, criteria for the
recognition of intangible assets and the classification of expenditures are determined so as to be allocated by project.

Copyrights

Advances paid to avthers {e.g., capital gains, guaranteed advances and minimum guaranteed payments) are recorded as intangible assets.
1.3.5.4 Research and development costs

Research costs are expensed when incurred. Development expenses are capitalized when the feasibility and, in particular, profitability of the
project can reasonably be considered certain.

Cost of internal use software

Direct internal and external costs incurred for the development of computer software for internal use, including website development costs,
are capitalized during the application development stage. Application development stage costs generally include software configuration,
coding, installation and testing. Costs of significant upgrades and enhancements resulting in additional functionality are also capitalized.
These capitalized costs are amortized over 5 to 10 years. Maintenance, minor upgrades, and enhancement costs are expensed as they are
incurred.

Cost of developing video games

Development costs of video games are capitalized when both the technical feasibility and the management's intention to complete the game
so that it will be available for use and sale are verified, and when the recoverability is reasonably assured. Because of the uncertainty that
exists regarding those criteria, the recognition requirements of IAS 38 are usually not met until the game is launched. Therefore, costs of
developing mobite games are usually expensed as ingurred.

1.3.55 Other intangible assets

Intangible assets separately acquired are recorded at cost, and intangible assets acquired in connection with a business combination are
recorded at their fair value at the acquisition date. The histosical cost model is applied to intangible assets after they have been recognized.
Assets with an indefinite useful |ife are not amortized but are subject to an annual impairment test. Amortization is accrued for assets with a
finite useful life. Useful life is reviewed at the end of each reparting period.

Other intangible assets include trade names, custormer bases and licenses. By contrast, music catalogs, trade names, subscribers’ bases and
market shares generated internally are not recognized as intangible assets.

1.3.5.6 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipmen: are carried at historical cost less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost
includes the acquisition cost or production cost, costs directly attributable to transporting an asset to its physical location and preparing it for
its operational use, the estimated costs relating to the demolition and the collection of property, plant and equipment, and the rehabilitation
of the physical location resulting from the incurred abligation.
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When property, plant and equipment include significant companents with different useful lives, they are recorded and amortized separately.
Amartization is calculated using the straight-line method based on the estimated useful life of the assets. Useful lives of the main
companents are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and are as follows:
buildings: 5 to 40 years;
» gquipment and machinery: 3 to 8 years;
« set-top boxes: 5 1o 7 years; and
= other: 2 t0 10 years.

After initial recognition, the cost model is applied to property, plant and equipment.

Vivendi has elected not to apply the option available under IFRS 1, involving the remeasurement of certain property, plant and equipment at
their fair value as of January 1, 2004.

Untit December 31, 2018, and in accordance with {FRS 1, Vivend decided on January 1, 2004 to apply IFRIC Interpretation 4 - Determining
whether an arrangement contains a lease, which mainly applies to commercial supply agreements for the Canal+ Group satellite capacity,
which are commercial service agreements that, in general, do not convey a right to use a specific asset. Contract costs under these
agreements are conseqguently expensed as operational costs for the peried.

1357 Leases

Please refer to Note 1.1 for a description of the first-time adaption of IFRS 18 as of January 1, 2019.

From that date, the accounting of real estate leases for which Vivendi is the lessee results, at the commencement date, in the recegnition of
a lease liability equal to the present value of future lease payments, against a right-of-use asset relating to leases.

For each lease, the lease term assessment and incremental borrowing rate estimate are determined at the commencement date.

After initial recognition, the lishility is:
s increased by the effect of undiscounting {interest expense on lease liabilities);
e decreased by the cash out for lease payments; and
» reassessed in the event of an amendment to the lease contract.

The right-of-use asset is recognized at cost at the effective date. The cost of the right-of-use asset includes:
+ thelease liability,
s the imtial dirgct costs {inciemental costs of obtaining the lease);
s payments made prior 1o the commencement date less lease incentives received from the Jessor;
dismantling and restoration costs [measured and recognized in accordance with JAS 37); and
the amortization period used is the lease term,

1.35.8 Assetimpairment

Each time events or changes in the econamic environment indicate a risk of impairment of goodwill, ather intangible assets, property, plant
and equipment, and assets in progress, Vivendi re-examines the value of these assets. In addition, in accordance with applicable accounting
standards, goodwill, ather intangible assets with an indefinite useful life, and intangible assets in progress are all subject to an annual
impairment test undertaken in the fourth quarter of each fiscal year. This impairment test is performed to compare the recoverable amount of
each Cash Generating Unit {CGU) or, if necessary, groups of CGU to the carrying value of the corresponding assets (including goodwill). A
CGU is the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other
assets or groups of assets. Vivendi operates through different media and content businesses. Each business offers different products and
services that are marketed thraugh various channels. CGUs are independently defined at each business level, corresponding to the group
operating segments. For a description of Vivendi's CGUs and groups of CGUs, please refer to Note 3.

The recoverable amount is determined for each individual asset as the higher of: i} its value in use; and {ii) its fair value {less costs to sell) as
described hereafter. If the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of other assets or groups of assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the group of assets. In particular, an impairment test of goodwill is performed by Vivendi for each CGU
or group of CGUs, depending on the level at which Vivendi Management measures return on aperations.

The value in use of each asset or group of assets is determined, subject to exceptians, as the discounted value of future cash flows
[Discounted Cash Flow method {DCFY) by using cash flow projections consistent with the budget of the following year and the most recent
forecasts prepared hy the operating segments.

Applied discount rates are determined by reference to available external sources of information, usually based an financial institutions’
benchmarks, and reflect the current assessment by Vivendi of the tme value of money and risks specific to each asset or group of assets.
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Perpetual growth rates used for the evaluation of CGUs are those used to prepare budgets for each CGU or group of CGUs, and beyond the
period covered, are consistent with growth rates estimated by the business by extrapolating growth rates used in the budgets, without
exceeding the long-term average growth rate for the markets in which the group operates.

The fair value {less costs to sell) is the price that would be received from the sale of an asset or group of assets in an orderly transaction
between markat participants at the measurement date, less costs to sell. These values are generally determined on the basis of market data
{stock market prices or comparison with similar listed companies, with the value attributed ta similar assets or companies in recent
transactions) or, in the absence of such data, on the basis of discontinued cash flows.

If the recoverable amount is lower than the carrying value of an asset or group of assets, an impairment loss equal to the difference is
recognized in EBIT. In the casa of a group of assets, this impairment loss is first recorded against goodwill,

The impairment Josses recognized in respect of property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets (pther than goodwill) may be reversed in
a later period if the recoverable amount becomes greater than the carrying value, within the limit of impairment losses previously recognized.
Impairment losses recognized in respect of goodwill cannot be reversed st a later date.

1.35.9 Financial assets

Financial assets are initially recognized at fair value correspanding. in general, to the consideration paid, which is best evidenced by the
acquisition cost (including associated acquisition costs, if any). Thergafter, financial assets are measured at fair value or at amortized cost
depending on which financial asset category they belong to.

From January 1, 2018, financial assets are classified into the accounting categories "financial assets at amortized cost”, “financial assets at
fair value through other comprehensive income” and “financial assets at fair value through profit or loss”.

This classification depends on the entity’s husiness model for managing the financial assets and on contractual terms enabling to determine
whether the cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest {SPPI). The financial assets that contain an embedded derivative should
be considered in full to determine whether their cash flows are SPPI.

Financial assets at fair value

Ihese include financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income, derivative financial instruments with a positive value
(please refer to Note 1.3.7) and other financial assets measured at fair value through profit or Joss. Most of these financial assets are
actively traded in arganized financial markets, as their fair value is calculated by reference to the published market price at the period end.
Fair value is estimated for financial assets which do not have a published market price on an active market. As a last resart, when a reliable
estimate of fair value cannat be made using valuation technigues in the absence of an active market, the group values financial assets at
histarical cost, less any impairment losses.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income include:

» unconsolidated companies that are nat held for trading: Vivendi elected to classify these into the category "fair value through other
comprehensive income”. Unrealized gains and losses on financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are
recognized in charges and income directly recognized in equity until the financial asset is sold, collected or removed from the
Statement of Financial Position in another way, at which time the accumulated gain or loss previously reported in charges and
income directly recognized in equity is transferred to retained earnings and never reclassified to profit or loss. Dividends and
interest received from unconsolidated companies are recognized in profit or loss; and

e debt instruments held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets. and whose contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding. Unrealized gains and losses on financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income are recagnized in charges and inceme directly recognized in equity until the financial asset is sold, collected
or remaved from the Statement of Financial Position in other ways, at which time the accumulated gain or loss previously reported
in charges and income directly recognized in equity is expensed in other financial charges and income.

Other financial assets measured at fair value through profit or less mainly consist of assets held for trading which Vivendi intends to sell in
the near future (primarily marketable securities) and other financial assets unless it is measured at amortized cost or at fair value through
other comprehensive income. Unrealized gains and losses on these assets are recognized in other financial charges and income.

Financial assets at amortized cost

Financial assets at amartized cost consist of debt instruments held within a business mode! whose objective is to hold financial assets te
collect cantractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest an the principal amount cutstanding. At the end of each
period, these assets are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. If there is objective evidence that an impairment
loss has been incurred, the amount of this loss, measured as the difference between the financial asset's carrying value and its recoverable
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amount (equal to the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset's initial effective interest ratel, is
recognized in profit or loss. Impairment losses may be reversed if the recoverable amount of the asset subsequently increases in the future.

Impairment of financial assets

Vivendi assesses the expected credit loss associated with its financial assets recognized at amortized cost and debt instrument recognized at
fair value through other comprehensive income on a prospective basis. A loss aflowance for expected credit loss based on probability of
default is recognized at initial recognition. The loss allowance is updated for changes in these expected credit Josses at each reporting date
1o reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

To assess whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk, Vivendi compares the credit risk at the reporting date with the credit
risk at the date of initial recognition based on reasonable forward-looking information and events, including credit ratings if available,
significant adverse economic changes (actual or expected), financial or business environment that are expected to result in a material change
in the berrower's ability to mast its obligations.

The definition of default and write off policy are defined specifically within each aperating entity.
1.3.5.10 Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost comprises purchase costs, production costs and other supply and
packaging costs. These are usually calculated using the weighted average cost method. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in
the normal course of business, less estimated completion costs and selling costs.

1.35.11 Trade accounts receivable

Trade accounts receivable are initially recognized at fair value, which is generally equal to their nominal value. Expected loss rates on trade
receivables are calculated by the relevant operating entities over their lifetime from initiat recognition and are based on historical data that
also incorporates forward-looking information. In addition, account receivables from customers subject to insolvency proceedings or
customers with whom Vivendi is involved in litigation or a dispute are generally impaired in full.

1.3.5.12 Cash and cash equivalents

The "cash and cash equivalents” category, defined in accordance with 1AS 7, consists of cash in banks, manetary UCITS, which satisfy the
ANC's and AMF’s decision refeased in November 2018, and other highly liquid investments with initial matutities of generally three months
or Jess. Invesiments in securities, investments with injtial maturities of more than three months without an early termination option and bank
accounts subject to restrictions (blocked acceunts), other than restrictions due to regulations specific to a country or activity sector {e.g..
exchange controls), are not classified as cash equivalents but as financial assets. Moreover, the histarical performances of the investmants
are monitored regularly to confirm their cash equivalents accounting classification.

136  Assets held for sale and discontinued operations

A non-current asset or a group of assets and liabilities is held for sale when its carrying value may be recovered principally through its
divestiture and not by its continued utilization. To meet this definition, the asset must be available for immediate sale and the divestiture
must be highly probable. These assets and liabilities are recognized as assets held for sale and liabilities associated with assets held for
sale, without offset. The refated assets recorded as assets held for sale are valued at the lowest value between the fair value (net of
divestiture fees) and the carrying value (i.e., at their cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses), and are no longer
depreciated.

An operation is qualified as discontinued when it represents a separate major line of business and the criteria for classification as an asset
held for sale have been met or when Vivendi has sold the asset. Discontinued aperations are reported on a single line of the Statement of
Earnings for the periads reported. comprising the earnings after tax of discontinued operations until divestiture and the gain or loss after tax
on sale or fair value measurement, Jess costs to divest the assets and liabilities of the discontinued operations. In addition, cash flows
generated hy discontinued operations are reported on a separate line of the Statement of Consolidated Cash Flows for the relevant periods.

1.3.7 Financial liabilities
Long-term and short-term borrowings and other financial liabilities include:
« bonds and credit facilities, as well as various other borrowings (including commercial paper and debt related to finance leases) and

related accrued interest:
» abligations arising out of commitments to purchase non-controlling interests;
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s bank overdrafts: and
« the negative value of other derivative financial instruments. Derivatives with positive values are recorded as financial assets in the
Statement of Financial Positian.

Borrowings

All borrowings are initially accounted for at fair value net of transaction costs directly attributable to the borrowing. Borrowings bearing
interest are subsequently valued at amortized cost, applying the effective interest method. The effective interest rate is the internal yield
rate that discounts future cash flows over the term of the borrowing. In addition, where the borrowing comprises an embedded derivative
le.g.. an exchangeable bond) or an equity instrument {e.g., a convertible bond), the amortized cost is calculated for the debt component only,
after separation of the embedded derivative ar equity instrument. In the event of a change in expected future cash flows (e.g., redemption
occurs earlier than initiatly expected), the amortized cost is adjusted against earnings to reflect the value of the new expected cash flows,
discounted at the initial effective interast rate.

Commitments to purchase non-controlling interests

Vivendi has comeitted to purchase the nan-controlling interests of some of the minority shareowners of its fully conselidated subsidiaries.
These purchase commitments may be optional (e.g., put options) or mandatory (e.g., forward purchase contracts).

The fellowing accounting treatment has been applied in respect of commitments made on or after January 1, 2009:

* upon initial recognition, the commitment to purchase non-controlling interests is recognized as a financial liahility for the present
value of the purchase price under the put option or forward purchase contract, mainly offset by the book value of non-controlling
interests and the remaining balance through equity attributable to Vivendi SA sharecwners;

« subsequent changes to the valus of the commitment are recognized as a financial liability through an adjustment to equity
attributable ta Vivendi SA shareowners; and

* upon matuyrity of the commitment, if the non-controlling interests are not purchased, the previously recognized entries are reversed; if
the non-controlling interests are purchased, the amount recagnized in financial liabilities is reversed, offset by the cash outflow
relating to the purchase of the non-controlling interests.

Derivative financial instruments

Vivendi uses derivative financial instruments to manage and reduce its exposure to fluctuations in interest rates, and foreign currency
exchange rates. All instrumenits are aithar listed on organized markets or traded over-the-counter with highly-rated counterparties. These
instruments include interest rate and currency swaps, and forward exchange contracts. All these derivative financial instruments are used
for hedging purposes. At the inception of the hedging relationship there is the formal designation and documentation of the hedging
relationship and the entity's risk management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge.

Derivatives are initially measured at fair value on the settlement date and are subsequently remeasured at fair value on each succeeding
reparting date. The recognition of subsequent changes in fair value depends an whether the derivative is designated as a hedging instrument
and, if applicable, the nature of the hedged item and the type of hedging relatienship designated. When these contracts gualify as hedges
for accounting purposes, gains and losses arising on these contracts are offset in earnings against the gains and losses relating to the
hedged item. f

When farward contracts are used as hedging instruments, Vivendi only qualifies as hedging instruments the change in the fair value of the
forward contract related to the variation of the spot exchange rate. Changes in the forward points are excluded from the hedging relationship
and are recognized in financial result,

Fair value hedge

When the derivative financial instrument hedges exposures to fluctuations in the fair value of an asset or a liability recognized in the
Statement of Financial Position or of a firm commitment which is not recognized in the Statement of Financial Position, it is a fair value
hedge. The instrument is remeasured at fair value in earnings, with the gains or losses arising on remeasurement of the hedged partion of
the hedged item offset on the same line of the Statement of Earnings, or, as part of a forecasted transaction relating to a non-financiat asset
or liability, at the initial cost of the asset or liability.

Cash flow hedge

When the derivative financial instrument hedges cash flows, it is a cash flow hedge. The hedging instrument is remeasured at fair value and
the portion of the gain or loss that is determined to be an effective hedge is recognized through charges and income directly recognized in
equity, whereas its ineffective portion is recognized in earnings, or, as part of a forecasted transaction on a non-financial asset or liability,
they are recognized at the initial cast of the asset or liability. When the hedged item is realized, accumulated gains and fosses recognized in
equity are released to the Statement of Earnings and recorded on the same line as the hedged item.
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Net investment hedge

When the derivative financial instrument hedges a net investment in a foreign operation, it is recognized in the same way as a cash flow
hedge, Derivative financial instruments which do not gualify as a hedge for accounting purposes are remeasured at fair value and resulting
gains and losses are recognized directly in sarnings, without remeasurement of the underlying instrument.

Furthermore, income and expenses relating to foreign currency instruments used to hedge highly probable budget exposures and firm
commitments contracted pursuant to the acquisition of editorial content rights (including sports, audiovisual and film rights) are recognized in
EBIT. In all other cases, gains and losses arising on the fair value remeasurement of instruments are recognized in other financial charges
and income.

1.38  Otherliabilities

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when, at the end of the reporting period, Vivendi has a legal obligatien (statutary. regulatory or contractual) or a
constructive obligation, as a result of past events, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and the gbligation can be reliably estimated. Where the effect of the time value of maney is material,
provisions are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects cutrent market assessments of the time value of
money. If the amount of the obligation cannat be reliably estimated, ne provision is recorded and a disclosure is made in the Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Employee benefit plans

In accordance with the Yaws and practices of each country in which it operates, Vivend: participates in, or maintains, employee benefit plans
praviding retirement pensions, post-retirement health care, life insurance and post-employment benefits to eligible employees, former
ermployees, retirees and such of their beneficiaries who meet the required conditions. Retirement pensions are provided for substantially all
employees through defined contribution plans, which are integrated with local social security and multi-employer plans, or defined banefit
plans, which are generally managed via group pension plans. The plan funding policy implemented by the group is consistent with applicable
government funding requirements and regulations.

Defined contribution plans
Contributions to defined contribution and multi-employer plans are expensed during the year.
Defined benefit plans

Defined benefit plans may be funded by investments in various instruments such as insurance comtracts or equity and debt vestment
securities, excluding Vivendi shares or debt instruments.

Pension expenses and defined benefit obligations are calculated by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method. This
method is based on annually updated assumptions, which include the probability of employees remaining with Vivendi until retirement,
expected changes in future compensation and an appropriate discount rate for each country in which Vivendi maintains a pension plan. The
assumptions adopted and the means of determining these assumptions, are presented in Note 18. A provision s recorded in the Statement
of Financial Position equal to the difference between the actuarial value of the related benefits {actuarial liability) and the fair value of any
associated plan assets, aind includes past service cost and actuarial gains and losses.

The cost of defined benefit plans consists of three components recognized as follows:

e the service cost is included in selling, general and administrative expenses. 1t comprises current service cost, past service cost
resulting from a plan amendment or a curtailment, immediately recognized in profit and loss, and gains and losses on settlement;

« the financial component, recorded in other financial charges and income, consists of the undiscounting of the obligation, less the
expected return on plan assets determined using the discount rate retained for the valuation of the benefit obligation; and

e the remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability (asset). recognized in items of other comprehensive income not reclassified to
profit and lass, mainly consist of actuarial gains and lasses, i.., changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation and
plan assets resulting fram changes in actuarial assumptions and experience adjustments {representing the differences hatween the
expected effect of some actuarial assumptions applied to previous valuations and the effective impact).

Where the value of plan assets exceeds benefit obligations, a financial asset is recognized up ta the present value of future refunds and the
expected reduction in future contributions.

Some other post-employment benefits, such as life insurance and medical coverage (mainly in the United States) are subjgct to provisions
which are assessed through an actuarial calculation comparable to the method used far pension provisions.
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On January 1, 2004, in accordance with IFRS 1, Vivendi decided to record unrecognized actuarial gains and losses against cansolidated
equity.
1.39 Deferred taxes

Differences existing at clesing between the tax base value of assets and liabilities and their carrying valug in the Consolidated Staternent of
Financial Position give rise to temporary differences. Pursuant to the liability method, these temporary differences result in the accounting of;
» deferred tax assets, when tha tax base value is greater than the carrying value (expected future tax saving); and
» deferred tax liabilities, when the tax base valug is lower than the carrying value (expected future tax expense).

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the expected tax rates for the year during which the asset will be realized or the liability
settled, based on tax rates {and tax regulations) enacted or substantially enacted by the closing date. They are reviewed at the end of each
year, in line with any changas in applicable tax rates.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, tax loss carry-forwards and unused tax credits, insofar as it is
prabable that a taxable profit will be available, or when a current tax liability exists to make use af those deductible temporary differences,
tax loss carry-forwards and unused tax credits, except where the deferred tax asset assaciated with the deductible temporary difference is
generated by initial recogniticn of an asset or liability in a transaction which is not a business combination, and that, at the transaction date,
does not impact earnings, nor tax income or loss.

For deductible temporary differences resulting from investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and other associated entities, deferred tax
assets are recorded to the extent that it is prabable that the temporary difference will reverse in the foreseeable future and that a taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary difference can be utilized.

The carrying value of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each closing date, and revalued or reduced to the extent that it is more or less
probable that a taxable profit will be available to allow the deferred tax asset to be utilized. When assessing the probability of a taxable
profit being available, account is taken, primarily, of prior years’ results, forecasted future results, non-recurring items unlikely to occur in the
future and the tax strategy. As such, the assessment of the group’s ability to utilize tax losses carried forward is to a large extent judgment-
based. If the future taxable results of the group proved to differ significantly from those expected, the group would be required to increase or
decrease the carrying value of deferred tax assets with a potentially material impact on the Statement of Financial Position and Statement of
Earnings of the group.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized tor all taxable temporary differences, except where the deferred tax liability results from goodwill or
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction which is not a business combination, and that, at the transaction date. does not
impact earnings, tax incame or loss.

For taxable temperary differences resulting from investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and other associated entities, deferred tax
liabilities are recorded except to the extent that both of the following canditions are satisfied: the parent, investor or venturer is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not be reversed in the
foreseeable future.

Current tax and deferred tax shall be charged or credited directly to equity, and not eamnings, if the tax relates to items that are credited or
charged directly to equity.

1.3.10 Share-based campensation

With the aim of aligning the interests of its executive management and employees with its shareholders” interests by providing them with an
additional incentive to improve the company’s performance and increase its share price on a long-term basis, Vivendi maintains several
share-based compensation plans {share purchase plans, performance share plans and bonus share plans} or other equity instruments based
on the value of the Vivendi share price {stack options), which are settled either in equity instruments or in cash. Grants under these plans are
approved by the Management Board and the Supervisory Board. In addition, the definitive grant of stock options and performance shares is
contingent upon the achievement of specific performance objectives set by the Management Board and the Supervisary Board. Moreover, all
granted plans are conditional upon active employment at the vesting date.

in additicn, Dailymotion has set up a long-term incentive plan for certain key executives. This plan will be settled in cash and the value will
be derived from the growth of Dailymotion's enterprise value.

Please refer to Note 19 for details of the features of these plans and for the status of the plans initially granted by Gameloft S.E. and by
Havas Group.

Share-based compensation is recognized as a personnel cost at the fair value of the equity instruments granted. This expense is spread over
the vesting period, i.e., three years for stock option plans and for performance share plans (two years for performance shares granted before
June 24, 2014), and two years for Vivendi's bonus share plans, other than in specific cases.

Vivendi uses a binomial model to assess the fair value of such instruments. This method relies on assumptions updated at the valuation date
such as the calculated volatility of the relevant shares, the discount rate corresponding to the risk-free interest rate, the expected dividend
yield, and the probability of relevant managers and employees remaining employed within the group until the exercise of their rights.
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Howevar, depending on whether the instruments granted are equity-settled or cash-settled, the valuation and recognition of the expense will
differ:
Equity-settled instruments:
+ the expected term of the option granted is deemed to be the mid-point between the vesting date and the end of the contractual term,
+ the value of the instruments granted is estimated and fixed at grant date; and
= the expense is recognized with a corresponding increase in equity.

Cash-settled instruments:

e the expected term of the instruments granted is deemed to be equal to one-half of the residual contractual term of the instrument for
vested rights, and to the average of the residual vesting period at the remeasurement date and the residual contractual term of the
instrument for unvested rights;

= the value of instruments granted is initially estimated at grant date and is then re-estimated at each reporting date until the payment
date and the expense is adjusted pro rata taking into account the vested rights at each such reporting date;

» the expense is recognized as a provision; and
moreaver, as plans settled in cash are primarly denominated in US dollars, the value fluctuates based on the EUR/USD exchange
rate.

Share-based compensation cost (s allacated to each operating segment, pro rata to the number of equity instruments or equivalant
instruments granted to their managers and employees.

The dilutive effect of stock options and performance shares settled in equity through the issuance of Vivendi shares which are in the process
of vesting is reflected in the calculation of diluted earnings per share.

In accordance with IFRS 1. Vivendi elected to retrospectively apply IFBS 2 as of January 1, 2004 Consequently, a) share-based
compensation plans for which rights remained to be vested as of January 1, 2004 were accounted for in accordance with IFRS 2.

14 Related parties

Group-related parties are those companies over which the group exercises exclusive control, joint control or significant influence,
sharehalders exercising joint control over group joint ventures, non-controlling interests exercising significant influence over group
subsidiaries. corporate officers, group management and directors and companies over which the Jatter exercise exclusive control, joint
control, or significant influence.

The transactions with subsidiaries over which the group exercises control are eliminated within the intersegment transactions (a list of the
group’s major consolidated entities is sct out in Note 25). Moreaver, commercial refationships among subsidiaries of the group, aggregated
in operating segments. are conducted on an arm’s fength basis en terms and conditions similar to those which would be uifered by third
parties. The operating costs of Vivendi SA’s headquarters, after the allocation of a portion of these costs to each of the group’s businesses,
are included in the Corporate operating segment.

15 Contractual obligations and contingent assets and liabilities

Once a year, Vivendi and its subsidiaries prepare detaited reports on all material contractual obligations, commercial and financial
commitments and contingent obfigations, for which they are jointly and severally iiable. These detailed reports are updated by the relevant
departments and reviewed by senior management on a regular basis. To ensure completeness, accuracy and consistency of these reports,
some dedicated internal control proceduras are carried out, including {but not limited to} the review of:
« minutes of meetings of the shareholders, Management Board, Supervisory Board and committees of the Supervisory Board in respect
of matters such as contracts, litigation, and authorization of asset acquisitions or divestitures;
o pledges and guarantees with banks and financial institutions;
« pending litigation, claims (in dispute} and environmental matters as well as related assessments for unrecorded contingencies with
internal and/or external legal counsels;
« fax examiner's reports and, if applicable, notices of reassessments and tax expense anatyses for prior years;
insurance coverage for unrecorded contingencies with the risk management depariment and insurance agents and brokers with
whom the group contracted;
» related-party transactions for guarantees and other given or received commitrents; and
more generally, majar contracts and agreements.

1.6 New IFRS standards and IFRIC interpretations that have been published but are not yet effective

IFRS standards and IFRIC interpretations issued by the IASB/IFRS IC and endorsed by the EU as of the date of approval of these Consolidated
Financial Statements, but which are not yet etfective, and for which Vivendi has not elected for an earlier application. should have no
material impact on Vivendi's Consolidated Finansial Statements.

Financial Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2019 Vivendi / 56



Thursday February 13, 2020

Note 2 Major events

21 Opening of Universal Music Group’s share capital

Folfowing the preliminary negotiations anncunced on August 6, 2019, Vivendi entered into an agreement on December 31, 2018 with a
Tencent-led consortium, which includes Tencent Music Entertainment and international financial investors, for the planned equity investment
in UMG. This agreement pravides for the purchase by the consortium of 10% of UMG's share capital, based on an enterprise value of €30
billion for 100% of UMG's share capital.

In accordance with IFRS standards, this transaction will be recorded as a sale of non-controlling interests and therefore will not impact the
Consclidated Statement of Earnings. As a result, the capital gain on the sale of 10% of Universal Music Group’s share capital, equal to the
difference between the sale price and the value in the Consolidated Financial Statements of non-controlling interests sold. will be directly
recorded as an increase in equity attributable to Vivend: SA shareowners.

The Cansortium has the option to acquire, on the same price basis, an additional amaunt of up to 10% of UMG's share capital until January
15, 2021.

This agreement will be shortly camplemented by a second agreement allowing Tencent Music Entertainment to acquire a minority interest in
the share capital of UMG's subsidiary that houses its operations in Greater China.

The merger control approvals, to which this transaction was subject, have been obtained from the relevant regulatory authorities. The closing
of the transaction is expected by the end of the first half of 2020.

In addition, Vivendi's Supervisory Board was informed of ongoing negotiations regarding the possible sale of additional minority interests,
which negotiation engagement, based on a minimum valuation of €30 billion, was announced cn December 31, 2019. Eight banks have been
mandated by Vivendi to assist it in this matter. An initial public offering is currently planned for early 2023 at the latest.

The proceeds from these different operations could be used for substantial share buyback operations and acquisitions.
22  Acquisition of Editis

On January 31, 2019, Vivendi completed the acquisition of 100% of the share capital of Antinea 6, the halding company of Editis, the second-
largest French-language publishing group. The purchase price amounted to €829 million, including the repayment of Editis Group’s debt on
that date. On January 2, 2019, the French Competition Authority authorized the transaction uncenditionally.

Consoclidation of Editis by Vivendi

As from February 1, 2019, Vivendi has fully consolidated Editis. As of December 31, 2019, the provisional goodwill attributable to Editis
amounted to €827 million (compared to a pravisicnal goodwill of €831 million as of June 30, 2019).

{in millions of euros) January 31, 2019

Purchase price for 100% of Antinea B's share capital, the holding company of Editis 332
Editis Group’s debt repaid by Vivendi 497
Purchase price for 100% of Editis 829
Carrying value of Editis's acquired assets and incurred or assumed liabilities 2
Provisional goodwill 827
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23 Acquisition of M7

On September 12, 2019, Canal+ Group completed the acquisition of M7, one of the largest independent pay-TV companies in Europe,
operating in Benetux and Central Europe.

Consolidation of M7 by Canal+ Group

As from September 12, 2019, Canal+ Group has fully consolidated M7. The purchase price allocation is expected to be performed within
twelve months of the acquisition date, in accordance with accounting standards. The final amount of goodwill may significantly differ from
the amount presented below,

{in mitlfons of euros) Septembar 12, 2019
Purchase price for 100% of M7 1,136
Carrying value of M7's acquired assets and incurred or assumed liabilities (a) 138
Provisional goodwill 998

a.  Notably included the preliminary allocation to acquired M7 subscriber bases and brands.

As from September 12, 2019, M7's contribution to Ganal+ Group's revenues amounted to £122 million.
2.4 Sale of the remaining interest in Uhisoft

On March 5, 2019, Vivendi sold the remaining part of its intarest in Utusoft {5.87% of the share capital} far €429 million, representing a
capital gain of €220 million. Vivendi is na longer a Ubisoft shareholder and maintains its commitment to refrain from purchasing Ubisoft
shares for a period of five yaars. in total. the sale of Vivendi's interest in Ubisoft represented €2 billion, i.e., a capital gain of €1.2 billion.

Note 3 Segment data

Vivendi Management evaluates the performance of its business segments and allocates necessary resources to them based on certain
operating performance tndicators {segment earnings and cash flow from operations). Income from operations and EBITA reflect the earnings
of each business segment.

The operating segments presented hereunder are strictly identical to the informalion given to Vivendi's Management Board.
Vivendi's main businesses are aggregated within the following operating segments:

« Universal Music Group: sale of recorded musig (digital and physical), exploitation of music publishing rights, as well as artist
services and merchandising.

» Canal+ Group: pubhshing and distribution of premium and thematic pay-TV and free-to-air channsls in France, Benelux, Poland,
Central Europe, Africa and Asfa, and production, sales and distribution of movies and TV series.

« Havas Group: communications group covering all the communications disciplines (creativity, media expertise and
healthcare/welingss).

» Editis: publishing group in France with leading positions in the fields of literature, educational and reference books, as well as in
baok selling and distribution.

« Gamefoft: creation and publishing of downioadable video games for mobife phones, tablets, triple-play boxes and smart TVs.

« Vivendi Village: Vivendi Ticketing {in Furape and the United States through See Tickets] and live performances through Glympia
Production, Festival Production, the venues in Paris (L'Olympia and Théatre de L'(Euvre) and in Africa {CanalQlympia).

+ New Initiatives: Dailymotion {video content aggregation and distribution platfarm} and Group Vivendi Africa {development of ultra-
high-speed Internet service in Africa).

» Corporate: central services.

Intersegment commercial operations are conducted on an arm's-length basis on terms and conditions similar to those which would be
offered by third parties.
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3.1 Revenues

By business segment

{in millions of gurgs)

Universal Music Group

Canal+ Group

Havas Group

Editis

Gameloft

Vivendi Village

New Initiatives

Elimination of intersegment transactions
Revenues

By activity

fin millions of euros)

Intellectual property licensing
Subscription services

Advertsing, merchandising and other
Elimination of intersegment transactions
Revenues

By geographical area

Revenues are broken down by custormer location.

{in millions of surps)
France

Rest of Europe
Americas
Asia/Oceania
Africa

Revenues
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Year ended December 31,

2018 2018

7,159 6,023

5,268 5h.166

2,378 2,319

687 -

259 793

141 123

77 66
{65} (58)

15,898 13,932

Year ended December 31,
7019 2018

8.042 6,508

4,589 4474

3,322 3,008

{65) {58)

15,898 13,932

Year ended December 31,
2019 2018
47927 30% 4,280 31%
3,850 24% 3.282 24%
5,001 32% 4,395 31%
1,559 10% 1,373 10%
696 4% 502 4%
15,898 100% 13,932 100%
Vivendi / 59
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32 Other main aggregates of the Statement of Earnings

Year ended Oecember 37,
(in millions of eurosj 2018 2018
Incame front operations
Universal Music Group 1,168 946
Canal+ Group 43 429
Havas Group 268 258
Editis 59 -
Gameloft (28} 4
Vivendi Village (186} (9
New Initiatives {68} {75
Cotparate {95 {110}
1.719 1.439
Restructuring charges
Universal Music Group 124} {29}
Canal+ Group 192} (28)
Havas Group 135) {30}
Editis {3} -
Gameloft (3} )
Vivendi Village {1} 2
New initiatives (i} {3i
Corporate 2} {19)
(161) {115)
Incame/f{charges) related to share-based compensation plans
Universal Music Group 19) {4
Canal+ Group i5) {3
Havas Group 1z 12
Editis - -
Gameloft 14) 2
Vivendi Village -
New [nitiatives - -
Corporate {B) 5
(32} (22}
Other nan-current aperating charges aad income
Umversal Music Group {15) n
Canal+ Group 9 2
Havas Group 4 1)
Editis {4 -
Gameloft 11 -
Vivendi Village - 2
New Initiatives 4 (17}
Corporate 3 11
{14)
Adjusted earnings before interast and income taxes (EBITA)
Universal Music Group 1124 902
Canal+ Group 343 400
Havas Group 225 215
Editis 52 -
Gameloft (36} z
Vivendi Village 7 il
New Initiatives (65) {99)
Corparate {og) 123}
1,526 1,288
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Reconciliation of EBIT to EBITA and to income from operations

{in millions of euros)

EBIT {a)

Adjustments

Amartization of intangible assets acquired through business combinations
impairment losses on intangible assets acquired through business combinations (a}
Other charges and income

EBITA

Adjustments

Restructuring charges lal

Charges related to share-based compensation plans

Other nen-curient operating charges and incame

Income from operations

a. Asreported in the Consofidated Statement of Earnings.

33  Statement of Financial Position by operating segment

Segment assets and liabilities

{in millions of euros)
Segment assets (a)
Universal Music Group
Canal+ Group
Havas Group
Editis
Gameloft
Vivendi Village
New Initiatives
Corporale
of which investments in equity affiliates
listed equity securities

Segment liabilities (b}
Universal Music Group
Canal+ Group

Havas Group

Editis

Gameloft

Vivendi Village

New Initiatives
Corporate
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‘Year ended Decemper 31,

2019 2018

1,381 1.182

125 1

20 2
- {7

1,526 1.288

161 121

32 22

- 14

1.719 1439

December 31, 2019 January 1, 2019

11,344 10,147
9,468 7,142
5.848 5,793
1,383 -

730 742
327 268
328 552
4632 5,3%
3248 3130
924 1,363

34,060 30,640
5181 4,786
2,859 2.550
4,265 4,223

535 -
109 104
204 184

7b 80

530 459
13,758 12,366

a. Segment assets include goodwill, content assets, other intangible assets, property, plant and equipment, rights-of-use relating ta
leases (as from January 1, 2019), equity affiliates, financial assets, inventories and trade accounts receivable, and other.

b Segment liabilities include provisions, other non-current liabilities, short-term and long-term lease liabilities (as from January 1, 2019)

and trade accounts payable and other.

Additional operating segment data is presented in tha following Notes: Note 9 "Goodwill” and Note 10 "Content assets and commitments”.
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Segment assets by geographic area
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{in millions of euros)

December 31, 2019

January 1, 2018

France 12,657 37% 12 661 4%
Rest of Europe 10,990 32% 7,460 24%
Americas 3,445 28% 9,436 1%
Asia/Oceania 684 7% 812 3%
Africa 284 7% 271 1%
Segment assets 34,060 180% 30,648 100%

Capex, depreciation and amortization

{in millions of euros}

Capital expenditures, net (capex net (a)
Universal Music Group

Canal+ Group

Havas Group

Editis

Gameloft

Vivendi Village

New Initiatives

Carporate

Increase in tanaible and intanaible assets and riahts-of-use relatina ta leases
Universal Music Group

Canal+ Group
Havas Group
Editis
Gameloft
Vivendi Village
New initiatives
Corporate

Napreciation of tanqible assets
Universal Music Group

Caral+ Group

Havas Group

Editis

Gameloft

Vivendi Village

New Initiatives

Corporate

Amortization of rights-of-use relating to leases
Universal Music Group

Canal+ Group

Havas Group

Editis

Gameloft

Vivendi Village

New Initiatives

Carporate

Amortization of i gihle excluding those acquired through husiness combinations
Universal Music Group

Canal+ Group

Havas Group

Editis

Gameloft

Vivendi Village

New Initiatives

Corporate
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Year ended December 31,

2019 2018
73 10
261 166
34 38
10 -
5 6
5 7
16 10
1 4
405 341
70 127
226 192
7 37
92 -
- 6
7 7
13 10
50 1
465 380
53 46
124 123
42 3
<] -
5 6
4 4
5 6
s 1
239 M
64
39 -
78 -
15
8
4 -
3 .
9 -
220 na
79 72
8 3
45 -
] ]
1 -
i 25
140 106
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{in millions of eurcs)

Amortization of intangible assets acquired through business combinations
Universal Music Group

Canal+ Group

Havas Group

Editis

Gameloft

Vivend Village

New Initiatives

Corporate

Impairment losses on intangible assets acquired through business combinations
Universal Music Group

Canal+ Group

Havas Group

Editis

Gameloft

Vivendi Village

New Initiatives

Corporate
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Year ended December 31,

2019 2018

a5 80

29 16

2 .

8 14

1 1

125 m
1
19

2

20 2

a. Relates to cash used for capital expenditures, net of proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets.

Note 4 EBIT

Personnel costs and average employee numbers

{in millions of euros) Note
Salaries

Social security and other employment charges

Capitalized personnel costs

Wages and expenses

Share-based compensation plans 19
Employee benefit plans 18
Othar

Personnel costs
Annual average number of full-time equivalent employees (in thousands)

Additignal information on operating expenses

Advertising costs amounted ta €416 million in 2019 {compared to €371 million in 2018).

Year ended December 31,

2019 2018

2,783 2538
592 537
{18) {18]

3.357 3,059

32 22

73 88

62 52

3524 32
439 41.6

Expenses recorded in the Statement of Earnings, with respect to service contracts related to satellite transponders amounted to €115 million

in 2019 {compared to €102 million in 2018).

Research and development casts amounted to a net charge of £124 million in 2019 {compared to €135 million in 2018).

Taxes on production

Taxes on production amounted to £132 million in 2019 (compared to €118 million in 2018), of which E39 million related to taxes on telavision

services (compared to €33 million in 2018}
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Note 5 Financial charges and income

Interest

{in mitions of eurost Year ended December 31,
{Chargellncome Note 2019 2013
Interest expense on borrowings (a) 0 (69} [B4)
Interest income from cash, cash equivalents and investments 23 1}
Interest {46) 47
Fees and premivms on borrowings and credit facilities issued 3 {2)

{89) {49}

a. Included the annual coupon of the €700 million bond issued by Vivendi SA and maturing in December 2019 for €31 milfion in 2019 and
€34 million in 2018 {please refer to Note 20.2),

Qther tinancial income and charges

Year ended December 31,

{in millions of euros) Note 2019 2018
Capital gain and revaluation on finangial investments (a) 198 377
Effect of undiscounting assets (b) - 18
Expected return on plan assets related to employee benefit plans 18.2 13 1
Foreign exchange gain 15 1}
Change in value af derivative mstruments 9 z
Other - -
Other finaneial income 235 18
Write-down of the Telecom ltalia shares accounted for under the equity method 12.2 - {1,066}
Capital loss and downside adjustment on financial investmants {a) {50) -
Effect of undiscounting liabilities (b} {1} [20)
Interest cost related to employee banefit plans 18.2 (29} (27)
Fees and premiums on borrowings and credit facilities issued (3} (2
Interest expenses on lease liablities n {43) na
Foreign exchange loss {13} (10)
Other {31} {58)
Other financial charges (170} (1,181)
Net total 65 (763)

na: not applicable.

a. Included the revaluation of the interests in Spotify and Tencent Music far a net amount of €139 million {compared to €317 miilion in
20181 In 2018, it inctuded a portion of the capital gain realized on the sale of the interest in Ubisoft {€53 million} recorded to profit ar
loss in accordance with the new IFRS B accounting standard, applicable since January 1, 2018.

b.  Inaccordance with applicable accounting standards, where the effect of the time value of money is material, assets and liabilities are
initially recorded in the Statement of Financial Position in an amount relating to the present vatue of the expected revenues and

expenses. At the end of each subsequent period, the present value of such assets and liabilities is adjusted to account for the passage
of time.
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Note 6 Income taxes

6.1

French Tax Group and Consolidated Global Profit Tax Systems

Vivendi SA benefits from the French Tax Group System and, up until December 31, 2011 inclusive, it henefited from the Consolidated Glabal
Profit Tax System pursuant to Article 209 guinguies of the French Tax Code. As from January 1, 2012, Vivendi SA benefits only from the
French Tax Group System.

Under the French Tax Group System, Vivendi is entitled 1o consolidate its own tax profits and losses with the tax profits and losses of the
French subsidiaries that are at least 95% owned, directly or indirectly, by it. As of December 31, 2019, this mainly applies to Universal
Music Group, Canal+ Group, Havas Group and Gameloft entities in France, as well as the companies involved in the group's development
projects in France {e.g., Vivendi Village and Dailymotion}.

Up until Decamber 31, 2011, the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System enabled Vivendi to obtain a tax authorization. This allowed the
company to consolidate its own tax profits and losses with the tax profits and losses of subsidiaries that were at lsast 50% owned,
directly or indirectly, by it and that were also located in France or abroad. This authorization was granted for an initial five-year period -
from January 1, 2004 to December 31, 2008 - and was then renewed, on May 19, 2008, for a three-year period - from January 1, 2009 to
December 31, 2011, As a reminder, on July 6, 2011, Vivend: filed a request with the French Ministry of Finance to renew its authorization
to use the Consolidated Glabal Profit Tax System for a three-year period - from January 1, 2012 to December 31, 2014,

In 2011, pursuant to changes in French Tax Law, the Censalidated Globa! Profit Tax System was terminated as of September 6, 2011, and
the deduction for tax losses carried forward was capped at 60% of taxable income. Since 2012, the deduction for tax ltosses carried
forward has been capped at 50% of taxable income.

The French Tax Group and Consolidated Global Profit Tax Systems have the following impact on the valuation of Vivendi's tax attributes {tax
losses, foreign tax receivables and tax credits carried farward):

In 2012, Vivendi, considering that it was entitled to use the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System up until the end of the authorization
period granted by the French Ministry of Finance {i.e., until December 31. 2011), filed a contentious claim for a £366 million refund in
respect of fiscal vear 2011, In a decision dated October 25, 2017, marking the end of legal proceedings brought before administrative
courts, the French Council of State (Conseil d'Etat) recognized that Vivendi had a legitimate expectation that it would be affarded the
Consolidated Global Profit Tax System for the entire period covered by the autharization, including for the fiscal year ending
December 31, 2011, Given that the power of final adjudication is vested in the French Council of State the amount of €366 million paid to
Vivendi, coupled with moratarium interest of €43 million, was definitively acquired by Vivendi. As a result, Vivendi recarded a tax income
of €409 million for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2017.

Moreover, considering that Vivendi's foreign tax receivables available upon the exit from the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System may
be carried forward after the end of the authorization period, Vivendi requested a refund of the tax paid in respect of the fiscal year ended
December 31, 201Z. On May 8, 2013, Vivendi received a refund of €201 million. This refund was then challenged by the tax authorities
as part of a tax audit and Vivendi provisioned the associated risk for a principal amount of €208 million in its Financial
Statements for the vear ended December 31, 2012, increased to €221 million as of December 31, 2013. In its Financial Statements
for the year ended December 31, 2014, Vivendi maintained and increased this provision by €11 million {the amount of additional
default interast], far a total amount of €232 million, which was subsequently decreased to €228 miflion as of December 31, 2015 after
deduction of ordinary tax credits. On March 31, 2015, as part of this audit, Vivendi made a payment of £321 million, corresponding to the
amaounts of €221 million and €11 million mentionad above, increased by additional penalties of £89 miltion.

On June 29, 2015, after the tax audit was completed, Vivendi challenged the tax authorities in regard to the tax payment, the default
interest and the penalties, for which no provision had been accrued upen the recommendation of its advisors. Vivendi has since brought
this case before the Administrative Court of Montreuil. On March 16, 2017, the Administrative Court of Montreuil ruled in favor of
Vivendi, On April 18, 2017, pursuant to this decision, Vivendi received (i) a £315 million refund relating to the principal tax amount due in
2012 (EZ18 millian), as well as default interest (E10 million) and additional penalties (€87 million), and (ii) moratorium interest
(€31 miliion), which totaled €346 million. The Ministry appealed this decision with respect to the principal tax amount due; therefore, in
its Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2017, Vivendi maintained the provision relating to the principal refund
(€218 million), the default interest (€10 million), and the moratorium interest (€23 million), i.e., a total provision of €251 million. Given
that the Ministry's appeal did nat include penalties (€87 million), Vivendi recorded a tax income of €3 million in its Financial Statements
as of December 31, 2017, relating to the portion of maratorium interest irrevocably earned by Vivendi. On November 22, 2018, the
Versailles Administrative Court of Appeal quashed the March 16, 2017 decision of the Administrative Court of Montreuil and ordered
Vivendi to pay the amount of the additional contributions to which it was subject for the year ended December 31, 2012, However, it
granted discharge of the default interest charged to Vivendi. In its financial statements for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2018,
Vivendi recorded a net income of €12 million dug to the discharge of default interest {€10 million) and the corresponding meratorium
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6.2

Pro

{in millions of euros)

Thursday February 13, 2020

interest {£2 million), reducing the total amount provisioned to €239 million {€218 million with respect to the principal amount and
£21 million with respect to moratorium interest). On December 31, 2018, Vivendi filed an appeal with the French Council of State (Consedf
o'Ftat) 1o cancel the decision of the Versailles Administrative Court of Appeal. On February 13, 2019, pursuant to a decision of the
Versailles Administrative Court of Appeal, Vivendi received a request for repayment from the tax authorities in the amount of
£239 million, satisfied on February 15, 2019,

On June 15, 2017, following the Administrative Court of Montreuil ruling of March 16, 2017, Vivendi made a claim for the repayment of
the tax amount due for the year ended December 31, 2015 (€203 million). Vivendi recorded a provision as of December 31, 2017 in the
amount of the refund requested (€203 million) and maintained this provisian in its Financial Statements for the year ended Uecember 31,
2018 pending the decision of the French Council of State (Consei! d'Etaf mentioned above.

On December 19, 2019, the French Council of State {Canseil d'Etat) ruled in favor of Vivend regarding the use of foreign tex receivables
upon exit from the Global Profit Tax System, reversing the decision of the Versailles Administrative Court of Appgal and settling this

litigation on the merits, The decision of the French Council of State {Conseil d'Fiat) on December 24, 2019 resulied in the following
Mmsasures:

o inits Financial Statements far the year ended December 31, 2019, Vivendi recorded a current tax income of £473 million, ie.,
€244 million with respect to fiscal year 2012 (€218 million principal and €26 miflion moratarium interest) and £229 million with
respect to fiscal year 2015 (€203 million principal and £26 million moratorium interest); and

o on December 27, 2019, the tax authorities repaid £223 million to Vivendi [€218 million principal and €5 million moratorium
interest). In addition, in January 2020, the tax authorities repaid €250 million to Vivend, i.e., a balance of €21 million with
respect to moratorium interest for fiscal year 2012 and £229 million with respect to fiscal year 2015 (€203 million principal and
£26 million moratorium interest).

In the Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2019, the tax results of the subsidiaries comprised within the scope of
Vivendi SA’s French Tax Group System are calculated based on estimates. As a result, the amount of tax attributes as of December 31,
2019 could not be reliably determined. As of December 31, 2019, taking into account the impact of the estimated 2019 tax results and
before the effects of the ongoing tax audits on the amount of tax attributes {please refer to Note 6.5), it is anticipated that Vivendi SA
will likely be able to achieve €763 millian in tax savings from tax attributes (based on the income tax rate applicable as of January 1,

2020, Le., 32.02%). At a rate of 25.83% applicable in 2022, it is anticipated that Vivendi would achieve €618 million in tax savings from
tax attributes.

Vivendi SA values its tax attributes on the basis of one year's forecasted results, taken from the following year's budget. On this basis, in

2020, it is anticipated that Vivendi will likely be able to achieve tax vavings of €112 million from the Franch Tax Group System [based on
the income tax rate applicable in 2020, i.e., 32.02%).

Provision for income taxes and income tax paid by geagraphic area

vision for income taxes

Year ended Dacember 31,

(Charge)/Income 2019 2018

Current

France (a) 405 (18)
Rest of Europe {24) (68)
United States {m (98)
Rest of the world {102 (98}

Deferred

202 1280)

France zn 12
Rest of Europe (b} (66) {89)
United States (c) 24 {11}
Rest of the world 1 1

(62} 4]

Provision for income taxes 140 (357)

a.

Fina

Inciuded a current tax income of €473 million resuiting from a favorable decision from the French Council of State (Conseil d'ttat on
December 19, 2019 regarding the use of foreign tax receivables upon exit from the Global Profit Tax System, i.e., £244 miilion with
respect to fiscal year 2012 (€218 miflion principal and €26 miflion moratorium interestj and €229 million with respect to fiscal year 2415
(€203 miffion principal and €26 millian moratorium interest),
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Included the deferred tax charge relating to the revaluation through profit or loss of the interests in Spotify and Tencent Music for an
aggregate amount of -€36 million in 2019, compared to -€72 million in 2018, in accordance with the new (FRS 9 accounting standard,
applicable since January 1, 2018.

The tax reform initiated in 2017 introduces significant changes to the calculation of corporate tax in the United States. As from
January 1, 2018, the federal corparate tax rate was reduced from 35% to 21%. Howaver, this tax rate decrease is accompanied by
measures that widen the taxable base by introducing a minimum tax on income earned in countries with low-tax rates {minimum tax on
global intangible low-taxed income, "GILTI"} and by introducing a taxation mechanism for expenditures that erode tax bases (base
erosion and anti-abuse tax, "BEAT"). More generally, the new law limits the deduction of expenses previously deductible without
limitation. The impacts of this new legislation recorded as of December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2019 reflect Vivendi's best
estimate. As a result, the amounts recorded will be adjusted in 2020 to take into account the clarification from the tax authorities on the
interpretation of certain of their previously issued guidelines.

Income tax paid

Year ended December 31,

{in millions of eurcs) 2019 2018
France {20} {76)
Rest of Furope (62} {47
United States {109} {43)
Rest of the world {92} {96)
Income tax {paid)/collected (283) (262)
6.3 Effective tax rate

Year ended December 31,
{in millions of euros, except %} 2019 2018
Earnings (before non-controlling interests}) 1,617 157
Eliminations
Income from equity affiliates (71} (129)
Earnings from discontinued operations - -
Provision for income taxes (140) 357
Earnings from continuing operations hefore provision for incame taxes 1,406 385
French statutory tax rate 34.43% 34.43%
Thearetical provision for incame taxes based on French statutary tax rate (484) {133}

Reconciliation of the theoretical and effective provision for income taxes

Earnings tax rates differences (a) 180 212
Impacts of the changes in tax rates {11) {2)
Use or recognition of tax losses 187 222
Depreciation or non-recognition of tax losses {114) (98]
Changes in deferred tax assets related to Vivendi SA's French Tax Group and the Consolidated Glohal Profit Tax Systems (6) (2)
Adjustments to tax expense from previcus years 64 8
Capital gain or loss on the divestiture of or downside adjustments on financial investments or businesses - 18
Favorable settlement of the litigation related to the foreign tax receivables for 2012 and 2015 473 b -
Write-down of the Telecom Italia shares accounted for under the equity method - {367) {c}
Other (149) {215)
Provision for income taxes 140 {357}
Effective tax rate -2.9% 92.6%
Adjustments

- Favorable decision of the litigation related to the foreign tax receivables for 2012 and 2015 {b) 473

- Write-down of the value of the Telecom italia shares accounted for under the equity method (c) +367
Restated effective tax rate 23.7% 24.6%

a

The tax reform initiated in 2017 introduces significant changes to the calculation of corporate tax in the United States. As from
January 1, 2018, the federal corporate tax rate was reduced from 35% to 21%. However, this tax rate decrease is accompanied by
measures that widen the taxable base by intraducing a minimum tax on income earned in countries with low-tax rates {minimum tax on
global intangible low-taxed income, "GILTI") and by intraducing a taxation mechanism for expenditures that erode tax bases {base
erasion and anti-abuse tax, "BEAT"). More generally, the new faw limits the deduction af expenses previously deductible without
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limitation, The impacts of this new legislation recorded as of December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2019 reflect Vivendi's best
estimate. As a result, the amounts recorded will be adjusted in 2020 to take into account the clarification from the tax authorities on the
interpretation of certain of their previously issued guidelines.

b. Included a current tax income of €473 mitlion resulting from a favorahle decision from the French Council af State {Lonseil d'Etati on
Oecember 19, 2019 regarding the use of foreign tax receivables upon exit from the Global Profit Tax System, ie., €244 million with
respect to fiscal year 2012 {218 million principal and £26 million moratorium interest} and £229 million with respect to fiscal year 2015
(€203 million principal and €26 million maratorium interest).

¢. In 2018, the result included the write-down of the value of the Telecom halia shares accounted for under the equity method, for
£1,066 miltian, non-taxable.

6.4 Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Changes in deferred tax assets/{liahilities), net

Year ended December 31,

{in mitlions of euros) 2018 2018

Opening balance of deferred tax assets/(liahilities), net ' {363) (a) 38
Provision for income taxes (62} {77
Charges and income directly recorded in equity 22 (13}
Other business combinations 192} -
Changes in foreign currency translation adjustments and other 240 {350} {b)
Closing balance of deferred tax assets/{liabilities}, net {255) (402)

8. As of January 1, 2019, deferred tax assets included the impact of the restatements related to the application of the new accounting
standard IFRS 16 ~ Leases for +£33 million {please refer to Notes 1.1 and 11).

b, Certain reclassificatians were made to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2018 ta canform to the
presentation of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2018, notably relating to the provisions with
respect to the 2012 foreign tax receivables (please refer to Note 6.1} and other litigation provisions.
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Components of deferred tax assets and liabilities

{in millions of euros) December 31, 2018 January 1, 2019
Deferred tax assets
Recognizable deferred taxes

Tax attributes - Vivendi SA Tax Group (a} {b) 765 781
Tax attributes - US Tax Groug (a) (c) 139 214
Tax attnibutes - Havas Group la) 269 274
Tax attributes - Other subsidiaries (a} 351 279
Other 805 731
Of which non-deductible provisions 125 115
employee benefits 2n 169
working capital 171 177
Total gross deferred taxes 2,329 2,279
Deferred taxes, unrecognized
Tax atributes - Viverdi SA Tax Group (a) (b} {653) (667
Tax attributes - US Tax Group {a} (¢} {139) (214)
Tax attributes - Havas Group {a) {257} (249)
Tax attributes - Other subsidiaries (a) {320) (255}
Other {178} (181}
Total deferred tax assets, unrecognized {1,547) {1,566)
Recorded deferred tax assets 782 713

Deferred tax liahilities

Asset revaluations (d) {434) (335)
Other (603) (741)
Recorded deferred tax liabilities (1,037} {1.076)
Deferred tax assets/{liabilities), net {255) {363)
a.  The amounts of tax attributes presented in this table, were estimated at the end of the relevant fiscal years. In jurisdictions which are

significant to Vivendi, mainly France and the United States, tax returns are filed on May 1 and September 15 at the |atest of the
following year, respectively. As a result, the amount of tax attributes shown in this table and the amount reported to tax authorities may
giffer, and if necessary, may need to be adjusted in this table at the end of the following year.

Related to deferred tax assets recognizable in respect of tax attributes by Vivendi SA as head of the French Tax Group {please refer to
Maote 6.1); i.e., £765 million as of December 31, 2019 {campared to €781 million as of December 31, 2018}, in respect of tax losses only,
taking into account the estimated impact {-€16 million) of the 2019 transactions (taxable income and use or expiration of tax credits),
hut before taking into actount the final contingent outcome of angoing tax audits {please refer to Note 6.5). In France, tax losses can be
carried forward indefinitaly and the foreign tax receivables can be carried forward upon exit fram the Consolidated Global Profit Tax
System.

Primanily related to deferred tax assets recognizable in respect of tax credits carried forward by Universal Music Group, Inc. in the
United States as head of the US Tax Group, i.e., $154 million as of December 31, 2019 {compared to $244 million as of December 31,
2018), taking into account the estimated impact {-$90 million} of 2019 transactions, but before taking into account the final contingent
outcome of ongoing tax audits {ptease refer to Note 6.5),

These tax liabilities, stemming from asset revaluations and resulting from the purchase price allocaticn of entities acquired by the
group, are cancelled upon amartization or divestiture of the related assets and do not and will not generate any current tax liabilities.
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6.5 Tax litigation

In the normal course of their business, Vivendi SA and its subsidiaries are subject to tax audits by the relevant tax authorities in the countries
in which they conduct or conducted business. Various tax authorities have proposed adjustments to the financial results reported by Vivendi
and its subsidiaries for fiscal year 2018 and prior years, under statutes of limitation applicable to Vivendi and its subsidiaries. In litigation
situations, Vivendi's policy is to pay the taxes it intends to contest, and to seek & refund through appropriate legal proceedings. Regarding
ongoing tax audits, no provision is recorded where the impact that could result from an unfavorable outcome cannot be reliably assessed. To
date, Vivendi Management believes that these tax audits are unlikely to have a material impact on the group's financial position or liquidity.

Regarding the tax audit for fiscal years 2008 1o 2012, Vivendi SA is subject ta a rectification procedure for which the tax authorities
challenge the accounting and tax treatment of NBC Universal shares received in consideration of the sale of Vivendi Universal Entertainment
shares in 2004. Additionally, the tax authorities challenge the deduction of the €2 4 billion loss recorded as part of the sale of these shares in
2010 and 2011. Proceedings were brought before the National Direct Tax System [Commission Nationale des Impdts Directs), which
rendered its opinion on December 9, 2015 {which was notified to Vivendi SA on January 13, 2017), in which it declared the discontinuation of
the adjustments suggested by the tax authorities. Moregver, given that the disagreement was based on administrative doctrine, Vivend
asked for its cancellation on the ground that it was tantarount to adding to the law. On May 29, 2017, the French Council of State [Consei!
d’Ftat) favorably received Vivendi's appea) for misuse of authority. By letter dated April 1, 2019 and following various appeals, the tax
authorities confirmed the continuation of the rectification procedure. On June 18, 2019, Vivendi therefore initiated a legal proceeding before
the tax department. As no reply was received from the tax authorities, on December 30, 2019, Vivendi filed a complaint before the
Administrative Court of Montreuil. In addition, the tax audit for fiscal years 2013 to 2016 is ongoing. Vivendi Management believes that it
has solid legal grounds to defend its positions for determining the taxable income for all the fiscal years under audit.

In respect of the US Tax Group, the tax audit for fiscal years 2011, 2012, and Z013 is now closed. On January 31, 2018, Vivendi was informed
by the US tax authorities that fiscal years 2374, 2015 and 2016 were under audit, ongoing untii Oecember 31, 2019, Vivendi Management
believes that it has solid legal grounds to defend its positions for determining the taxable incoma for the fiscal years under audit.

With regard to the Havas Group, Havas SA initiated legal proceedings for the refund of the withholding tax paid by the company between
2000 and 2002 on the redistribution of dividends from European subsidiaries (€38 million). On July 28, 2017, following the filing of the case
before the Paris Administrative Court and Court of Appeal and the Versailles Court of Appeal, the French Council of State {Conseil d'Ftat)
found that the appeal in cassation made by Havas against the decision of the Versailles Court of Appeal was inadmissible. This decision
irevacably ended the tax litigation and barred Havas from obtaining a refund of the withholding tax. To restore Havas's right to
compensation, three combined actions were taken: (i} a claim before the European Commission, {it} a filing before the European Court of
Human Rights, and {iil} a claim [ut cumpensation under an action far damages against the French state, Vivendi Management believes that it
has solid legal grounds to defend the positions for determining the taxable income for the fiscal years under audit.
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Note 7 Eamings per share

Earnings {in millions of euros)

Earnings from tontinuing operations attnbutadle to Vivendi SA shareowners
Earnings fram discontinued operations attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners
Earnings attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners

Number of shares {in millions}

Weighted everage number of shares outstanding (a)

Potential dilutive effects related to share-based compensation
Adjusted weighted average number of shares

Eamnings per share {in euros)

Earnings from continuing operations attributable to Vivend: SA shareowners per share
Earnings from discontinued operations attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners per share

Earnings attributable ta Vivendi SA shareowners per share

Thursday February 13, 2020

Year ended December 31,

2019 2018
Basic Diluted Basic Diluted

1,583 1,583 127 127
1.583 1,583 127 127
12335 1,2335 1,263.5 1,263.5
- 49 - 5.1
12335 1,2384 1.263.5 1,268.6
1.28 1.28 0.10 0.10
1.28 1.28 010 0.10

a.  Net of the weighted average number of treasury shares (28.0 million shares in 2019, compared to 38.5 million shares in 2018).

Note 8

Charges and income directly recognized in equity

Details of changes in equity related to other comprehensive income

lterns nat subsequently reclassified to
profitor loss

Items to be subsequently reclassified
to profit or loss

Unrealized
Actuarial Financial assets at ains/(losses) ) (ther _
gains/{losses) fair value through _ gans/iosses] Foreign currency cormprehensive Other
related to ather . translation income from comprehensive
employee defined  comgrehensive ~ Hedging adjustments equity affiliates, income
benefit plans (a} income instruments (o} net
lin millions of eurps)
Balance as of January 1, 2018 {272) (198) 78 {297 a3 (806}
Charges and income directly recognized
in equity 40 (224) 3 278 {164} {117)
Tex effect (10} 2 - - - (12)
Cther - {7} - - - {7
Balance as of December 31, 2018 (242} {431) 81 {269) &1 (942)
Charges and income directly recagnized
in equity {163} {40} (4) 170 53 16
Tax effect 23 - - . 23
(ther 131 3 - - - .
Balance as of December 31, 2019 {385) {468} 77 (99) {28) (c) {903)

a. Please refer to Note 18.

b. Please refer to Note 20.7.

. Included foreign currency translation from Telecom ltalia for -€9 million as

December 31, 2018.
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Note 9 Goodwill
(in milfiens of euros} December 31, 2018 December 31, 2018
Goodwill, gross 29,266 26,504
Impairment losses {14 575) (14,366}
Goodwill 14,690 12,438
9.1 Changes in goodwill
Changes in foreign
Business currency translation

(in millions of euros)

Universal Music Group

Canal+ Group
Havas Group
Editis
Gameloft
Vivend Village
Mew Initiatives
Total

{in millions of euros)

Universal Music Group

Canal+ Group
Havas Group
Gameloft
Vivendi Village
New Initiatives
Total

December 31, 2018

Impairment losses

December 31, 2019

combinations adjustments and
other

4,977 - 75 {8} 328 o} 5,381
4595 - 1,068 el (3) 5,660
1,940 87 26 2,053
- 837 (d 837

597 3 - 594
125 3 ] 162
210 - - {207} 3
12,438 - 2,10 151 14,690

December 31, 2017

Business

impairment losses L
combinations

Changes in foreign
currency transiation
adjustments and

Decemper 31, 2018

4,736
4576
1,878
583
103
208
12,084

other
- 14 227 b 4,977
- 23 (4} 4,595
47 20 1,940
8 - 591
- 23 et {1 125
() 3 - 210
(1) 113 242 12,438

a. Notably included the provisional goodwill attributable to Ingroaves, consalidated by Universal Music Group as from March 15, 2019,

b, Notably included the foreign currency translation of the dollar (USD} against the euro.

¢.  Primarily included the provisional goodwill recognized as a result of the acquisition of M7 consclidated by Canal+ Group since

September 12, 2019 (please refer to Note 2.3].

d.  Primarily included the provisional goodwill recognized as a result of the acquisition of Editis consalidated since January 31, 2019
(ptease refer to Note 2.2}

e.  MNotahly included the provisional goodwill attributable to Paylogic, acquired by Vivendi Village on April 16, 2018
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9.2 Goodwill impairment test

In 2019, Vivendi tested the value of goodwill allocated to its Cash-Generating Units {CGU) ar groups of CGU applying valuation methods
consistent with previous years, Vivendi ensured that the recoverable amount of CGU or groups of CGU tested exceeded their carrying value
(including goodwill). The recoverable amount is determined as the higher of the value in use, determined by the discounted value of future
cash flows {Discounted Cash Flow methed [DCFY, and the fair value {less costs to sell), determined on the basis of market data [stock market
prices, comparable listed companies, comparison with the value attributed to similar assets or companies in recent acquisition transactions}.
Fer a description of the methads used for the impairment test, please refer to Note 1.3.5.8,

Presentation of CGU or groups of CGU

Operating Segments  Cash Generating Units {CGU) CGU or groups of CGU tested
Universai Music Group  Recordsd music
_Music publishing Universal Music Group (&}
Artist services and merchandising
Canal+ Group _Pay-TV in Mainland France
_Lanal+ International (b} Pay-TV in France {mainland and overseas),

atforma Canal+ {Poland) Benelux, Poland, Central Europe, Africa

M7 (Centrat Europe and Benelux} and Asia, and free-to-air TV in France {a)
__Free-to-air TV in France
Studiocanal Studiocanal
Havas Group _ Spain ic) Spain (c}
_North America North America
france France
Other territories QOther territories
Editis [d) Editis Editis
Gameloft Gameloft Gameloft
Vivendi Village _Paddington Paddington
_Live eniertainment in France ive entertainment in France
_ Live entertainment in the United Kingdam Live entertainment in the United Kingdom
_Venues in France Venues in France

_Sea Tickets France
_ Sea Tickets United Kingdom
_See Tickets United States
See Tickets B.V. {formerly Paylogic)

Ticketing (Vivendi Ticketing) {a)

New Initiatives _Dailymotion Dailymotion
Group Vivendi Africa Group Vivendi Africa

a.  Correspands to the level of menitoring return on invastments.
k. Relates to pay-TV in overseas France, Africa and Asia.
¢. Includes entities under the same management.

d.  As of December 31, 2019, no goodwill impairment test attributable to Editis was completed given that the acquisition date of Editis
{January 31, 2019} was close 1o the financial closing date.

During the fourth quarter of 2018, Vivendi performed a goodwill impairment test on each CGU or group of CGU, on the basis of valuations of
recoverable amounts determined through internal valuations or with the assistance of third-party appraisers. As a result, Vivendi
Management cancluded that, as of December 31, 2019, the recoverable amount for each CGU or group of CGU tested exceeded their carrying
value.
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Presentation of key assumptions used for the determination of recoverable amounts

The vatue in use of each CGU or group of CGU is usually determined as the discounted value of future cash flows by using cash flow
projections consistent with the 2020 budget and the most recent forecasts prepared by the operating segments. These forecasts are
prepared on the basis of financial targets as well as the follawing main key assumptions: discount rate, perpetual growth rate and EBITA as
defined in Note 1.2.3, capital expenditures, the competitive and regulatory environments, technological developments and fevel of
commercial expenses. When the business plan of a CGU or group of CGU is not available at the time of the re-examination of the value of
goodwill, Vivendi ensures that the recoverable amount exceeds the carrying value on the basis of market data only. The recoverable amount
used for the relevant CGU or group of CGU was determined based on its value in use in accordance with the main key assumptions set out
below.

Operating segments  CGU or groups of CGU tested Zglia;uatlon Metl;(;rie ZIIJ]\]sgcounl Hatt;[(]e:)g PE;S?;%‘ GrowtthF:gte
Universal Music Group  Universal Music Group {b) Transaction na na na na na
Canal+ Group Pay-TV in France (mainland and gverseas},
Benelux, Poland, Central Eurape, Africa Camparables na na na na na
and Asia, and free-to-air TV in France (c}
Studiocanal DCF DCF 1.70% 8.00% 1.00% 0.50%
Havas Group Spain DCr DCF 1.37% 8.03% 2.00% 2.00%
North America DCF DCF 8.00% 8.10% 2.00% 2.00%
France DCF DCF 7.70% 7.90% 2.00% 2.00%
DCF& DCF &
Gameloft Gameloft comparables  comparables 9.00% 8.50% 2.00% 2.00%
model model
Vivendi Village Paddington DCF DCF 8.80% 8.80% 1.00% 1.00%
Live entertainment in France DCF DCF 10.00% 9.00% 1.00% 1.00%
Live entertainment in the United Kingdom DCF DCr 10.00% na 1.00% na
Venues in France DCF DCF 9.00% 9.00% 1.00% 1.00%
Ticketing (Vivendi Ticketing) DCF DCF 9.30% 11.00% 2.00% 2.00%
DCF &
New Initiatives Dailymotion Comparables comparables na 11.50% na 2.00%
mnrel

na: not applicable.

a.  The determination of recoverable amounts using a post-tax discount rate applied to post-tax cash flows provides recoverable amounts
consistent with the ones that would have been obtained using a pre-tax discount rate applied to pre-tax cash flows.

b. On December 31, 2019, Vivendi and a consortium of global financial investors led by Tencent entered into an agreement which provides
for the sale of 10% of UMG’s share capital, based on an enterprise value of £30 billion for 100% of UMG's share capital. On this basis,
Vivendi considered that UMG’s recoverable amount exceeded its carrying valua.

c. Based on muktiple valuations cbserved in recent acquisitions, Vivendi considered that Canal+ Group's recoverable amount exceeded its
carrying value.
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Decamber 31, 2019

Discount rate

Perpetual growth rate

Discounted cash flows

Increase in the discount rate
in grder for the recoverable

Decrease in the perpetuat growth
rate in order for the recoverable

Decrease in the discounted cash
flows in order for the recoverable

amaount to be equal to
the carrying amount

amount to be equal to
the carrying amount

Applied amount to be equal to Applied
rate the carrying amount rate

__{in %) {in number of points} {in %) {in number of potnts) {in %)
Universal Music Group (a) na na na na na
Canal+ Group (b}
Pay-TV in France (mainland and
overseas), Benelux, Poland, Central
Europe, Africa and Asia, and free-to- na na na na na
air TV in France
Studiocanal 7.7% +1.05 pts 1.00% -1 pts -15%
Havas Group
Spain 1.37% +7.99 pts 2.00% -13.43 pts -57%
North America B.00% +8.27 pts 2.00% -16.69 pts 57%
France 7.7% +6.00 pts 2.00% -8.80 pts 51%
Gameloft {c} na na na na na
Dailymotion {c} na na na na na
W Decamber 31, 2018
Discount rate Perpetual growth rate Discounted cash flows
Increase in the discount rate Decrease in the perpetual growth Decrease in the discounted cash
in order for the recoverable rate in ordler for the recoverable flows in order for the recoverable
Applied amount to ba equal to Applied amount to be equal to amount to be equal to
rate the carrying amount rate the carrying amount the carrying amount
{in %) {in numhber of points) (1n %) {in number of points) {in %)
Universal Music Group na na na na na
Canal+ Group
Pay-TV in France {mainland and
overseas), Africa, Poland and
Vietnam, and free-lo-air TV in France na na na na na
Studiocanal 8.00% +2.02 pts 0.50% -3.78 pts -23%
Havas Group
Spain 8.03% +7.40 pts 2.00% -15.65 pts -57%
North America 8.10% +6.77 pts 2.00% -12.72 pts -52%
France 7.90% +6.90 pts Z2.00% 12.36 pts A%
Gameloft (c) na na na na na
Dailymotion (c) na na na na na

na: not applicable.
a. Please refer to reference b. in the table above.
b. Please refer to reference c. in the table above.

c. Vivendi Management considered that the recoverable amounts of Gameloft and Dailymotion as of December 31, 2019 and as of
December 31, 2018, which were determined using standard valuation methads {the value in use, determined as the discounted value of
future cash flows, and the fair value, determined on the basis of market data: stock market prices, comparable listed companies,
comparison with the value attributed to similar assets or companies in recent acquisition transactions) were at least equal to their
carrying value.
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Note 10 Content assets and commitments

10.1 Content assets

{in millions of euros}

Music catalogs and publishing nghts
Advances to artists and reperioire owners
Merchandising contracts and artists services
Film and television costs

Sports rights

Editorial creations

Other

Cantent assets

Deduction of current content assets
Non-current content assets

{in millions of euros)

Music catalogs and publishing rights
Advances to artisis and repertoire owners
Merchandising contracts and artists services
Film and television costs

Sports rights

Other

Content assets

Dedugtion of current content assets
Non-current content assets

Changes in content assets

tin mitlions of euras)
Opening balance

Thursday February 13, 2020

December 31, 2019

Caontent assets,

Accumulated amortization

Content assets

gross and impairment Josses

8,999 (7.405) 1594
1,286 - 1,268
22 {22 -
m {6,328) 783
466 - 468
861 (816) 45
44 {28) 15
18,769 {14,600 4,169
{1,440 17 (1,423}
17.329 (14,583} 2,746

December 31, 2018

Content assets,

Accumulated amortization

Content assets

Amortization of content assets excluding those acquired through busingss combinatiens

Amaortization of content assets acquired through business combinations
Impairment losses on content assets acquired through busingss combinations

Increase
Decrease
Business combinations

Foreign currency translation adjustments and other

Closing balance

gross and impairment losses
8523 {7.159) 1,364
1,045 - 1,045
20 {20} -
6,797 (6,107} 685
437 - 437
48 (39) 9
16,865 {13,325} 3,540
{1,384 35 (1.346]
15,484 {13,290 2,194
Year ended December 31,
2049 2018
3,540 3,247
{65) (48)
{84} {79}
3.440 2,137
(2,769 {2,597}
50 3
57 278
4,169 3,540
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10.2 Contractual content commitments

Commitments given recorded in the Statement of Financial Position: content liabilities

Content liahilities are mainly recordad in “Trade accounts payable and other” or in “Other nan-current liabilities™ whether they are current or
non-current, as applicable.

Minimum future payments as of December 31, 2019 Total minimum future
Duein payments as of

{in millions of euros) Total 2020 2021-2024  After 2024 December 31, 2018
Music rayalties to artists and repertoire owners 2,264 2,251 13 - 2,049
Film and television rights {a} 198 198 - - 169
Sports rights 394 394 - - 434
Creative talent, employment agreements and others 362 770 a7 5 297
Content liabilities 3218 313 100 5 2,919
Off-balance sheet commitments given/(received)

Minimum future payments as of December 31, 2018 Tota! minimum future

Total Duein payments as of

{in millions of euros} 2020 2021 -2024  After 2024 December 31, 2018
Film and television rights (a) 3136 1,093 2,013 30 2,630
Sports rights 1.998 (b} 425 1,556 17 1,735
Creative talent, employment agreements and others {c) 1,362 593 635 34 1,172
Given commitments 6,496 2211 4,204 81 5,537
Film and television rights (a) (159) {100} {58) kH {188)
Sports rights (104) (52) {52) - {7
Creative talent, employment egreements and gthers () not available
Other {6) (2) [4) - {3
Received commitments {269) {154) na) (1) (198)
Total net 6,227 2,057 4,090 80 5339

a. Mainly includes contracts valid over several years for movies and TV production broadcasting rights (mainly exclusivity contracts with
major US studios), pre-purchases of rights in the French cinema industry, Studiocanal’s film production and co-production commitments
{given and received), and Canal and Platforma Canal+ multichannel digital TV package broadcasting rights. They are recorded as content
assets when the broadcast is available for initial release or after the initial significant payment. As of December 31, 2019, provisions
recorded in respect of these commitments amounted to €22 million {compared to €26 million as of December 31, 2018},

In addition, these amounts do not include commitments under contracts for channel diffusion rights and non-exclusive distribution of
channels, in respect of which Canal+ Group did not grant or receive minimal guaranteed amounts. The variable amount of these
commitments cannot be reliably determined and is not reported in either the Statement of Financial Position or in the commitments and
is instead recorded as an expense for the period in which it was incurred. Based on an estimate of the future subscriber base at Canal+
Group, given commitments would have increased by & net amount of €426 million as of December 31, 2019, compared to €407 million
as of December 31, 2018. These amounts notably included the renewal of the distribution agreement with belN Sports on July 11, 2018,
for a four-year period.

Moreover, on November 8, 2018, Canal+ Group announced the renewal of its May 7, 2015 agreement with all the cinema professional
arganizations [ARP, BLIC and BLOC), extending until Dacember 31, 2022 a historic partnership of more than 30 years between Canal+
and the French cinema. Pursuant to this agreement, the Canal+ channel undertook to invest 12.5% of its annual revenues every year in
the financing of European cinematographic works. With respect to audiovisual, pursuant to the agreements entered into with producers’
and authors’ organizations in France, the Canal+ channel is required to invest 3.6% of its total net annual revenue in the financing of
heritage works every year. Only films for which an agreement in principle is made with producers are accountad for in the off-balance
sheet commitments, as it is othenwise not possible to reliably determine a future and total estimate of commitments under agreements
with cinema professional organizations and with producers’ and authors” organizations.

b. Natably included broadcasting rights held by Canal+ Group to the following sport events:
 the Soccer Champions League, on an exclusive basis for the twa premium lots for three seasons, fram 2021/2022 to 2023/2024,
awarded on November 29, 2019;
 the English Premier League in France and in Poland, for the two seasons 202042021 and 2021/2022, awarded on October 31,
2018;
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» the National French Rugby Championship “Top 14", on an exclusive basis, for the three seasons 2020/2021 to 2022/2023; and
e Formula 1, Formuta 2 and GP3 racings. on an exclusive basis, for the 2020 season. On January 21, 2020, Canal+ Group announced
the extension of this agreement for the exclusive broadcast of the entire 2021 and 2022 seasons.
These commitments will be accounted for in the Statement of Financial Position either upon the start of every season or upon an initial
significant payment.

in addition, Canai+ Group and belN Sports entered into an exclusive distribution and sublicensing deal in France af the French
professional Soccer League 1. The exclusive agreement is for a five-year period, renewable. As a reminder, as of Oecember 31, 2018,
Canal+ Group held broadcasting rights for the 2019/2020 season for the two premium lots (€549 million).

c.  Primarily relates to UMG, which routinely commits to pay agreed amounts te artists and other parties upon delivery of cantent or other
products (“Creative talent and employment agreements”]. Until the artist or the other party has delivered his or her content or untif the
repayment of an advance, UMG discloses its obligation as an off-balance sheet given commitment. While the artist or the other party is
obligated to deliver content or another product to UMG (these arrangements are generally exclusive), this counterpart cannot be reliably
determined and, thus, is not reported in received commitments.

Note 11 Leases

As from January 1, 2019, Vivend: applies the new accounting standard IFRS 16 — ieases. In accordance with IFRS 1B, the impact of the
change of accounting standard was recarded In the opening balance sheet as of January 1, 2019. Moreover, Vivend applied this change of
accounting standard to the Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Earnings and Statement of Cash Flows in 2019. For a detailed
description, please refer to Notes 1.7 and 1.3.5.7.

11.1  Rights-ol-use relating to leases

As of December 31, 2019, the rights-of-use relating io Jeases amounted to £1,245 million (€1,131 million as of January 7, 2019) less the
accumutated amorttization and impairment losses for €741 million as of December 31, 2019 (499 million as of January 1, 2019). These
rights-of-use relate to real estate leases.

Changes in the rights-of-use

Year ended
{in millions of euros) December 31, 2018
Balance as of January 1, 2019 1431
Amortization (220)
Acqguisitions/increase 265
Sales/decrease )
Business combinations 40
Fareign currency transfations and other 30
Balance as of December 31, 2019 1,245

11.2 Lease liabilities

Recanciliation between off-balance sheet leases as of December 31, 2018 and lease liahilities as of Janvary 1, 2019
(in milfions of euros)
Off-balance sheet [eases as of December 31, 2018 1,436

Lease with a remaining lease term of less than 12 months {short-term lease) (7

Leases of low-value assets -

Variable lease payments (excluding indexed leases)

Reasonably certain renewal/extension and termination options m

Others 20
Undiscounted lease payments as of January 1, 2019 1,950
Effect of discounting {210}

Residual value quarantee
Non-lease components -

Operating lease liabilities as of January 1, 2019 1,340
Financing lease liabilities .
Yatal of lease liabilities as of January 1,2019 1,340
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Maturity of lease liabilities

The maturity of lease liahilities is based on assumptions made upon the initiat application of IFRS 16
The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities as of January 1, 2019 was 3.21%.

{in millions of euros) December 31, 2018 January 1, 2019
Maturity

2020 236 218
2021-2024 720 698
After 2024 503 424
Lease liabilities 1,459 1,340

11.3 lLease-related expenses

Lease-related expenses recarded in the Statement of Farnings amounted to £263 million in 2019 {compared to €274 millien in 2018 relating
to operating leases under IAS 7).

Note12 Investments in equity affiliates

121  Main investments in equity affiliates

As of December 31, 2019, the main companies accounted for by Vivend under the equity method were as follows:

o Telecom ltalia: fixed and mobile telephony operator in ltaly and Brazil;
s Banijay Group Holding: producer and distributor of television programs; and
¢ Vevo: premium music video and entertainment platfarm.

Voting interest Net carrying value of equity affiliates
{in millions of euros) December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018 December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
Telecom |talia (a} 23.94% 23.94% 3.248 3,130
Banijay Group Halding (b 31.4% 31.4% 148 145
Vevo 49 4% 49.4% 78 81
Other 46 62
3520 3,418

a.  As of December 31, 2019, Vivendi held 3,640 million Telecom Italia ordinary shares with voting rights, i.e., 23.94%, representing
17.15% of the total share capital. Based on the stock market price as of December 31, 2019 (€0.556 per erdinary share), the market
value of this interest amounted to £2,025 million. For an analysis of the value of Vivendi’s interest in Telecom ltalia as of December 31,
2019, please refer to paragraph 12.2 below.

b.  On October 28, 2019, Banijay Group Holding entered into a final agreement to acquire 100% of Endemol Shine’s share capital.

Change in value of investments in equity affiliates

Years ended December 31,

{in millions of guros) 2019 2018

Opening balance 3418 4,526
Acquisitions 12 -
Sales - -
Write-downs (9} {1.066) (a}
Income from equity affiliates (b) 7 129
Change in other comprehensive income 53 {164)
Dividends received (8) {7
Other (17} -
Closing balance 3,520 348

a.  In 2018, Vivendi wrote-down the value of its interest in Telecom Italia for €1,066 million (please see below).

b.  Primarily included Vivendi's share of Telecom ltalia’s net earnings for €67 million in 2019 (please see below), compared to £122 million
in 2018.
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12.2 Tetecom ltalia

Equity accounting of Telecom ltalia

As of December 31, 2019, with no change compared to Decemnber 31, 2018, Vivendi held 3,640 million Telecom ltalia ordinary shares,
representing 23.94% of the voting rights and 17.15% of the total share capital of Telecom ltalia, while taking into account non-voting
savings shares with privileged dividend rights.

As of December 31, 2019, Vivendi continues to consider that it has the power to participate in Telecom ltalia’s financial and operating policy
decisions, particularly given the 23.94% voting rights it holds in Telecom Italia, and, as a result, it is deemed to exercise a significant
influence over Telecom italia.

Vivendi's share of Telecom Italia's earnings

Vivendi relies on Telecom ltalia’s public financial information to account for its interest in Telecom Walia under the equity method. Given
Vivendi's and Telecam ltalia's respective publication dates of their financial statements, Vivendi always accounts for its share of Telecom
ltalia’s net earnings with a three-month reporting lag. Therefore, for fiscal year 2019, Vivendi's earnings take into account its share of
Tetecom ltalia's net earnings for the fourth quarter of 2018 and for the first aine manths of 2019, e, a total of €67 million, which was
calculated as follows:
e £1 miilion, attributable to Vivendi's share of Telecom {talia’s profit for the fourth quarter of 2018, calculated basaed on the fimancial
information for the year snded Oecember 31, 2018, as publicly disclosed by Telecom Italia on February 21, 2019,
e €126 million, attributable to Vivendi's share of Telecom (tafia’s profit for the first nine months of 2019, cafculated based on the
financial information for the first nine months of 2019, as publicly disclosed by Telecom Italia on November 7, 2019, and
« -£680 million, exciuded from adjusted net income, relating to the amortization of intangible assats refated to the purchase price
allocation for Telecom ltalia.

1n addition, Vivendi's share of Telecom Italia's charges and income directly recognized in equity amounted to €51 million in 2019, including
€11 million related to foreign currency translation adjustments.

Value of Vivendi's interest in Telecom [talia as of December 31, 2019

As of December 31, 2019, the stock market price of Telecom Italia ordinary shares (€0.556 per share) was lower than the average purchase
price paid by Vivendi (£1.0709 per share). As a reminder, as of December 31, 2018, Vivendi wrote-down the value of its interest accounted
for under the equity method for €1,066 million, for the value of Telecom ltalia shares sccounted for under the equity method for
£3,131 million (E0.86 per share). As of December 31, 2019, Vivend assessed whether there was any indication that its interest in Telecom
Italia may have become impaired in 2019, As every year, the tost was implemented with the assistance of a third-party appraiser and the
value determined ysing standard valuation methads {the value in use, determined as the discounted value of future cash flows, and the fair
value, determined on the basis of market data: stock market prices, comparable listed companies, comparison with the value attributed to
similar assets or companies in recent acguisition transactions). Vivendi Management concluded that there were no triggsring events that
would indicate any reduction in the value of its interest compared to December 31. 2018. In Vivendi's Consolidated Financial Statements for
the year ended December 31, 2018, the value of Telecom Italia shares accounted for under the equity method was €3,248 million.

Financial information related to 100% of Telecom ltalia
The main aggregates of the Consolidated Financial Statements, as publicly disclosed by Telecom [talia, are as follows:

Nine month Annual
Financial Statements Financial Statements
{in miflions of euros) as of September 3¢, 7019 as of December 31, 2018
Oate of publication by Telecom ftalia; November 7, 2019 February 21, 2018

Non-current assets 60,675 56,850
Current assets 8,798 8,729
Totai assets 63,473 65,619
Total equity 22 544 21,747
Non-current liabilities 35,151 30,90
Current hiabilities 10,778 12,881
Total Viabilities 63,473 65,619

of which net financial debt {a) 28,447 25,995
Revenues 13423 18,940
EBITOA (a) 5.499 7403
Earnings attiibutable to Telecom Ttalia shareowners 852 (1.411)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) attributable to Telecom ftalia shareowners 858 (1,784}

a.  Non-GAAP measures {"Alternative Performance Measures”), as publicly disclosed ty Telecom ltatia.
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Note 13 Financial assets

{in millions of euros}
Financial assets at fair value through profit or Joss
Tarm deposits (a]
Level 1
Bond funds {a)
Listed equity securities
Other financial assets
Level 2
Unlisted equity securities
Derivative financial instruments
Level 3 - Other financial assets [b)

Thursday February 13, 2020

December 31, 2019

Becember 31, 2018

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income {c}

Level 1 - Listed equity securities

Level 2 - Unlisted equity securities
Level 3 - Unlisted equity securities
Financial assets at amortized cost
Financial assets

Total Current Non-current Total Current Non-current
154 154 545 549

50 50 - 50 50 -

1,001 - 1,001 788 - 789
5 5 - 5 5

42 - a2 - - -

25 8 17 38 16 22

Kl - 3 44 - 44

925 - 925 936 - 936

22 - 22 20 - 0

38 - 38 47 - 47

2725 38 187 714 {d) 470 244

2,518 255 2,263 3192 1,090 2,102

The three classification levels for the measurement of financial assets at fair value are defined in Note 1.3.1.

a. Relates to cash management financial assets, included in the cash position (please refer to Note 15).

b. These financial assets notably included the fair value of the bond redeemable into either shares or cash (ORAN 2) subscribed to by
Vivendi in 2016 in connection with its investment in Banijay Group Holding.

¢. These assets relate to listed and non-listed equity securities, which Vivendi classified as "fair value through other comprehensive

income”,

d.  Asof December 31, 2018, these financial assets notably included:
- a receivable of €429 million on the forward sale of the remaining interest in Ubisoft sold on March 5, 2019 (please refer to

Note 2.4); and

- a €70 million cash deposit pursuant to an agreement to purchase a plot of 1and on the Tle Seguin in the Parisian suburb of Boulogne
Billancourt, which cash deposit was returned an March 25, 2019 (please refer to Note 23.1).
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December 31, 2018

) Cumulative
Number of Average Stack Carrying Change in unrealized Sensitivity
shares held purchase market value value aver capital at+/-10 pts
price (b) price the period gafﬂgtfossf p
{in thousands} {E/sharg] (it mitlians of eurgs)
Mediazet 340,746 370 266 505 (29} (354} +91/-91
Qther 1,021 210 959
Total 1,926 181 605
December 31, 2018
: Cumulati
Number of Average Stock Carrying Change in utl'nrel:allzlevde Sensitivity
shares held purchase market valug value over capital at+/-10 pts
price {b) price the periad galn?lloss} P
{in thousands} {€/share) {in millions of euros)
Mediaset 340,246 370 2.74 934 {165) (325) +93/-93
Uhisoft {c) 6,550 31.98 na 429 na na na
Other 79 A40 749
Total 2154 275 424

na: not applicable.

a. The partnership agreement entered into between Vivendi and Mediaset an April 8, 2016 is the subject of litigation. On April 9, Z018, in
compliance with the undertakings given to the AGCOM, Vivendi transferred the portion of its voting rights in excess of 10% to an
independent ltalian trustee (please refer to Note 24).

b.  {ncludes acquisition fees and taxes.

¢.  As part of the sale of its entire 27.27% interest in Ubisoft (i.e., 30,489 thousand shares), the remaining partion of 6,550 thousand shares
was sold on March 5, 2019 in a forward sale [please refer to Note 2.4). As of December 31, 2018, Vivendi recarded a receivable on
share disposal far the amount of such farward sate (6429 millian} in the Consclidated Statement of Financiat Positian.

Equity market value risks

As part of a sustainable investing strategy, Vivendi has built an eguity portfolic comprising listed and non-listed french and European
companies in the telecommunication and media sectors that aie leaders in the production and distribution of content.

As of December 31, 2019, Vivendi held a portfolio of listed nen-controlling eguity interests lincluding Telecom ltalia). The aggregate market
value was approximately £€3.95 billion {before taxes). Vivendi is exposed to the risk of fluctuation in the value of these interests: as of
Decernbar 31, 2019, the net unrealized capital gains or losses represented a net unrealized capital loss amounting to approximately
£1.3 hillion {before taxes). A 10% uniform decrease in the value of all of these shares would have a cumulative negative impact of
appraximately €1.7 biflion an Vivendi's financial position, a 20% uniform dacrease in the value of all f these shares would have a
cumuiative negative impact of approximately €2.1 hiltion on Vivendi's financial pasition.
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Note 14  Networking capital
Changes in net working capital
Changes in 7 Divestitures Changes in
January 1, . . Business in progress  foreign currency December 31,
2019 {a) Dperatm_g warking combinations or translation Other (c) 2018
. capital {b) |
{in mifiions of eurosj completed adjustments
Inventaries 206 - 66 - 3 2 277
Trade accounts receivable and other 5311 {3) 262 i1 57 40 5,661
Of which trade accounts receivable 3.840 {110} 221 1 36 {9} 3979
frade accounts
raceivabie write-offs {197} 16 {27 - {1 4 {205)
Working capital assets 5,517 (3) 3z {1} 55 42 5,938
Trade accounts payable and other 9,513 81 676 17 122 105 10,494
Other non-current lizbilities 2723 3 5 (1 4 {51} 183
Working capital liabilities 9,736 64 681 16 126 54 10,677
Net working capital {4,219} {67} (353) a7 {n) (12) {4,739)
. Divestitures Changes in
January 1, Chgmges n Business in progress farzign December 31,
2018 {d} operatmg woring combinations or gurrency Other (c) 2018
capital (b} completed translanon
{in millions of euros) adjustments
Inventories 177 79 - - 3 (3t 206
Trade accounts receivable and other 5,208 65 28 (7 (8) 36 5314
Of which trade accounts receivable 3828 {29/ 14 {9 {15) 51 3,840
trade accounts
racaivable write-offs {182) {20/ - 3 - 2 {197}
Working capital assets 5385 94 28 an {3) 33 5,520
Trade accounts payable and cther 8,019 64 60 (3) 39 393 9,572
Other non-current liabilities 226 2 (1) - 4 17 248
Working capital liabilities 9,245 66 59 {3) a3 410 9,820
Net working capital (3.860) 28 (3t) {14) (46) (377} (4,300)

a.  Asfrom January 1, 2018, Yivendi applies the new accounting standard IFRS 16 — Leases.

h. Excludes content investments,

¢.  Mainly includes the change ik net working capital relating to content investmenits, capital expenditures and other investments.

d.  Asof January 1. 2018, net working capital included the restaterments related to the application of IFRS 9 for -€10 million.

Trade accounts receivable and other

Credif risk

Vivendi doss not consider there to be a significant risk of non-recovery of trade accounts receivables for its business segments: the large
individual customer base, the broad variety of customers and markets, as well as the geographic diversity of its business segments enable
Vivendi to minimize the risk of credit concentration related to trade accounts receivabole.

Vivendi's operational subsidiaries have set up procedures and systems for tracking their trade accounts receivable and recovering
outstanding amounts. In addition. Havas has insured its main client credit risks worldwide with a leading credit insurer. Similarly, certain
UMG subsidiaries have occasionally used the same insurance system.

Trade accounts payable and other

lin millions of euros} Note  December 31, 2019 January 1, 2019

Trade accounts payable 5,057 4874
Music royalties to artists and repertoire owners 10.2 2,251 2,037
Other 3,186 2,602
Trade accounts payakle and other 10,494 9513
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Note15  Cash position

Vivendi's cash position comprises cash and cash equivalents, as well as cash management financial assets classified as current financial
assets. As defined by Vivendi, cash management financial assets relate to financial investments, which do not satisty the criteria for
classification as cash equivalents set forth in IAS 7, and, with respect to money market funds, which satisfy the ANC's and AMF's decision
released in November 2018.

{in milfions of euros) December 31, 2018 December 31, 2018

Carrying value Fair valug Level {a} Carrying value fFair valug Level {a}
Term deposits 154 na na 548 na na
Band funds 50 5¢ i 50 50 1
Gash management financial assets 204 539
Cash 339 na na 438 na na
Term deposits and current accounts 1.66Z na na 1,949 na na
Money market funds 189 183 i 1,306 1,306 i
Bond funds - - i 50 50 1
Cash and cash equivalents 2,130 3.793
Cash paosition 2,334 4,392

pa: not applicable.

a. Level 1 corresponds 1o @ measurement based on quoted prices in active markets {the three classification levels for the measurement of
financial assets at fair value are defined in Note 1.3.1}.

In 2019, the average interest rate on Vivendi's investments was 0.64% (compared to 0.50% in 2018).

Investment risk and counterparty risk

Vivendi SA centralizes daily cash surpluses {cash pooling of alf controlled entities (i) which are not subject to local regulations restricting the
transfer of financial assets, or (i} which are not subject to other agreements.

As of December 31, 2019, the group’s cash position amounted to £2,334 millien [compared to €4,332 million as of Dacember 31, 2018}, of
which £1,479 million was held by Vivendi SA {compared to £3,354 million as of December 31, 2018).

Vivendi's investment policy mainly aims to minimize 1ts exposure Lo vuunterparty risk. Gonsequently, Vivendi allocates a portion of the
amounts available within (i) mutual funds with a low risk class {1 or 2} as defined by the European Securities and Markets Authority's (ESMA)
synthetic risk and reward indicator {SRRI) which comprises seven risk classes, and {ii} credit institutions with high long-term or short-term
cradit ratings (at least A-{Standard & Paor's)/A3(Moody's} and A-2(Standard & Poor's)/P-2(Moady’s). respectively). Moreover, Vivendi
allocates investments among selected banks and limits the amount of each such investment.

Liguidity risk

As of February 10, 2020 {the date of Vivendi's Managernent Board meeting that approved the Consolioated Financial Statements for the year
ended December 31, 2019), Vivendi considers that the cash flows generated by its operating activities, its cash surpluses, net of the cash
used 1o reduce its debt, as well as the cash available through undrawn bank credit facilities {please refer to Note 20.3) will be sufficient to
cover its operating expenses and investments, its debt service {including redemption of bonds), the payment of income taxes, the distribution

of dividends and any potential share repurchases under existing authorizations, as well as its investment projects, if any, for the next
12 months.
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Note16  Equity

Changes in the share capital of Vivendi SA

lin thousands) December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
Number of shares comprising the share capital (nominal value: €5.5 per share) 1,184,576 1,306,234
Treasury shares {14,001) {38.264)
Number of shares, net 1,170.575 1,267,970
Number of voting rights, gross 1,258,445 1,387,889
Treasury shares {14,001) {38.264)
Number of voting rights, net 1,244,444 1,349,625

On July 17, 2019, Vivendi SA carried out & capital increase of €113 million, by issuing 5,376 thousand new shares through an employee stock
purchase plan and leveraged plan (please refer to Note 19.1.2).

As of December 31, 2018, Vivendi SA's share capital amounted to €6,515 million, divided into 1,184,576 thousand shares. In addition, as of
December 31, 2019, 3,078 thousand stock options and 5,282 thousand performance shares were outstanding, representing a potential
maximum nominal share capital increase of €46 million {i.e., 0.71%).

In 2019 and until February 10, 2020 (the date of Vivendi's Management Board meeting that approved the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year endad December 31, 2019}, major transactions on Vivendi SA's share capital were as follows:

Share repurchases Cancellation of shares
in thousands of shares

% of the In Resulting fram % of the
share thousands the share share
capital {a) of shares repurchases Others Total capital (a)
Share repurchases made between May 28 and July 25, 2019 5.00% 55,465
Canccliation of traasury shares on June 17, 2019 20,018 29982 (b) 50,000 3.82%
Canceliation of treasury shargs on July 25, 2019 44,679 44679 3.41%
Share repurchases made between August 7 and November 13, 2019 2.13% 27,866
Share repurchases made between November 18 and December 31, 2019 1.11% 14,579
Cancellation of treasury shares on November 26, 2015 32,083 4,769 ic) 36,252 2.77%
Total as of December 31, 2019 8.24% 107,910 96,780 34,151 130,931 10.00%
Share repurchases made between January 1 and February 10, 2020 061% 7973 -
Total as of February 10, 2020 8.85% 115,883 96,780 34,151 130,931 10.00%

a. Atthe program’s implementation date.

b.  Shares previously held for external growth transactions.

¢.  Shares previously allocated to covering performance share plans.
Share repurchases

On April 15, 2019, the General Shareholders’ Meeting adopted the following two resolutions related to share repurchases:

o the renewal of the authorizations granted ta the Management Board by the Shareholders” Meeting of April 19, 2018 ta repurchase
shares of the company of up to 10% of the share capital at @ maximum purchase price of €25 per share; with the possibility of
cancelling the shares acquired up to the limit of 10% of the share capital; and

e authorizing the Management Boasd to purchase shares of the company by way of a public share buyback offer (OPRA) of up to
25% of Vivendi's share tapital at a maximum purchase price of €25 per share, and to cancel the shares acquired.

Fallowing the decision of the Management Board at a meeting held on May 24, 2019, and in accordance with the authorization af the
Shareholders’ Meeting of April 15, 2019, Vivendi implemented a share buyhack program for up to 10% of Vivendi's share capital and at a
maximum price of €25 per share:
e between May 28 and July 25, 2019, Vivendi repurchased 65,465 thousand shares at an average price of €24.60 per share, for an
aggregate amount of €£1,610 million;
e Detween August 7, 2019 and November 13, 2019, Vivendi repurchased 27,866 thousand shares, at an average price of £24.88 per
share, for an aggregate amount of €693 million; and
»  between November 18, 2019 and December 31, 2019, Vivendi repurchased 14,579 thousand shares at an average price of
€24.76 per share, for an aggregate amount of €361 million,
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As of December 31, 2019, these successive operations have therefore enabled Vivendi to repurchase 107,910 thousand of its own shares
with the purpose of canceling the shares acquired, at an average price of €24.89 per share, for an aggregate amount of €2,664 million
lexcluding fees and taxes for €9 millien). As of December 31, 2019, Vivendi held 14,001 thousand treasury shares, representing 1.18% of its
share capital {compared to 7.93% of its share capital as of December 31, 2018).

As of December 31, 2019, Vivendi recorded a financial liability of £360 million for firm commitments related to the share buyback pragram in
place on that date.

Betwesn January 1 and February 10, 2020 {the date of Vivendi's Management Board meeting that approved the Cansolidated Financial
Statements for the year ended December 31, 2019}, Vivendi repurchased 7,973 thausand shares with the purpose of canceling the shares
acquired at an average price of €24.74 per share, for an aggregate amount of €197 million. As of February 10, 2020, Vivendi held
21.973 thousand treasury shares, representing 1.85% of its share capita! {as of the implementation date of the share buyback program), of
which 19,103 thausand shares were backed by cancellation and 2 870 thausand shares were backed by hedge performance action plans.

On February 10, 2020, the Management Baard decided to continue this current pragram until April 17, 2020 to acquire the remainder of
15,048 thousand shares at the maximum purchase price of £25 per share.

The General Shareholder's Meeting to be heid on April 20, 2020 will vote on the renewal of the following two authorizations granted to the
Management Board by the General Shareholders' Meeting held on April 15, 2019:
e authorization to repurchase shares of the company at @ maximum price of €26 per share, within the limit of 10% of the share
capital (2020-2021 program); with the possibility of cancelling the shares acquired up to the limit of 10% of the share capital, and
« autharization to repurchase shares of the company by way of a Public Share Buyback Offer (OPRA] at a maximum price of €26 per
share, within the limit of 30% of the share capital (or 20% depending on the repurchases made under the new program which are
deducted from this 30% limit}, and to cancel the shares acquired.

Cancellation of shares

Following the decision of the Management Board at a meeting held on June 17, 2013, and in accordance with the authorization granted by
the Shareholders’ Meeting of April 15, 2019, Vivendi made a capital reduction by cancelling 50,000 thousand treasury shares, i.e., 3.82% of
the share capital, for a carrying value of €990 million. Of the 50,000 thousand shares cancelled:

e 79982 thousand were reallocated for the purpose of share cancellation from the 35,093 thousand shares initially allocated for the
purpose of external growth transactions. The remaining 5.111 thousand shares were reallocated to caver performance share plans;
and

« 20,018 thousand shares were acquired under the share buyback program, implemented on May 28, 2019 (please see above].

On nly 25, 2019, under the same authorization, the Management Board decided to cancel 44,679 thousand shares purchased an the market
under the current share buyback program and representing 3.41% of the share capital as of the implementation date of the share buyback
program with a carrying value of €1,105 millian.

Following the decision of the Management Board at a meeting heid on November 26, 2019, and in accordance with the authorization granted
by the Shareholders’ Meeting of April 15, 2019, Vivendi made a capital reduction by cancelling 36,252 thousand treasury shares, i.e.,
2.77% of the share capital [as of the implementation date of the share buyback program), for a carrying value of €870 million. Of the
36.201 thousand shares cancelled:

» 32,083 thousand shares out of the shares purchased on the market through the current share buyback program; and

e 4769 thousand shares held by Vivendi, previously covering performance shares plans and reallocated to the cancellation of shares.

Conseguently, 130,931 thousand shares were cancelied between June 17 and November 26, 2019, i.e., 10% of the share capital as of the
implementation date af the share buyback program,

Shareholders’ dividend distributions

On February 10, 2020 (the date of Vivendi’s Management Board meeting that approved the Cansciidated Financial Statements for the year
ended December 31, 2019 and the allocation of earnings for the fiscal year then ended], the Management Board decided to propese to
sharehalders the payment of an ordinary dividend of €0.60 per share (a 20% increase compared to the previous year) representing a total
distribution of approximately €711 mitlion. This proposed distribution was presented to, and approved by, Vivendi's Supervisory Board at its
meeting held on February 13, 2020, and will be submitted to the Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting held on Aprit 20, 2020. The coupon
detachment date would be April 21, 2020 and the payment date April 23, 2020.

On April 18, 2019, with respect o fiscal year 2018, an ordinary dividend ot €0.50 per share was paid (following the coupon detachment on
April 16, 2019), representing a total distribution of £636 million.
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Note 17 Provisions

{in millians of eurcs) Note  December 31,2019 January 1, 2019
Employee benefits (a) 859 700
Restructuring costs (b) 1172 51
Litigations 24 289 198
Losses on onerous contracts 39 37
Contingent liahilities due to disposal {c) 16 20
Other (d) 308 284
Provisions 1621 1,290
Deduction of current provisions (444) 415}
Non-current provisions 1127 87

a. Included deferred employse compensation as well as provisions for employee defined benefit plans, but excluded employee termination
reserves recorded under restructuring costs.

b.  Primarily included provisions for restructuring at Canal+ Graup {€97 million as of December 31, 2019, compared to €40 million as of
January 1, 2019) and at UMG (€13 million as of December 31, 2019, compared to €10 million as of January 1, 2019).

c.  Certain commitments given in relation to divestitures are the subject of provisions. These provisions are not significant and the amount
is not disclosed because such disclosure could be prejudicial to Vivendi.

d.  Notably included litigation provisions for which the amount and nature are not disclosed because such disclosure could be prejudicial to
Vivendi.

Changes in provisions

Years ended December 31,

{in millions of euros) 2019 2018

Opening balance 1290 (a) 1,927
Addition 279 280
Utilization (174) {231)
Reversal 198) {123)
Business combinations 110 -
Divestitures, changes in foreign currency translatien adjustments and other 214 {576} (o}
Closing balance 1,621 1,211

a.  In accordance with the new accounting standard IFRS 16 — Leases. the impact of the change of accounting standard was recorded in
the opening balance sheet as of January 1, 2019. For a detailed description, please refer to Notes 1.1 and 11,

h. Certain reclassifications were made to the Cansslidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2078 to conform to the
presentation of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2019, notably relating te the provisions with
respect ta the 2012 and 2015 French Tax Group System (E239 million and €203 million, respectively; please refer to Note 6.5} as well as
other litigation provisions.
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Note 18

18.1

Employee benefits

Analysis of expenses related to employee benefit plans
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The table below provides information about the cost of employee benefit plans, excluding its financial component, The total cost of defined

benefit plans is set forth in Note 18.2.2 below.

{in millions of euros) MNote
Emplayee defined contribution plans
Emplayee defined benefit plans 18.2.7

Employee benefit plans

18.2 Employee defined henefit plans

18.2.1 Assumptions used in the evaluation and sensitivity analysis

Year ended December 31,

2019 2018
67 62
6 26
73 88

Discount rate, expected return on plan assets, and rate of compensation increase

The assumptions underlying the valuation of defined benefit plans were made in compliance with the accounting policies presented in
Note 1.3.8 and have been applied consistently for several years. Demographic assumptions (including notably the rate of compensation
increase) are company specific. Financial assumptions [notably the discount rate) are determined by independent actuaries and other
independent advisars and are reviewed by Vivendi's Finance department. The discount rate is therefore determined for each country by
reference to yields an netes issued by investment grade companies having a credit rating of AA and maturities identical to that of the valued
plans, generally based on relevant rate indices. The discount rates selected are therefore used, at year-end, to determine a best estimate by
Vivendi‘'s Finance department of expected trends in future payments from the first benefit payments.

In accordance with IAS 19, the expected return on plan assets is estimated by using the selected discount rate o value the obligations of the

previous year.

In weighted average

Pension benefits

Post-retirement benefits

2019 2018 2018 2018
Discount rate (a) 1.3% 2.3% 7.9% 3.9%
Rate of compensation increase 1.3% 1.7% na na
Duration of the benefit obligation {in years} 15.0 154 93 88

na: not applicable.

a. A 50 basis point increase {ar a 50 basis point decrease, respectively) to the 2019 discount rate would have led to a decrease of
£1.2 million in pre-tax expense {or an increase of £€0.3 millien, respectively) and would have led to a desrease in the obligations of
pension and post-retirement bensfits of £101 million lor an increase of €110 million, respectively).

Assumptions used in accounting for pension benefits, by country

United States United Kingdom Germany France
2019 2018 2019 2018 2018 2018 209 2018
Discount rate 3.00% 4.00% 1.75% 2.75% 0.50% 1.50% 0.50% 1.50%
Rate of compensation increase (weighted average) na na na 3.50% 1.75% 1.75% 3.3%9% 3.47%
na: not applicable,
Assumptions used in accounting for post-retirement benefits, By country
United States Canada
2019 2018 2019 2018
Discount rate 3.00% 4.00% 2.75% 3.75%
Rate of compensation increase {weighted average) na na na na
na: not applicable.
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Allocation of pension plan assets

Equity securities
Debt securities
Diversified funds
Insurance contracts
Real estate

Cash and gther
Total

Thursday February 13, 2020

December 31, 2019

December 31, 2018

% 13%
6% 21%
9% 10%
39% 39%
1% 1%
18% 16%
100% 100%

Pension plan assets are mainly financial assets actively traded in organized financial markets.

These assets do not include occupied buildings or assets used by the group nor shares or debt instrurments of Vivendi.

Loest evolution of past-retirement benefits

For the purpose of measuring post-retirement benefits, Vivendi assumed the annual growth in the per capita cost of covered health care
benefits would slow down from 6.1% for the under 65 years of age and 65 years of age and clder categories in 2019, to 4.4% in 2029 for
these categories. In 2019, a one-percentage-point increase in the assumed cost evolution rates would have increased past-retirement benefit
obligations by €7 million and the pre-tax expense by £0.3 million. Conversely, a one-percentage-point decrease in the assumed cost evolution
rates wauld have decreased post-retirement benefit obligations by £6 million and the pre-tax expense by €0.3 million,

18.2.2 Analysis of the expense recorded and of the amount of benefits paid

Pension benefits Post-retirement benefits Total

{in millions of euros} 2019 2018 2018 2018 2019 2018
Current service cost 28 27 - - 28 27
Past service cost (a) 123) (2) - - {23) {2)
{Gains)/losses on settlements - - - - -
Other 1 1 - - 1 1
Impact on selling, administrative and general expenses 6 26 - - 6 26
Interest cost 24 22 5 5 29 27
Expected return on plan assets {13) (11) - - {13) {11
Impact on other financial charges and income 1 1 5 5 16 16
Net benefit cost recognized in profit or loss 17 37 5 5 22 42

a. In 2019, past service cest included an operating income of £20.9 million, cerresponding to the impact of the management terms of the
application of the French Pacte law {/o/ Pacte), regarding Vivendi SA’s supplemental and differential defined-benefit pension plan.

[n 2019, benefits paid amounted to {i) €51 million with respect to pensions (€50 million in 2018), of which €19 million paid by pension funds
(€17 million in 2018), and {ii) €10 million paid with respect to past-retirement benefits (€8 million in 2018}
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18.2.3 Analysis of net benefit obligations with respect to pensions and post-retirement henefits

Changes in value of henefit obligations, fair value of plan assets, and funded status

Employee defined benefit plans

Year entded December 31, 2018

Benefit Fair value of plan Net
abligation assets (provision)/asset
recorded in the
statement of
financial position
{in millions of euros) Note (A} (8) (B-A}
Opening balance 1,205 563 {652)
Current service cost 28 (28]
Past service cost (23] 23
{Gains)/losses on settlements - - -
Qther - {1 (1)
tmipact on selling, administrative and general expenses (&)
Interest cost 29 {29)
Expected return on plan assets 13 13
Impact on other financial charges and income {18)
Net benefit cost recognized in profit or loss {22}
Experience gains/{losses} (a) 37 76 39
Actuarial gains/{losses) related to changes in demegraphic assumptions (4} 4
Actuaria! gains/llosses) related to changes in financial assumptions (b) 200 {200)
Adjustment related to asset ceiling - - -
Actuarial gains/{losses) recognized in other comprehensive income {157)
Contributions by plan participants 7 7 -
Contributions by employers - 55 55
Benefits paid by the fund (19) (19
Benefits paid by the employer (42) (42) -
Business combinations (c) 24 - 24}
Divestitures of businesses - -
Transfers -
Foreign currency translation and other 35 28 0!
Closing halance 1,472 665 (807)
of which wholly or partly funded benefits 1,006
wholly unfunded benefits (d} 466
of which assets related to employee benefit pfans g
provisions for employee benefit pians (g} 17 (816}
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Employee defined benefit plans
Year ended December 31, 2018
Benefit Fair value of plan Net
obligation assets {provision)/asset
recorded in the
statement of
financial position

(in miflions of euros) Note {A) {B) (B}-{A)
Opening balance 1,253 549 (704)
Current service cost 77 {27)
Past service cost (2) 2
{Gains}/losses on settlements . ) i
Other - {1 {1
Impact on selling, administrative and general expenses {25}
interest cost 27 (27)
Expected return on plan asseis 1 _n
Impact on other financial charges and income (16)
Net benefit cost recognized in profit or loss {92}
Experience gaing/{losses) (a) {7 (5) 2
Actuarial gains/{losses) related to changes in demographic assumptions (9) !
Actuarial gains/{losses) related to changes in financial assumptions (f} (32) 32
Adjustment related to asset ceiling - -
Actuarial gains/{losses) recognized in other comprehensive income =43
Contributions by plan participants 3 3 N
Contributions by employers - 58 58
Benefits paid by the fund 17) {17

Benefits paid by the employer (42} (42) .
Business combinations -
Divestitures of businesses - -

Transters - - -
Forgign currency translation and other 4 {3) 7
Closing balance 1,205 553 (652)
of which whoily or partly funded benefits 799
wholly unfunded benefits (d) 406
of which assets related to employee benefit plans 3
provisions for employee benefit plans (e 17 {661}

a. Includes the impact cn the benefit obligations resulting from the ditference between actuarial assumptions at the previous year-end and
effective benefits during the year, and the difference between the expected retumn on plan assets at the previous year-end and the
actual return on plan assets during the vear.

b. Included €210 millicn attributable to a decrease in discount rates in 2019, of which €81 million relating to the Euro zone, £107 million
relating to the United Kingdom and €18 million relating to the United States.

c.  Corresponds mainly to the impact of the acquisition of Editis on February 1, 2019, on the value of the benefit obligation, plan assets and
net provision.

d. In accordance with [ocal laws and practices, certain plans are not covered by plan assets. As of December 31, 2019 and 7018, such
plans principally comprised supplementary pension plans in the United States, pension plans in Germany and post-retirement benefit
plans in the United States.

e. Included a current liability of €55 million as of December 31, 2019 {compared to £51 million as of December 31, 2018).

f. Included €29 million attributable to an increase in discount rates in 2018, of which €23 million relating to the United Kingdom and
€4 million relating to the United States.
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Benefit obligation, fair value of plan assets, and funded status detailed by country

Pension benefits (a) Past-retirement benefits (b} Total
December 31, December 31, December 31,

{in millions of euros) 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

Benefit obligation

US companies 118 13 118 107 233 270

UK companies {c) 559 432 3 2 562 434

German companies 198 184 - - 198 184

French companies 380 279 3 3 383 282

Qther 84 75 12 10 96 35

1.339 1,083 133 122 1,472 1.205

Fair value of plan assets

US companies 54 52 - - 54 52

UK companies (c} 4395 395 - - 485 3585

German companies 2 2 - - 2 2

French companies 59 52 - - 59 52

Dther 55 52 - - 55 52

665 553 - - 665 553

Net provision

US companies [64) {61) {115) (107) {179} (168)

UK companies (c) (64) (37 {3} (2) {67} (38)

German companies {196} [182) - - {196} (182}

French companies {321) (227) {3) (3 {324} (230}

Other (29 i23) {12) oy {41} (33)

(674) (530) (133} (122) (807} {652)

a. No employee definad benefit plan individually exceeded 10% of the aggregate value of the obligations and net provision under these
plans.

b.  Primarily relates to medical coverage (hospitalization, surgery, doctor visits and drug prescriptions), post-retirament and life insurance
benefits for certain employees and retireas in the United States. In accordance with current requlations in relation to the funding policy
of this type of plan, the plan is not funded. The main risks for the group relate to changes in discount rates as wel! as increases in the
cost of benefits (please refer to the sensitivity analysis described in Nule 18.2.1).

c. In December 2017, the UMPGS fund in the United Kingdom purchased a buy-in insurance policy, covering pension benefits. This
insurance policy is an asset to the UMGPS plan. It was purchased following the exercise by some beneficiaries of the right to exit the
UMGPS plan against a payment in cash. Vivendi continues te cover the benefits with regards to the remaining beneficiaries of the plan.
In principle, the benefit obligations are equal to the plan’s assets, and no net pension liability is recorded in the Consolidated Statement
of Financial Position.

18.24 Benefits estimation and future payments

For 2020, hedge fund contributions and benefit payments by Vivendi to retirees are estimated at €45 million in respect of pensions, of which

€31 million relates to pension funds and €10 million relates to post-retirement benefits.

Estimates of future benefit payments to beneficiaries by the relevant pension funds or by Vivendi {in nominal value for the following
10 years) are as follows:

{in mi
2020
2024
2022
2023
2024
2025

, . Post-retirement
Pension benefits stretire

ffions of eurosi henefits
45 10
62 10
52 10
38 10
57 9
-2029 286 40
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Note19  Share-based compensation plans

19.1

Plans granted by Vivendi

19.11 Equity-settled instruments

Transactions relating to outstanding instruments that occurred in 2018 and 2019 were as follows:

Stock opticns Performance shares
Number of outstanding Weighted average strike price Number of outstanding
stock options of outstanding stock options performance shares
{in thousands} lin euros) {in thousands)

Balance as of December 31, 2017 13,202 16.8 4,303
Granted - na 1,636
Exercised / Issued (4,989) (a) 17.9 [771)
Forfeited (958 207 na
Cancelfed - na {378} b}

Balance as of December 31, 2018 1,245 15.6 4,790
Granted - na 1.647
Exercised / Issued (3,897) (a) 15.8 {759}
Forfeited (265} 16.1 -
Cancelled (5) 16.0 {396) (b

Bafance as of Decemker 31, 2019 3,078 ic} 15.3 5282 (d

Acquired / Exercisable as of Decemhber 31,2019 3,078 15.3 -

Rights acquired as of December 31, 2019 3,078 15.3 699

na: not applicable.

a.

d.

In 2019, beneficiaries exercised stack options at the weighted average stack market price of £24.8 {compared to €22.3 for stock optians
exercised in 2018),

At its meeting held on February 14, 2019, after a review by the Corporate Governance, Nominations and Remuneration Committee, the
Supervisory Board approved the achievement level of objectives set for the cumulative fiscal years 2016, 2017 and 2018 for the
performance share plan granted in 2016. It was confirmed that all the criteria bad been met. However, given that the negative impact of
the situation in Italy was not reflected in the financial results, the Supervisory Board decided to canfirm the final grant of the 2016
performance share plan only up to 75% of the initial grant. Consequently, 222,663 rights to performance shares, which were granted in
2016, were cancelled, of which 73,750 of such cancelled rights were for members of the Management Board. In addition, 173,690 rights
were cancelled due to the termination of employment of certain beneficiaries.

Far the performance share plan grantad in 2015, at its meeting held on February 15, 2018, after a review by the Corporate Governance,
Nominations and Remuneration Committee, the Supervisary Board approved the achievement level of objectives set for the cumulative
fiscal years 2015, 2016 and 2017. It was cenfirmed that not all the criteria had been met. The final grant of the 2015 performance share
plan represented 75% of the initial grant, as adjusted. Consequently, 243,464 rights to performance shares, which warg granted in
2015, were cancelled, of which 42,500 of such cancelled rights were for members of the Management Board. In addition, 134,520 rights
were cancelled due to the termination of employment of certain beneficiarigs.

At the stock market price on December 31, 2019, the cumulated intrinsic value of remaining stock options to be exercised could be
estimated at €33 million.

The weighted-average remaining pericd before delivering performance shares was 1.3 years.

Please refer to Note 16 for a description of the potential impact on the share capital of Vivendi SA of the outstanding stock options and
performance shares.
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Outstanding stock options as of December 31, 2019

Range of strike rices Number Weighted average strike Weightgd_ average
price remaining life
|in thousands) {in euros) linyears)
Under €15 801 11.9 23
£15-€16 1,210 15.8 03
£16-€17 14 16.7 06
£17-€18 1,053 17.2 13
More than €18 - - -
3,078 15.3 1.2

Performance share plan

On February 14, 2018, Vivendi granted to employees and executive management 1,601 thousand performance shares, of which 165,000 were
granted ta members of the Management Board. On May 17, 2018, Vivendi granted to employees and executive management 1,632 thousand
performance shares, of which 175,000 were granted to members of the Management Board.

As of February 14, 2019, the share price was €22.60 and the expected dividend yield was 2.21% (compared to €23.03 and 1.95% as of
May 17, 2018, respectively). After taking into account the cost associated with the retention period of the shares (described below), the
discount for non-transferability was set at 7.9% of the share price as of February 14, 2019 (compared to 8.1% in 2018). Consequently, the fair
value of each granted performance share was estimated at €19.37 (compared to £19.85 in 2018), corresponding to an aggregate fair value of
the plan of €31 million {compared to €32 million in 2018).

Subject to satisfaction of the performance criteria, perfarmance shares definitively vest at the end of a three-year period, subject to the
presence of the baneficiaries in the group [vesting period). Furthermore, the shares must te held by the beneficiaries for an additional two-
year period {retention petiod). The compensation cost is recognized on a straight-line basis over the vesting period. The accounting methods
that are applied fo estimate and recognize the value of these granted plans are described in Note 1.3.10.

Satisfaction of the objectives that determine the definitive grant of performance shares is assessed aver a three-year consecutive periad
based on the foltawing performance criteria:
» Internal indicators {with a weighting of 70%):
- the adjusted net income per share (50%] (compared to the group’s earnings before intarest and incorne taxes - EBIT {35%) in 2018);
and
- the group’s cash flow from aperations after interest and incame tax paid - CRAIT {20%) (comparad to 35% in 2018},
e External indicatars (with a weighting of 30%} tied to changes in Vivendi's share price compared to the STOXX® Europe Media index
(20%} and to the CAC 40 index {10%}.

The granted shares correspond 1o the same class of common shares making up the share capital of Vivendi SA, and as a result, at the end of
the three-year vesting period, beneficiaries will be entitled to the dividends and voting rights attached to these shares. The compensation
cost recognized corresponds to the estimated value of the equity instruments granted to the beneficiary, and is equal to the difference
hetween the fair value of the shares to be received and the aggregate discounted value of the dividends that were not received aver the
vesting period.

In 2019, the charge recognized with respect to all performance share plans amounted to €24 million, compared to €16 million in 2018.
1912 Employee stock purchase and leveraged plans

On July 17, 2019 and July 19, 2018, Vivendi carried out capital increases through employee stock purchase plans and leveraged plans which
gave the group’s employees and retirees an opportunity to subscribe for Yivendi shares.

These shares, which are subject to certain sale or transfer restrictions during a five-vear period, are subscribed te at a discount of up to 15%
on the average opening market price for Vivendi shares during the 20 trading days preceding the date of the Management Board meeting
which set the subscription price for the new shares to be issued. The difference between the subscription price for the shares and the share
price on that date represents the benefit granted to the beneficiaries. In addition, Vivendi applied a discount for non-transferability during a
five-year period, which is deducted from the benefit granted to the employees. The value of the subscribed shares is estimated and fixed at
the date on which the subscription price for the new shares to be issued is set.
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The applied valuation assumptions were as follows:

2018 2018
Grant date June 14 June 18
Data at grant date:
Share price {(in euros) 24.48 21.57
Expected dividend yield 2.04% 2.09%
Risk-free interest rate 0.44% 011%
S-year interest rate 3.96% 381%
Repo rate 0.36% 0.36%
Discount for non-transferability per share 19.28% 17.48%

Under the employee stack purchase plan (ESPP), 531 thousand shares were subscribed for in 2019 through a company mutual fund {Fonds
Commun de Placement d'Fntreprise) at a price of £21.106 per share (compared to 734 thousand shares at a price per share of £19.327 in
2018). In 2019 and 2018, no charges were recognized, as the benefit granted, which is equal to the positive difference between the
subscription price and the stock price at the end of the subscription period on June 14, 2019 and on June 18, 2018 {discount of 13.8% and of
10.40% in 2018), was lower than the discount for non-transferability (19.3% and 17.49% in 2018).

Uinder the leveraged plan, 4,694 thausand shares were subscribed for in 2019 through a company mutual fund at a price of £21.106 per share
{compared to 4,259 thousand shares at a price of £19.327 in 2018). The leveraged plan entitles employees and retirees of Vivend: and its
French and foreign subsidiaries to subscribe for Vivendi shares through a reserved share capital increase, while obtaining a discounted
subscription price, and to ultimately receive the capital gain {calculated pursuant to the terms and conditions af the plan) equal to 10 shares
for each subscribed share. A financial institution mandated by Vivendi hedges this transaction. In addition, 151 thousand shares were
subscribed for as part of an employee shareholding plan implemented for employees of the group’s Japanese subsidiaries {compared to
193 thousand shares in 2018). In 2019, the charge recognized with respect to the leveraged plan amounted to nearly £1 million {unchanged
compared to 2018).

Transactions carried out in France and foreign countries through company mutual funds (Fonds Commun de Placement d Entreprise, employee
stock purchase and leveraged plans) resulted in a capital increase an July 17, 2019 of an aggregate value of €113 million {including issue
premium), compared to €100 million an July 19, Z018.

19.2 Restricted and performance share plans granted by Havas Group

The restricted and performance share plans were valued based on the stock market price of Havas Group shares as of the date of the Board
of Directors’ meeting that appraved the grant of these shares. Subject to satisfaction of the performance criteria for certain plans, shares
definitively vest at the end of a period of 36 to 51 months, subject to the presence of the beneficiaries in the group.

As of December 31, 2019, Havas Group’s outstanding plans were as follows:

e on May 10, 2016, the Board of Directors granted 2,584 thousand restricted shares and performance shares to the group’s senior
executives and managers in France and abroad, including 90 thousand shares for Mr. Yannick Bolloré;

« onJuly 21, 2016, the Board of Directars granted 148 thousand restricted shares to all employees in France; and

o on February 28, 2017, the Board of Directors granted 1,699 thousand restricted shares to the group’s senior executives in France and
abroad.

In light of both the implementation of the mandatory sgueaze-out resulting in the absence of liquidity for Havas sharas and the change of
control of Havas to Vivendi, Vivendi's Supervisory Board resolved that the restricted and performance shares granted by Havas would be
replaced by Vivendi shares, an the basis of 0.44 Vivendi share for every one Havas share.

In 2018, beneficiaries of Havas restricted or performance shares have been individually given the option of being definitively granted the
corresponding shares initially granted to them, subject to having entered into a liquidity cantract with Vivendi, which contains:

+ aput optior, giving such beneficiaries the right to sell their Havas restricted and perfarmance shares to Vivend: withir: thirty calendar
days from the first business day following the date of vesting of their Havas restricted and performance shares; and

« acall option, giving Vivendi the right to acquire the relevant Havas restricted and performance shares within fifteen calendar days
following the expiry of the exercise peried of the abovementioned put option.

The exercise price of these optiens will be the cash eguivalent, for one Havas share, of the market value of 0.44 Vivendi share calculated on
the basis of the average stock market price for Vivendi shares on Euronext Paris, weighted by the daily trading valumes on the regulated
market of Euronext Paris, during the ten trading days preceding the date of vesting of Havas restricted and performance shares.

By way of deragation, given the proximity of the vesting period applicable to a plan that had been granted on January 29, 2014 {vested on
April 29, 2018), this exercise price was equal to the tender offer price, i.e., €9.25 per Havas share, for the beneficiaries of this plan.
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As of December 31, 2018, 1,265 thousand Havas shares {compared to 2,297 thousand Havas as of Jecember 31, 2018} were subject ta @
liquidity agreement and will therefore be granted to the beneficiaries subject to their presence upon maturity of each plan, and then acquired
by Vivendi. 2,370 thousand Havas shares will be exchanged for approximatively 1,043 thousand Vivendi shares {on the basis of 0.44 Vivend
for every one Havas shars}.

Transactions relating 1o outstanding shares that have occurred since January 1, 2018 were as follows:

Number of outstanding shares
lin thousands}

Balance as of December 31, 2017 7933
Forfeited (1,719) (@)
Cancelled (347}

Balance as of December 1, 2018 5,867
Forfeited {2,051} fa}
Cancelled (181)

Balance as of December 31, 2019 3,635

a. Relfates to plans granted on the following dates:

e on Janvary 29, 2014 and which expired on April 29, 2018 870 thousand shares were paid in cash by Vivendi at a price of
£€9.25 per share and 849 thousand Havas shares were exchanged for 374 thousand Vivendi shares, an the basis of 0.44 Vivendi
share for every one Havas share in accordance with the terms and conditions of the plan;

« onJanuary 19, 2015 and which expired on April 19, 2019: 825 thousand Havas shares were settled in cash by Vivend: at a price of
£11.51 per share in accordance with the liquidity agreement, and 373 thousand Havas shares were exchanged for 428 thousand
Vivendi shares in accordance with the terms and conditions of the plan;

« on May 10, 2016 and which expired on May 10, 2019: 120 thousand Havas shares were settled in cash by Vivendi at a price of
£11.24 per share in accordance with the hquidity agreement;

s on March 19, 2015 and which expired on June 19, 2019: 70 thousand Havas shares were exchanged for 31 thousand Vivendi
shares in accordance with the terms and conditions of the plan; and

= on August 27, 2015 and which expired on Novernber 27, 2019: 8 shousand Havas shares were settled in cash by Vivendi at a price
of £10.93 per share in accordance with the liquidity agreement, and 53 thousand Havas shares were exchanged for 24 thousand
Vivendi shares in accordance with the terms and conditions of the plan.

In 2019, the charge recognized in respect of all restricted and performance share plans granted by Havas amounted to €8 million ([compared
to €10 million in 2018).

19.3 Restricted share plans granted by Gameloft S.E.

The restricted share plans of Gameloft S.E. {"Gameloft”) were valued on the basis of the stock market price of Gameloft S.E. shares as of the
date of the Board of Directors meeting that approved the grant of restricted shares, taking into account the retention period on the shares
following vesting. The definitive grant of shares to beneficiaries is conditional upon the beneficiary's employment contract with the company
being continuausly in force throughout the entire vesting period, of two o four years depending an the plan.

Transactions on outstanding restricted shares that oceurred since January 1, 2018 were as follows:

Number of outstanding
restricted shares
{in thousands)

Balance as of December 31, 2017 33
Issued (306)
Forfeited -
Cancelled (87)

Balance as of December 31, 2018 ELY
Issued 1326}
Forfeited -
Cancelled {15)

Balance as of December 31, 2019 -

On March 71, 2019, Vivendi acquired 717 thousand shares in accordance with the liquidity agreement signed with the beneficiaries during
the second half of 2018. As of Decembar 31, 2074, the number of remairing shares referred to in this agreement was 874 thousand stares.

In 2019, the charge recagnized in respect of restricted shares granted by Gameloft S.E. was non-significant (unchanged compared to 2018).
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In 2015, Vivend' implemented a long-term incentive plan for a five-year period for certain key executives of Vivendi. This plan is tied to the
growth of Dailymotion’s enterprise valua compared 1o its acquisition value, to be measured as of June 30, 2020, based upon an independent
expertise. In the event of an increase in Dailymotion's value, the amount of the compensation with respect to the incentive plan is capped at
a percentage of such increase, depending on the beneficiary. Within the six months following June 30, 2020, the plan will be settled ir: cash,

if applicable.

In accordance with IFRS 2, @ compensation expense must be estimated and accounted for at each reporting date until the payment date. As
of December 31, 2019, no charges were accounted for with respect to this plan, unchanged compared to prior years.

Note20  Borrowings and other financial liabilities and financial risk management

(in millions of euros}

Bands

Short-term marketable securities issued

Bank overdrafts

Accrued interest to be paid

Bank credit facilities {drawn confirmed)
Cumulative effect of amortized cost

Other

Borrowings at amortized cost
Commitments to purchase non-controlling interests
Derivative financial instruments

Borrowings and other financial liabilities

Lease liabilities
Total

na: not applicable.

Note
20.2
203

20.3
201

20.7

December 31, 2019

December 31,2018

Total Long-term ~ Short-term Total Long-term  Short-term
5,450 5.050 400 4,000 3.350 700
87¢ - 870 - - -
18 - 8 98 98

17 - 17 17 17
{23} (22) (1) (14} {13} (1)

66 g 57 65 10 55
6.398 5.037 1,361 4,216 3,347 869
528 18 410 fa) 114 98 16
11 5 6 6 3 3
6,937 5,160 1,777 4,336 3,448 888
1,459 1,223 236 na na na
8,396 6,383 2013 4,336 3.448 888

a. Includes the firm commitment of €360 million related to the share buyback program in place as of December 31, 2019 (please refer to

Nota 16).

20.1  Fair market value of borrowings and other financial liabilities

December 31, 2019

December 31, 2018

. Carrying Fair market Level (a) Carrying Fair market Level {a}
{in millions of euros) value value value value
Nominal valug of borrowings 6421 4,230
Cumulative effect of amortized cost 123) (14)
Borrowings at amortized cost 6,398 6,512 na 4,216 429 na
Commitments to purchase non-controlling interests 528 528 1- 114 114 3
Derivative financial instruments " 11 3 ] ?
Borrowings and other financial liahilities 6,937 7,051 4,336 44N

na: not applicable.

a. The three classification levels for the measurement of financial liabilities at fair value are defined in Note 1.3.1.

b. Includes the firm commitment of €360 million related to the share buyback program in place as of December 31, 2019, classified in

Level 1 {please refer to Note 16).
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20.2 Bonds
, ) In.temst rate (%). Maturity December 37, 2018 December 31, 2018
{in millions of euros) nominal effective
Bonds issued by Vivendi SA
€700 million {June 2019) {a) 0.000% 0.17% Jun-22 700 -
€700 million {June 2019) (a) 0.625% 0.67% Jun-25 700
€700 million iJune 2019} {a) 1.125% 1.27% Dec-28 700 -
€850 million (September 2017) 0.875% 0.99% Sep-24 850 850
€600 million {(November 2016) 1.125% 1.18% Nov-23 600 600
€1 billion {May 2016) 0.750% 0.90% May-21 1,000 1,000
£500 million (May 2018) 1.875% 1.93% May-26 500 500
£700 million {December 2009) 4 875% 4.95% Dec-18 - o) 700
Bonds issued by Havas SA
£400 milfion {Oecember 2015} 1.875% 1.94% Dec-70 400 400
Nominaf value of honds 5,450 4,050

a. OnJune 4, 2019, Vivendi SA issued a €2.1 hillion bond, in three tranches of €700 million each.
b.  This bond was fully redeemed at maturity in December 2019.
Bonds issued by Vivendi SA and Havas SA are listed on the Euronext Paris Stock Exchange.

On March 23, 2018, Vivendi set up a £€3 bitlion Euro Medium-Term Note (EMTN] program giving Vivendi full flexibility to issue bonds. This
program was renewed on March 22, 2019 and filed with the AMF {Autorité des marchds financigrs) under visa n®19-112 for a 12-month
period. The EMTN program amaunt was increased from €3 to €5 bifion (the prospectus supplement was granted a visa by the AMF on July 4,
7019}, and may be increased to €8 hillion, subject to the approval of Vivendi's Supervisory Board of February 13, 2020.

Bonds issued by Vivendi SA contain customary provisions related to events of default, negative pledge and rights of payment {pari-passu
ranking). They also contain an early redemption clause in the event of a change of control® if, as a result of any such event, the long-term
rating of Vivendi SA is downgraded below investment grade status (Baa3/BBB-).

Bands issued by Havas SA contain an early redemption clause in the event of a changs of control”.
20.3 Bank credit facilities

On January 186, 2019, Vivendi SA's syndicated bank credit facility was amended for an amount of €2.2 billion and its maturity was extended
by one-year on January 21, 2020 until January 16, 2025 {with one-year extension option). In addition. in January 2019, Vivendi signed
committed bilateral credit facilities granted by leading banks, for an aggregate available amount of €1.2 billion maturing in January 2024.

All these credit facilities are no longer required to comply with financial covenants but they contain custemary provisions relating to events
of default and covenants applicable to Vivendi in terms of negative pledge and merger transactions.

On February 14, 2019, Vivend|'s Supervisory Board approved the Management Board's proposal to increase the maximum amount of Vivend
SA’s short-term marketable securities program authorized by the Banque de France ta £3.4 billion.

As of December 31, 2019, £2.5 hillion of Vivendi SA’s facilities were available, taking into account the short-term marketable securities
issued and backed by these credit facilities for €870 million.

As of February 10, 2020 (the date of Vivendi's Management Baard meeting that approved the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year
ended December 31, 2019), £€2.6 billion of Vivendi SA's facilities were available, taking inte account the short-term marketable securities
issued and hacked hy these credit facilives for €771 millian.

? Bolloré Groun was carved out of the change -of-controi provision under the Gionds fssued in May 2016 and November 2016.
* Change of control is defined as tha settlement/delivery of a tendar offer following which one or more individualls) or legal entitiefs) which does/do not belong to Bolloré Group
and Vivendi, acting in ispiation or in concert, acquivels) over 50% of Havas SA's share capilal or voting rights,
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In addition, Havas SA has committed credit facilities, undrawn as of December 31, 2019, granted by leading banks for an aggregate amount
of €510 million, including €30 million maturing in 2020, €30 million maturing in 2021, €150 millian maturing in 2023, €250 million maturing in
2024 and €50 million maturing in 2025. The credit facilities maturing until 2023 are required ta comply with the following financial covenants
at each annual closing date:

s Adjusted EBITDA® to Nat interest expense® ratio must be higher than 3.5°, and

¢ Adjusted Net Debt® to Adjusted EBITDA ratio must be lower than 3.

As of February 10, 2020 {the date of Vivendi's Management Board meeting that approved the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year
ended December 31, 2018), €2.9 hillion of Vivendi group’s (Vivendi SA and Havas SA} facilities were available, taking into account the short-
term marketable securities issued and backed by these credit facilities for nearly €1.0 billion,

204 Borrowings by maturity

{in millions of euros) December 31, 2018 December 31, 2018
Maturity

<1 year {a) 1,362 21% 869 21%
Between 1 and 2 years 1,004 16% 403 9%
Between 2 and 3 years 702 1% 1,003 24%
Between 3 and 4 years 601 9% 1 -
Between 4 and 5 years 851 13% 8071 14%
> hyears 1,901 30% 1,353 32%
Nominal value of borrowings 6421 100% 4,230 100%

a.  As of December 31, 2019, short-term borrowings (with a maturity period of less than one year] notably included marketable securities
issued by Vivendi SA for €870 million, Havas SA’s bond maturing in December 2020 for €400 million, as well as bank averdrafts for
€18 million. compared to €98 million as of December 31, 2018. As of Oecember 31, 2018, they notebly included Vivendi SA’s bond,
which expired in December 2019 for €700 million.

The average "economic” term of the group’s financial debt, calculated based on the assumption that available medium-term credit lines may
be used to redeem the group’s shortest term borrowings, was 5.3 years as of December 31, 2019 (compared to 5.3 years as of December 31,
2018, taking into account the bank financing signed in January 2019).

As of Decemnber 31, 2019, the future undiscounted cash flows related to borrowings and other financial liabilities amounted to €6,803 million
(compared to €4,558 million as of December 31, 2018) with a carrying value of £6,577 million {compared to €4,336 million as of December 31,
2018) and are set out in Note 23.1 in the group’s contractual minimum future payments schedule.

205 Interest rate risk management

Vivendi's interest rate risk management seeks to reduce its net exposure to interest rate increases. Therefore, Vivendi uses, if needed, pay-
floating and pay-fixed interest rate swaps. These instruments thus enable the group to manage and reduce volatility for future cash flows
related to interest payments an barrowings.

As of December 31, 2019, the nominal value of borrowings at fixed interest rate amounted to £5,489 million {compared to €4.087 million as
of December 31, 2018} and the nominal value of borrewings at floating interast rate amounted 1o €932 million [compared to €133 million as
of December 31, 2018).

As of December 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018, Vivendi did not subscribe to any pay-floating or pay-fixed interest rate swaps.

° Corresponds, on the basis of Havas Group's consolidated financial statements as of December 31 of each year, to income from operations plus intangible and tangible fixed
asset depreciation and amortization, stock gption charges and other compensation as defined by IFRS 2.

5 Corresponds, on the basis of Havas Group’s consolidated financial statements as of December 31 of each year, to the total amount of financial expenses minus interest
income, excluding net provisions on financial assets and financial expenses in connection with the repurchase or the restructuring of the convertible bond fines.

" This covenant does nat apply to the credit facilities maturing in 2023,

¢ Corresponds. at a given date and on the basis of Havas Group’s consolidated financial statements, to convertible bends and other borrowings and financial liabilities
fexcluding convertible bonds to be redeemed in shares) minus cash and cash equivalents as recorded in Havas Group’s consolidated financial statements prepared under IFRS.
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206 Foreign currency risk management

Breakdown by currency

(in millions of euros) December 31, 2018 December 31, 2018
Euro - EUR 8,346 99% 4111 97%
US dollar - USD 3 - g -
Qther 72 1% m 3%
Nominal value of borrowings before hedging 6,421 100% 4,230 100%

Currency swaps USD 577 693

Other currency swaps 173) {71)

Net total of hedging instruments (a) 504 622
Eurg - EUR 6,850 107% 4,733 12%
US aoilar - USD {574} 8% {665} -16%
Other 145 2% 162 4%
Nominal value of borrowings after hedging 6,421 1600% 4,230 100%

a. Notional amounts of hedging instruments translated into euros at the closing rates.

Foreign currency risk

The group’s foreign currency risk management is centralized by Vivendi SA’s Financing and Treasury Department for all its controfied
subsidiaries, except if, during a transition period, an acquired subsidiary is authorized to pursue, at its level, spot and forward exchange
transactions. This policy primarily seeks to hedge budget exposures (at an 80% level) resulting from monetary flows generated by operations
performed in currencies other than the euro as well as from external firm commitments (at a 100% level}, primarily relating to the acquisition
of editorial cantent {e.g., sports, audiovisual and film rights} and certain capital expenditures {e.g.. set-top boxes), realized in currencies other
than the euro. All of the hedging instruments are foreign currency swaps or forward contracts that mosily have a maturity period of Jess than
one year. Considering the foreign currency hedging instruments set up, an unfavorable and uniform eure change of 1% against all foreign
currencies in pasition as of December 31, 2019 would have a non-significant cumulative impact on net earnings. In addition, the group may
hedge foreign currency exposure resulting from foreign-cutrency denominated financial assets and liabilities. Moreover, due to their non-
significant nature, net exposures related to subsidiaries” net working capital (internal flows of royalties as well as external purchasesj are
generally not hedged. The associated risks are reduced at the end of each month by transtating the amounts into the functional currency of
the relevant operating antities.
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The following tables set out the foreign currency risk management instruments used by the group, the positive amounts relate to currencies
to be received and the negative amounts relate to currencies to be delivered at contractual exchange rates:

December 31, 2019

Naotional amounts Fair value
{in millions gf euros) Total usp PLN GBP Other Assets Liabilities
Sales against the euro {524) {152} (185) (58) {131) 1 6
Purchases against the euro 1.303 786 120 18 279 20 3
Other - {225) 140 51 3 4 2
779 409 75 13 182 25 1"
Breakdown by accounting category of foreign currency hedaing instruments
Cash Flow Hedge
Sales against the euro (118} (45) (30} - {40} 2
Purchases against the euro 59 53 - B - -
Other - (38) 36 - 2 1
(57) {30) 6 6 (38) - 3
Fair Value Hedge
Sales against the eure (366} {107) (155) (26) (78) - 4
Purchases against the auro 848 733 - 12 3 19 ?
Other - (119) 104 15 - 4 1
482 507 {51) 101 {75) 23 7
Economic Hedging (a)
Sales against the euro (42) - - (30} {12 1 -
Purchases against the euro 3% - 120 - 276 1 1
Other - (68) - 35 32 - -
354 {68) 120 6 296 2 1
December 31, 2018
Notional amounts Fair value
{in millions of euros) Total usD PLN GBP Other Assets Liabilities
Sales against the euro {408) {131) {(170) 162) {45) - 3
Purchases against the evro 1,727 942 128 133 524 19 2
Other - {235) 100 94 44 5 1
1,319 576 58 165 520 24 6
Breakdown by accounting category of foreign currency hedding instruments
Cash Flow Hedge
Sales against the eurg {33} {1} (16} (16) - -
Purchases against the euro 9z 45 - 47 4 -
Other - {23) 14 - g - -
29 21 {2} - 40 4 -
Fair Value Hedge
Sales against the euro (313) (130) {(154) - {29} - 3
Purchases against the eura 913 780 - 133 - 13 !
Other - {136) 86 49 1 5 1
600 514 (68) 182 (28) 18 5
Economic Hedging (a)
Sales egainst the euro (62} - - (62) - - -
Purchases against the euro 722 117 128 - 477 2 1
Other - {76) - 45 3 - -
660 41 128 {17) 508 2 1

a.  The economic hedging instruments relate to derivative financial instruments that are not eligible for hedge accounting pursuant to

IAS 9.
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December 31, 2019

December 31, 2018

{in millions of euros) Note

Assets Liabilities

Assets

Liabilities

Intergst rate risk management
Foreign currency risk management
Other

20.5
206

25 "

24
14

Derivative financial instruments

25 11

38

Deduction of current derivative finantial instruments
Non-current derivative financial instruments

Unrealized gains and losses recognized directly in equity

(8i (6)
17 5

(74
3

(3

Cash Flow Hedge

Interest rate risk
management

{in millions of euros)

Foreign currency
risk management

Net lnvestment
Hadge

Total

Balance as of January 1, 2018

Charges and income directly recognized in equity
Items to be reclassified to profit or loss

Tax effect

Balance as of December 31, 2018

Charges and income directty recognized in equity
Items to ba reclassified to profit or loss

Tax effect

3}
3

(4}

81

81

13

)
4

Balance as of December 31, 2019

4

31

7

20.8 Credit ratings

As of February 10, 2020 {the date of Vivendi's Management Board meeting that approved the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year

ender Nerember 31, 2019), Vivendt's credit ratings were as follows:

Rating agency Type of debt Ratings Outleck
Standard & Poor's Senior unsecured debt B8 Stable
Moody's Long-term senior unsecured debt BaaZ Stable

Note 21

211 Adjustments

{in millions of gurps)

Items related to operating activities with ne cash impact
Amartization and depreciation af intangible and tangrble assets
Change in provision, net

Qther non-cash items from EBIT

Other

Income from equity affiliates - operational

Praceeds from sates of praperty, plant, equipment and intangible assets
Adjustments

21.2

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

Investing and financing activities with no cash impact

In 2018, there were no significant investing and financing activities with no cash impact.

Year ended December 31,

Note 2019 2018
3 744 453
30 (25)
- 4
{4) {7
9 7
779 432
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Note22  Related parties

Vivendi's related parties are corporate officers, members of Vivendi's Supervisory and Management Boards, as well as other related parties,
including:

¢ companies fully consolidated by Vivendi. The transactions between these companies have been eliminated for the preparation of
Vivendi's Consolidated Financial Statements;

¢ companies over which Vivendi exercises a significant influence;

« all companies in which corporate officers or their close relatives hold significant voting rights;

« minority shareholders exercising a significant influence over the group’s subsidiaries; and

» Bolloré Group's related parties, as Vivendi has been fully consolidated by Bolloré Group since April 28, 2017.

22.1 Corporate officers

Supervisory Board

The Supervisory Board is currently comprised of 11 members, including an employee shareholder representative and an employee
representative. It is made up of six women, i.e., a ratio of 60% lin accordance with Law n°2011-103 of January 27, 2011, the emplayee
representative is not taken into account for the calculation of this percentage). In 2019 and 2018, the composition of the Supervisory Board
changed as follows:

» onApril 15, 2019, Vivendi's General Shareholders' Meeting appointed Mr. Cyrille Bolloré as member of the Supervisory Board for a
four-year period. thereby replacing Mr. Vincent Bolloré who decided to terminate his term of office as memkber of the Supervisory
Board following the Sharehalders' Meeting. At the same meeting, Mr. Dominique Delport's term of office as member of the
Supervisery Board was renewed for a four-year period.

Mr. Tarak Ben Ammar’s term of office as member of the Supervisory Board expired on April 15, 2019. Mr. Tarak Ben Ammar did not
ask for the renewal of his office. Since that date, Quinta Communications is no longer a selated party to Vivendi.

« onApril 19, 2018, Vivendi's General Shareholders' Meeting appointed Ms. Michéle Reiser as member of the Supervisory Board for a
four-year period, and renewed the terms of affice of Ms, Aliza Jabés, Ms. Cathia Lawson-Rall, Ms. Katie Stanton and Mr. Philippe
Bénacin as members of the Supervisary Board for the same period.

Fallowing the Shareholders’ Meeting of April 19, 2018, Vivendi's Supervisory Board unanimously appointed Mr. Yannick Bolloré as
Chairman, replacing Mr. Vincent Bolloré, The Supervisory Board also confirmed Mr. Philippe Bénacin as Vice-Chairman.

With respect to fiscal year 2019, the gross compensation of Mr. Yannick Bolloré, as Chairman of the Supervisory Board amounted to
£400,000, including the amount paid pursuant to Article L. 225-83 of the French Commercial Code (Code de commerce) (“allocated
compensation”, formerly directors’ fees) of €60,000.
With respect to fiscal year 2018, the gross compensation of the Chairman of the Supervisory Board amounted to €400,000, including the
allocated compensation of £60,000, granted as follows:
+ the gross compensation of Mr. Vincent Bolloré, as Chairman of the Supervisory Board until April 19, 2018, amounted to €122,376,
including the allocated compensation of £20,000; and
« the gross compensation of Mr. Yannick Bolloré, as Chairman of the Supervisory Board since April 19, 2018, amounted to €277,624,
including the allocated compensation of £40,000.

In addition, as Chairman and Chief Executive (fficer of Havas, a Vivendi subsidiary, Mr. Yannick Bolloré received a compensation, as well as
benefits in kind, totaling a gross amount of €1,428,993 in 2019 {including a variable portion of €370,000 paid in 2019 with respect to fiscal
year 2018), compared to £1,058,993 in 2018 {fixed compensation; no payment paid in 2018 for the variable share). On Febsuary 14, 2019, M.
Yarnick Bolloré was granted 18,000 Vivend performance shares (18,000 shares granted on May 17, 2018), subject to the satisfaction of
certain performance criteria as described in Note 19.1.1.

With respect to fiscal year 2019, the gross amount of the compensation paid to the members of the Supervisory Board was an aggregate
gross amount of £1,100,000 {compared to €1,140,000 with respect to the same fiscal year).
Management Board

The Management Board is currently comprised of seven membars. At its meeting held on May 17, 2018, the Supervisory Board, upon the
recommendation of the Corporate Governance, Naminations and Remuneration Committee, unanimously approved the renewal for a four-
year period of the term of affice {which expired on June 23, 2018) of sach member of the Management Board and its Chairman.

Financial Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2019 Vivendi / 103



Thursday February 13, 2020

In 2019, the gross compensation paid by the Vivendi group to the Management Board members amounted to €10.6 million {compared to
£9.6 million in 2018 taking into account pro ratas). This amount included:
» fixed compensation of £5.9 million {compared to €5.3 million in 2018);
e variable compensation of €4 million paid in 2019 with respect to fiscal year 2018 (compared to £3.6 million paid in 2018 with respect
to fiscal year 2017},
+ cther compensation paid or allocated by contralled subsidiaries; and
* benefits in kind.

The charge recorded by Vivendi with respect to equity-settled share-based compensation plans granted to the members of the Management
Board amounted to €3.6 million in 2019 {compared ta €3.3 million in 2018).

As part of new requirements of French Executive Order No. 2013-637 of July 3, 2019 relating to supplemental accupationat pension plans,
the Supervisory Board decided, at its meeting held on November 14, 2018, upon the recommendation of the Corporate Gavernance,
Nominations and Remuneration Committee, to set the tights of the group supplemental defined-benefit pension plan according to the
seniority acquired as of {Jecember 31, 2019. The Supervisory Board, at its meeting held on February 13, 2020, confirmed that the
performance criteria applying to the pension rights growth rate under this plan had been met with respect to fiscal year 2619. The charge
recorded by Vivendi related to such rights as of December 31, 7019 under pension commitments toward Management Board members and
high-level management amounted to €14.9 million in 2019 {compared to €7.7 million in 2618}, inciuding the charge recorded by Vivendi
refated to vested rights according to the seniority acquired as of December 31, 2019. As of Oecember 31, 2019, their net pension
commitments amounted to €58.4 milfion {compared to €44.4 miflian as of ODecember 31, 2018). The implementation of a new group benefit
supplemental pension plan is expected in 2020, as described in the compensation policy of the Chairman and members of the Management
Board, which will be included in the report on corporate governance pursuant to Article L. 225-68 of the french Commercial Code and
included in section 2 of Chapter 3 of the Annual Repert — 2019 Universal Registration Document.

The Chairman of the Management Board, Mr. Amaud de Puyfontaine, waived his employment contract. In accardance with the resolutions
approved by the General Shareholders’ Meeting held on April 17, 2015, he is entitled 10 severance compensation upon an involuntary
termination, subject to the satisfaction of performance conditions. At its meeting held on February 14, 2019, the Supervisory Board, upon the
recommendation of the Corporate Governance, Nominations and Remuneration Committee, decided:
s 1o increase from 80% to 90% the minimum achievement level of performance criteria conditioning the paymant of the severance
compensation; and
e to revoke his right to maintain all rights to perfarmance shares. These rights may be maintained, if appropriate, pro rata to the
duration of his presence within the Group during the vesting period, subject to the satisfaction of the related performance criteria.
Dn February 14, 2019, the Chairman of the Management Board was granted 40,000 Vivendi perfarmance shares {compared tg 50,000 shares
granted on May 17, 2018},
At its meetings held on May 17, 2018 and July 30, 2018, after having examined the impact of the termination of his executive duties with
Telecom itatia on April 24, 2018°, the Supervisory Board, upon the recammendation of the Corporate Governance, Nominations and
Remuneration Committee, decided {i} to no longer apply a pro rata factor to his reference compensation for 2018, {ii} to increase tha fixed
part af his reference compensation to €1,400,000, with the performance criteria and threshalds used to determing the variable part
remaining unchanged, and {iif} to pay him a single amount of £390,000.

The report on corporate governance that will be included in Chapter 3 of the Annual Report — 2019 Universal Registration Document will
contain a detailed description of the compensation policy to Vivendi's corporate officers far 2020, This chapter will also contain details of the
fixed and variable components of their compensation and the benefits of any kind paid in fiscal year 2019 or attributed with respect to the
same fiscal year.

Other high-level management

At its meeting held on April 15, 2019, following the Shareholders' Meeting and upon the recommendation of the Corporate Governance,
Nominations and Remuneration Committee, the Supervisary Board unanimously appointed Mr. Vincent Bolloré as non-voting beard member
(censeun far a four-year period and as Advisor to the Chairman of Vivendi’s Management Board. As non-voting board member (censeur), Mr,
Vincent Bolloré receives no compensation. Pursuant to his employment contract as Advisor to the Chairman of Vivendi's Management Board,
Mr. Vincent Bolloré's gross annual fixed compensation amounts to €500,000, with a variable portion (target: 80%; maximum: 100%})
determined according to the same performance criteria as those used for Vivendi SA's main operational managers.

¥ Eliminatiar of the payment by Tefecom itafia of his fixed compensation with respect (o fiscal year 2018 as from that date and nion-payment of Ais variable compensation with
respect o fiscal year 2017,
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222 Bolloré Group

On April 18, 2019, as part of Vivendi's payment of a dividend to its shareholders with respect to fiscal year 2018, Bolloré Group received a
dividend of €165 million {compared to a dividend with respect to fiscal year 2017 of €134 million, which was paid in 2018).

Between June 5 and June 13, 2018, Ballord Group declared the sale of 11.5 million call options an Vivendi shares maturing on June 25, 2619
for £36.6 million to finance the exercise, on June 13, 2019, of the remaining 1.8 million options giving right to an equivalent number of
Vivendi shares, at a price of £20.1452 per share.

On June 25, 2019, Bolloré Group declared that the 11.3 million Vivendi shares held pursuant to a temporary share sale agreement maturing
on June 25, 2019 had been returnad.

On December 31, 2019, Bolloré Group held 320,517,374 Vivendi shares carrying an amount of 372,950,213 voting rights, i.e., 27.06% of
Vivendi's share capital and 29.64% of the gross vating rights.

In light of the analysis conducted by Bolloré Group. following Vivendi’s General Shareholders’ Meeting held on April 25, 2017, of other facts
and circumstances that indicate its ability to direct the relevant activities of Vivendi, Bolloré Group determined that the conditions of control
within the meaning of IFRS 10 were fulfilled. The shareholding in Vivend:. which had previously been acccunted for using the equity method
since October 7, 2016, was fully consalidated as from April 26, 2017.

22.3 Other related-party transactions

Vivendi's other related parties are companies over which Vivendi exercises a significant influence [i.e., primarily Telecom ltalia, Banijay
Group Holding and Vevo: please refer to Note 12) and companies in which Vivendi’s carperate officers or their close relatives hald significant
voting rights. They notably included Bolleré Group and its subsidiaries, either directly or indirectly controlled by Mr. Vincent Bolloré, high-
level management at Vivendi, and his family. Moreover, as Bolloré Group has fully consolidated Vivendi since April 28, 2017, Vivendi's
related parties also include Bolloré Group’s related parties (in particular Mediobanca).

In addition, certain Vivendi subsidiaries maintain business relationships, on an arm’s-length basis, involving non-material amounts, with
Groupe Nuxe {contralled by Ms. Aliza Jabés, a member of Vivendi‘s Supervisory Board) and Interparfums {controlled by Mr. Philippe Bénacin,
Vice Chairman of Vivend’s Supervisory Board),
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December 31,2019 December 31, 2018

Non-current content assets 1 1
Rights-of-use relating ta leasss 7 na
Of which Bolloré Goup 7 na
Non-turrent financial agsets 99 86
Of which Banijay Group Holding and Lov Banijay bonds g8 73
Trade accounts receivabte and other 87 60
Of which Bolioré Goup 4 5
Telecom fialia (a) 32 29
Banijay Group Holding (b} 2 2
Medfabanca {c! 4 K
Liahilities
Lease liabilities 8 na
Of which Bolloré Group g na
Trade accounts payable and other 35 29
Of which Bolloré Group 8 13
Banijay Group Holding {b) g 10
Off-balance sheet contractual obligations, net 7 168
Of which Banijay Group Holding (b} 90 140
Year ended December 31,
{in millions of euros) 2019 2018
Statement of earnings
Operating income 232 238
Of which Bolioré Group 7 g
Telecom ftalia {a) g 74
Banijay Group Holding (b 3 Vs
Mediobanca [c) i
Bleufontaine (dj 7
QOther (Interparfums and Groupe Nuxe) fe) ! -
Operating expenses (114} (108)
Of which Bolloré Group {31) 24
Banifay Group Holding (b) {55) 52}

Mediobanca (c) i2)
Bleufontaine (d) -
Other (interparfums and Groupe Nuxe) (e)

na: not applicable.

Certain Vivendi subsidiaries have rendered oparating services to Telecom [talia and its subsidiaries, on an arm’s-length basis (mainly
cammunication services and music sales}: operating income of €5.2 millian for Havas Group {£14.8 million in 2018), €1.7 mitlion for

Vivendi and its subsidiaries (mainly Canal+ Group) entered into production and program purchase agresments with certain Banijay

Certain Havas Group subsidiaries have rendered communications services 10 Mediobanca and its subsidiaries on an arm’s-length basis.

Between January 1 and April 15, 2018, Canal+ Group recorded an operating charge of £0.2 milkion aver Bleufontaine {formerly Quinta
Communications) relating to repayments on the operation of their Studiocanal catalog. In 2018, Canal+ Group sold rights to Studiocanal
catalog movies to Bleufontaine, notably Paddington 2, representing an operating income of €1.7 million and recorded an operating
charge of €0.3 million. Mr, Tarak Ben Ammar’s term of office as member of the Supervisory Board expired on April 15, 2018. Mr. Tarak

a.
Universal Music Group {€4.4 million in 2018) and €1.3 million for Gameloft (€4.2 million in 2018).
b.
Group Holding subsidiaries on an arm's-length basis.
c.
d.
Ben Ammar did not ask for the renewal of his office. Since that date, Bieufontaine is no fonger a related party to Vivendi.
8.
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Certain Vivendi subsidiaries maintained business relationships, on an arm’s-length basis, involving non-significant amounts with
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The following constitutes complementary information about certain related-party transactions (of which the amounts are included in the
table above):

CanalQlympia (Vivendi Village's subsidiary} and Boltoré Africa Lagistics {Belloré Group's subsidiary) entered into an agreement 1o
take over the operations of nine Bluezones and two Blughus lines of Bolloré Africa Logistics, for an eight-year period starting
January 1, 2018, with the aim to develop CanalQlympia’s venues netwaork in Africa. For the occupancy of land and buildings, and for
the solar energy supply, CanalOlympia paid a rent of €1 million in 2019, and will pay rent of £1.5 million per year from 2020 to 2025.
Given that CanalOlympia and Bolloré Africa Logistics have no cammon directors and executive managers, this agreement is not
regulated by the procedurs applying to related-party agieements.

On June 2, 2017, Vivendi SA acquired a 5% interest in the Economic Interest Grouping (GIE - Groupement d'intérét économique) Fleet
Management Services, a Balloré Group’s subsidiary dedicated, among other things. to providing air transport operations, for a
consideration of €0.1 million. This acquisition entailed the correlative transfer of the portion of the coresponding reciprocal
receivables and payables related to the special depreciation of the GIE's assets, i.e., receivables for £1.9 million {compared to
£1.8 million as of December 31, 2018) and payables for the same amount as of December 31, 2019 {compared to €1.8 million as of
Decembar 31, 2618). In addition, on the same date, Havas Group acquired a 2% interest in this GIE. The charge recognized with
respect to the use of the GIC's services by Vivend Group amounted to €3.5 million in 2019 {compared ta £2.3 million in Z018}.

In addition, the Supervisory Board, at its meeting on November 14, 2019, formalized a procedure for regularly assessing agree ments on
ordinary transections and entered into on an arm’s length basis, pursuant 1o Article L. 225-87 of the amended French Commercial Code. This
procedure and its implementation will be included in section 1.2.10 of Chapter 3 of the Annual Report — 2019 Universal Registration
Document.

Note23  Contractual obligations and other commitments

Vivendi's material contractual obligations and contingent assets and liabilities include:

certain contractual obligations relating to the groun’s husiness operations, such as content commitments (please refer to Note 10.2),
contractua) obligations and commercial commitments recerded in the Statement of Financial Position, including leases and off-
balance sheet commercial commitments, such as long-term service contracts and purchase or investment commitments;

commitments related to the group’s consolidation scope made under acquisitions or divestitures such as share purchase or sale
commitments, contingent assets and liahilities subsequent to given or received commitments related to the divestiture or acquisition
of shares, commitments under shareholders” agreements and collateral and pledges granted to third parties over Vivendi's assets;

commitments related to the group’s financing: undrawn confirmed bank credit facilities as well as the management of interest rate,
foreign currency and liquidity risks (please refer ta Note 20.3}; and

contingent assets and liabilities resulting from legal proceedings in which Vivendi and/or its subsidiaries are either plaintiff or
defendant {please refer to Note 24).

231 Contractual abligations and commercial commitments

Minimum future payments as of December 31, 2019 Total minimum future

Payments dug in paymernits as of

tin milhons of euros) Note Total 2020 2021-2024  After2024  December 31, 2018
Borrowings and other financial liabilities 6.809 1,450 340 1,958 4558
Lease liabilities 1,45% (al 236 720 503 na
Content liabilities 10,2 3,218 3113 100 5 2,849
Consolidated statement of financial position items 11,486 4,799 4221 2,466 7,507
Contractual content commitments 10.2 6,227 2,057 4,090 80 5,339
Commercial commitments (728) (1,17} 165 124 128
Net commitments not recorded in the Gonsolidated
Statement of Financial Pasition 5499 1,040 4,255 204 5,467
Operating leases and subleases na {a} na na na 1,453
Total contractual chligations and commitments 16,985 5,839 8,476 2670 14,421

na: not applicable.
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a.  Asfrom January 1, 2019, Vivendi applies the new accounting standard IFRS 16 ~ Leases, In accordance with IFRS 16, the impact of the
change of accounting standard was recorded in the opening balance sheet as of January 1, 2019. For a detailed description, please refer
to Notes 1.1 and 11. Assessing the lease term relates to the non-cancellable period of the lease, and taking into account all options ta
extend the lease that Vivendi is reasonably certain to exercise and all opticns to terminate the lease that Vivendi is reasonably cestain
not to exercise,

Off-balance sheet commercial commitments

Minimum future payments as of December 31, 2019 Total minimum future
Duein payments as of

{in millians of eures) Tatal 2020 2021 -2024  After 2024 December 31, 2018
Satellite transponders 502 107 nm 84 471
Investment commitments 179 103 65 1 179
Cther (a] 620 776 315 23 550
Given commitments 1301 486 691 124 1.210
Satellite transponders {108) {53} (55) - (124)
Other (a) {1,821} (1,450} {471} - (958}
Received commitments {2,029} {1,503 (526} - (1,082)
Net total (728) (1,017) 165 124 128

a. Includes minimum guarantees to be received by the group pursuant ta distribution agreements entered into with third parties, notably
Internet Service Providers and other digital platforms.

In addition, Canal+ Group and the telecom operators Free, Orange and Bouygues Telecom entered into distribution agreements of Canal
channels. The variable amounts of these commitments, which are based on the number of subscribers, cannot be seliably determined and are
not reported in either the Statement of Financial Position or described in the commitments. They are instead recorded as an expense or
income in the period in which they were incurred.

On March 14, 2017, Boulogne Studios, a whally-owned subsidiary of Vivendi, entered into a bilateral land purchase agreement with “Val de
Seine Aménagement”, the local public urban developer of the Parisian suburb Boulagne-Billancourt, for @ construction project on the fle
Seguin. This purchase agreement was subject to certain conditions precedant, in particular the procurement of a building permit. This project
consisted of building a campus of appraximately 150,000 m? which would have, in five to seven years, housed a group of companies notably
operating in husiness sectars such as media and content, as well as digital, sparts and sustainable development. On that date, to guarantee
the satisfaction of its purchase obligations amounting to a total of approximately €330 million, Vivendi paid a €70 million deposit that had in
be returned if the transaction was not completed by Vivendi. At the end of the first quarter of 2018, the parties terminated the
abovementioned purchase agreement by mutual agreement and, on March 25, 2019, the €70 million deposit was returned to Vivendi.

23.2 Other commitments given or received relating to operations

Given commitments amounted cumulatively to €129 mitlion {compared to €37 million as of December 31, 2018). In addition, Vivend: and
Havas Group have granted guarantess in various forms to financial institutions or third parties on behalf of their subsidiaries in the course of
their operations,

Received commitments amounted cumulatively to €36 million {compared to €10 million as of December 31, 2018).
23.3  Share purchase and sale commitments

In connection with the purchase or sale of aperations and financial assets, Vivendi has granted or received commitments to purchase or sell
securities:

» Vivendi gave an undertaking to Ubisoft to sell all the shares it owns by March 7, 2019, the settlement date. In addition, Vivendi made
the commitment to refrain from purchasing Ubisaft shares for a period of five years (please refer to Note 2.4},

s On October 28, 2019, Banijay Group Holding entered inta a final agreement to acquire 100% of Endemol Shine's share capital. With
respect to this agreement, Vivendi gave an undertaking to participate in the financing of this acquisition for €100 million. with ng
significant change of its interest rate in Banijay Group Holding's share capital (please refer to Note 12.1}; and

e certain fiquidity rights relating to the strategic partnership entered into between Canal+ Group, (T and TVN as described in Note 23.5
below.

In addition, Vivendi and its subsidiaries granted or received put and call options on shares in equity affiliates and uncansolidated
investments.
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Centingent assets and liabilities subsequent to given or received commitments related to the
divestiture or acquisition of shares

Cnntext

Sale of Ubisoft (October 2018)

Sale of GVT (May 2015)

Sale of Maroc Telecom group {May 2014)

“Sale of Activision Blizzard {October 2013)

Aeqrrrsrtrgn of Bolloré Group'é channels
{September 2012}

Divestiture of PTC shares {December 2010}

Canal+ Group's pay-TV activities i France
{January 2007-July 2017)
Divestiture of PSG {June 2006)

NBC Universal transaction (May 20048Yard

subsequent amendments {2005 - 2010}

QOther contingent liabilities
Contingent assets
Acquisition of the companies that own and

manage &ll Paddington intellectual property rights,
except for the publishing rights {June 2016)

Aeqursrtlon of EMI Becarded Music (September o

202}

Characterls}lcs (ngtgrga[ldiarquynt]  Expiry
Unlimited slr}ecifficrwérrehtie's. T -
Hepresentationé and warranties, limited to sbeéifihally identified tax matters,-capp_ed at
BRL 180 million.
"~ Commitments undertaken in cannection with the sale: -
- Customary representations and warranties given to Etisalat, capped at 50% of the
sale price and at 100% in respact of claims refated to SPT,
- Warranties related to taxes, and 2018
- Warranties related to SPT. e 72[”87
- Unhmited general warranties; and
- Tax warranties capped at $200 million, under certain circumstances. )
Commitmants undertaken, in connection with the authorization of the acq_ur'srtrr_m_wrth 2019
- the French Competition Autharity, and
- the French Broadcasting Authority.
Commitments undertaken tofeﬁdrlfmgatron over the share ownershrp of PTC:
- Guarantees given to the Law Debenture Trust Company {LDTC}, for an amount up to
18.4% for the first 8125 million, 46% between €125 million and €288 million, and
50% thereafter; and
- Guarantee given to Poltel Investment's {Elektrim) judicial administrator.
Approva[ of the acquisition of TPS and CanalSatellite subject to compliance with 208
1njunctions ordered by the French Competition Authority,
Unlimited spacific warranties. . 208
- Breaches of tax representatlons and -
- Obligation to cover the Most Favgred Nation provisions.
Cumulated ameunt of €33 million (compa_red to €20 million as of December 31, 2018] -
General and specific warranties {including tax matters and guarantees related to the 2023

intellectual property}.

7-77C(Jrrrnritmehts relating to full pensierr ebﬂg_etiens in the United Kingdom assenrediby -
Citi, and

- Warranties relating to losses stemming fram taxes and litigation claims, in particular
those related to pension obligations in the United Kingdom.

Specific warranties, notably on film rights granted by the sellers.
Cumulated amount of £32 mrIIron [compared 1o €30 million as of December 31,2018}, -

Acquisition of Kinowelt (Apr_ii Zi(-l[jB)
_ Dther contingent assats

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the contingent assets and liabilities described above.

a.
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In connection with the sale of 88% aof Vivendi's interast in Activision Blizzard, which was completed on October 11, 2013 (the “Closing
Date”), Vivendi, ASAC Il LP, and Activision Blizzard gave certain reciprocal commitments customary for this type of transaction {i.e.,
representations, warranties and covenants). Vivendi, ASAC Il LP, and Activision Blizzard undertook to indemnify each other against any
losses stemming from any breach of their respactive commitments. Such indemnification is unlimited as to time and amount.

In addition, Vivendi has agreed to indemnify Activision Blizzard with respect to any tax or other liabilities of Amber Helding
Subsidiary Co. {"Amber”), the Vivendi subsidiary acquired by Activision Blizzard, relating to periods preceding the Closing Date. Such
indemnification is unlimited as to time and amount. Tax attributes {mainly net operating loss) held by Amber and assumed by Activision
Blizzard were estimated at more than $700 million, which represent a potential future tax benefit of approximately $245 million. Vivendi
agreed to indemnify Activision Blizzard, under certain circumstances, with respect to these tax atiributes, subject to a cap of
$200 million limited to fiscal years ending on or prior to December 31, 2016.

As a reminder, in connection with the creation of Activision Blizzard in July 2008, Activision and Vivendi entered into customary
agreements for this type of transaction, including tax sharing and indemnity agreements.

As part of the French Competition Authority's approval of the acquisition of the Divect 8 and Direct Star channels {renamed C8 and
CStar, respectively] granted on July 23. 2012 and renewed on April 2, 2014, Vivendi and Canal+ Group gave certain commitments for a
five-year period, renewable once.

On June 22, 2017, the French Competition Authority decided to keep, lift or revise certain commitments.

These commitments provide for restrictions on the acguisition of rights to American mavies and tetevision series from certain American
studios (Canal+ Group can henceforth enter into output deals bundling free-to-air and pay-TV rights with two American studios) and for
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French movies {the joint purchase of both free-to-air and pay-TV rights for more than 20 original French-language films per year is
prohibited), the separate negotiation of pay-TV and free-to-air rights for certain recent mavies and television series, limitations on the
acquisition by C8 and CStar of French catalog movies from Studiocanal {limited to 50% of the total number and total value of French
catalog movies purchased annually by each of these channels).

These commitments were operative until December 31, 2019. If market conditions change significantly, Canal+ Group will be able to
request that these commitments be lifted or partially or totally revised. An independent trustee, who was proposed by Canal+ Group
and approved by the French Competition Authority on August 30, 2017, is responsible for monitaring the implementation of the
commitments.

In addition, on September 18, 2012, the French Broadcasting Authority (Conseil Supérieur de F'Audiovisuel) approved the acquisition of
the Direct 8 and Direct Star channels (renamed C8 and CStar, respectively), subiect to compliance with certain commitments relating to
broadcasting, investment obtigations and transfer rights.

c.  On August 30, 2006, the merger between Canal+ Group’s pay-TV operations in france and TPS was authorized, in accordance with the
merger cantral regulatians, pursuant to a decision of the French Minister of Fcenomy, Finance and Industry, subject to Vivendi and
Canal+ Group complying with certain undertakings for a maximum period of six years, with the exception of those commitments
concerning the availability of channels and Video-on-demand (VOD), which could not exceed five years.

On October 28, 2009, the French Competition Authority opened an enquiry regarding compliance with certain undertakings given by
Canal+ Group in connection with the merger of Canalsatellite and TPS.
On July 23, 2012, the merger was once again cleared by the French Competition Authority, subject to cempliance with 33 injunctions.
These injunctions were issued for a five-year period, renewable once.
On June 22, 2017, following the reexamination of such injunctions, the French Competition Authority decided to maintain, fift or revise
certain of these injunctions.
These injunctions, which have been implemented by Canal+ Group since June 22, 2017, consist of the following main components:
= Acquisition of movie rights:
prohibition an entering into output deals for French films except if another pay-TV producer were to enter into an output deal
with any of the five main French producers/caproducers; and
disposal by the Canal+ Group of its interest in Orange Cinema Series — 0CS SNC o, failing this, adoption of measures that can
“neutralize” Canal+ Group's impact on Orange Cinema Series ~ OCS SNC.
» Distribution of pay-TV special-interest channels:
distribution of & minfmum number of independent channels, distributian of any channel holding premium rights, exctusive or
not, and preparation of a reference offer relating to taking over indepandent channels included in the Canalsat offer including,
among other things, the assumptions and methods to calculate minimal compensation for these independent channels.
» Video-on-demand (VOD) and subscription video-on-demand {SVOD):
- prohibition on purchasing VOD and SVOD exclusive broadcasting rights to ariginal French-language films owned by French right
holders and combining these rights with the purchases of rights for linear broadcast on pay-TV,
- limitation on the exclusive transfer f VOD and SVOD rights to Canal+ Group from Studiocanal’s French film catalog; and
prohibition on entering into exclusive distribution deals for the benefit of Canal+ Group's VOD and SVCD offers on Internet
Service Provider platforms.
These injunctions were operative until December 31, 2019. If market conditions change significantly, Canal+ Group will be able to
request that these injunctions be lifted or partially or totally revised. An independent trustee, who was proposed by Canal+ Group and
approved by the French Competition Authority on August 30, 2017, is respansible for monitoring the implementation of the injunctions.

Several guarantees given during prior years in connection with asset acquisitions or disposals have expired. However, the time periods or
statute of limitation of certain guarantees relating., among other things, to employees, envirenment and tax liabilities, in consideration of
share ownership, ar given notably in cannection with the winding-up of certain businesses or the dissolution of entities are still in effect. To
the best of Vivendi's knowledge, no material claims for indemnification against such liabilities have been made to date.

In addition, when sattling disputes and litigation, Vivendi regularly delivers commitments for damages to third parties that are customary for
transactions of this type.
Earn-out commitments related to the divestiture or acquisition of shares

Vivendi and its subsidiaries entered into agreements with certain minority shareholders providing for earn-out payments. They notably
included capped eam-outs payable in 2020 and 2022 under the agreement entered inta in June 2016 far the acquisition of 100% of the
companies that own and manage all Paddington intellectual property rights, except for the publishing rights.
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235 Shareholders’ agreements

Under existing shareholders’ or investors’ agreements {primarily those relating to Canal+ Pofand), Vivendi holds certain rights (e.g., pre-
emptive rights and rights of first offer} that give it control aver the capital structure of its consclidated companies having mirarity
shareholders. Conversely, Vivendi has granted similar rights to these other shareholders in the event that it sells its interests to third parties.

Moreover, pursuant to other shareholders’ agreements or the bylaws of other consolidated entities, equity affiliates or unconsolidated
interests, Vivendi or its subsidiaries have given or received certain rights (pre-emptive and other rights] entitiing them to maintain their rights
as shareholder.

In addition, in compliance with Article L. 225-100-3 of the French Commercial Cade, it is hereby stated that certain rights and obligations of
Vivendi under existing shareholders’ agreements may be amended or terminated in the event of a change of control of Vivendi or a tender
offer for Vivendi's shares. These shareholders’ agreements are subject to confidentiality provisions.

Strategic partnership among Canal+ Group, ITl and TVN

[Tl Neovision SA {a Canal+ subsidiary in Paland) is working collaboratively with its sharekolders and advisors to explore initial public offering
(IPO) rights held by the minority shareholders under the shareholders agreement. Group Canal+ intends to retain its role as the strategic
sharehalder of ITI Neovision SA regardless of such a process and its actual outcome which will depend on various factors, including market
conditions and obtaining the usual consents and approvals.

23.6 Collaterals and pledges

As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, no material asset in Vivendi's Statement of Financial Position was subject to a pledge or mortgage for
the benefit of third parties.

Note24  Litigation

In the normal course of its husiness. Vivendi is subject to varivus lawsuits, arbitrations and governmental, administrative or other
proceedings {collectively referred to herein as “Legat Froceedings”).

The costs which may result from thase Legal Proceedings are only recognized as provisions when they are fikely to be incurred and when the
obligation can reasonably be quantified or estimated, in which case, the amount of the provision represents Vivendi's best estimate of the
risk and is based on a case-by-case assessment of the risk level, provided that Vivendi may, at any time, reassess such risk if events occur
during such proceedings. As of December 31, 2019, provisions recorded by Vivendi for all claims and litigation were €289 miliion, compared
to €198 million as of January 1, 2019 (please refer to Note 17).

To the company’s knowledge, there are no Legal Proceedings or any facts of an exceptional nature {including any pending or threatened
proceedings in which it is a defendant), which may have or have had in the previous 12 months a material effect on the company and an its
group’s financial position, profit, husiness and property, other than those described herein.

The status of proceedings disclosed hereunder is described as of February 10, 2020 (the date of Vivendi's Management Board meeting that
approved the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2019),

LBBW et al. against Vivendi

On March 4, 2011, 26 institutional investors from Germany, Canada, Luxembourg, Ireland, ftaly, Sweden, Belgium and Austria filed a
complaint against Vivend: with the Paris Commercial Court seeking to obtain darnages for losses they allegedly incurred as a result of four
financial communications issued by Vivendi in October and December 2000, September 2001 and April 2002. Subsequently, on April 5 and
April 23, 2012, twa similar complaints were filed against Vivendi: the first one by a US pension fund, the Public Employee Retirement System
of ldaho, and the other by six German and British institutional investors. Lastly, on August 8, 2012, the British Columbia Investment
Management Corporation alse filed a complaint against Vivendi based on the same grounds. On January 7, 2015, the Paris Cammercial Court
appointed an independent court officer respensible for verifying the standing of the claimants and reviewing the documentation provided by
them to evidence their alleged holding of securities. After the latter completed his work in the first half of 2018, the proceedings an the
merits began and continued during 2014.

California State Teachers Retirement System et al. against Vivendi

On April 27, 2012, 7 institutional foreign investors filed a complaint against Vivendi before the Paris Commercial Court seeking damages for
fosses they allegedly incurred as a result of the financial communications made by Vivendi between 2000 and 2002. On June 7 and
September 5 and 6, 2012, 26 new plaintiffs joined these proceedings. In November 2012 and March 2014, 12 plaintiffs withdrew from these
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proceedings. On January 7, 2015, the Commercial Court of Paris appointed an independent court officer responsible for verifying the standing
of the claimants and reviewing the documentation provided by them to evidence their alleged holding of securities. After the latter
completed his work in the first half of 2018, the proceedings on the merits began and continued during 2019.

Mediaset against Vivendi

On April 8, 2016, Vivendi and Mediaset entered intc a strategic partnership agreement pursuant to which the parties agreed to swap a
3.5% interest in Vivendi in exchange for a 3.5% intergst in Mediaset and 100% of the share capital of the pay-TV company Mediaset
Premium, a subsidiary of Mediaset.

Vivendi’s purchase of Mediaset Premium was based on financial assumptions delivered by Mediaset to Vivendi in March 2016, which raised
various guestions within Vivendi that were addressed to Mediaset. As contractually agreed under the agreament dated April 8, 2016, a due
ditigence review was subsequently conducted (which was made on behalf of Vivendi by the advisory firm Deloitte}. It became apparent from
this audit and from Vivendi's analyses that the numbers provided by Mediaset prior to signing the agreement were not realistic and were
founded on an artificially-infiated base.

Although Vivendi and Mediaset had been in discussions in an effort to find an alternative transaction structure to the April 8, 2016
agreement, on July 26, 2016, Mediaset terminated these discussions by publicly rejecting the proposal Vivendi had submitted to it. This
proposal cansisted of a swap of 35% of Vivendi's share capital in exchange for 20% of Mediaset Premium's share capital and 3.5% of
Mediasel's share capiial and, for the balance, the issuance by Mediaset to Vivendi of bends convertible into Mediaset shares.

Subsequently, in August 2016, Mediaset together with its affiliate RTl, and Fininvest, Mediaset's majority sharehalder, each filed a
complaint against Vivendi hefore the Milan Civit Court seeking to obtain specific performance of the April 8, 2016 agreement and the related
shareholders’ agreement as well as compensation for alleged damages. In particular, the plaintiffs claim that Vivendi did nat file its
notification to the European Commission with respect to the transaction and thus prevented the last condition precedent to the completion of
the transaction from being satisfied. Vivendi considers that despite its timely completion of the pre-notification process with the
Commission, the Commission would not have accepted a formal filing while the parties were disgussing their ditferences.

At the first hearing held in the case, the judge enjoined the parties to come closer to try to reach an amicable resolution of their dispute. To
this end, on May 3, 2017, the parties began mediation proceedings before the Chamber of National and International Arbitration of Milan.

Despite this mediation, on June 9, 2017, Mediaset, BTl and Fininvest filed a further complaint against Vivendi seeking damages totaling
€2 billion for Mediaset and BT, and €1 billion for Fininvest, in connection with Vivendi's acquisition of Mediaset shares at the end of 2016.
According to the plaintiffs, who unsuccessfully requested that this action be consolidated with the first two, these acquisitions were made in
breach of the April 8, 2016 agreement and of the ltalian media regulations and constitutive of unfair competition rules. In addition, the
complaint includes a demand that Vivendi be required to divest the Mediaset shares which were allegedly purchased in breach of applicable
law and the April 8, 2016 agreement. Lastly, the plaintiffs requested that, pending such divestiture, Vivendi be enjoined from exercising its
rights {including voting rights) on such Mediaset shares.

On February 27, 2018, the Court noted the termination of the mediation proceadings. During a hearing held on Decermber 4, 2018, Fininvest,
RTl and Mediaset dropped, in respect of their first compiaint, their claim to specific parformance of the April 8, 2316 agreement, while
pursuing their claim for compensation for alleged damages, in the amount of up ta {i} £720 million for Mediaset and RT!, for non-perfarmance
af the April 8, 2016 agreement, and {ii} £ 1.3 billion for Fininvest, for non-performance af the above-mentianed shareholders' agreament, for
the loss resulting from the change in the Mediaset share price between July 26 and August 2, 2016 and various damages relating to the
alleged illegal acquisition of Mediaset shares by Vivendi at the end of 2016. Fininvest is also seeking damages for an amount to be
detarmined by the Court for damages to its decision-making process and image.

At & hearing held on March 12, 2019, Vivendi requested that the Court suspend part of the proceedings pending the ruling of the European
Court of Justice on the analysis of the compatibility of the ltalian law on the protection of media pluralism {the “TUSMAR") with the Treaty
on the Functioning of the Buropean Union, which suspension was granted (see below}.

Other proceedings related to Vivendi's entry into the share capital of Mediaset

Following Vivendi's entry into the share capital of Mediaset by means of open market purchases of shares during the months of
November and December 2016, culminating in a sharseholding of 28.80%, Fininvest stated that it had filed a complaint against Vivendi for
market manipulation with the Milan public prosecutor's office and the Consob, the ltalian financial markets regulator.

in addition, on December 21, 2016, the AGCOM, the halian communications authority, opened an investigation into the compatibility
between the increase in Vivendi’s holdings in Mediaset’s share capital and its position as a shargholder of Telecom Itaiia under [talian media
regulations.

On April 18, 2017, the AGCOM issued a decision in which it determined that Vivendi was not in compliance with the regulations. Vivendi,
which had 12 months to come into compliance, appealed against this decision to the Regional Administrative Court of Lazio. Pending the
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decision on this appeal, the AGCOM acknowledged Vivendi's proposed action plan setting out how it will comply with the decision. On
April 9, 2018, in compliance with the undertakings given to the AGCOM, Vivendi transferred the portion of its shareholding in excess of 10%
of Mediaset's voting rights to an independent trustee, Simon Fiduciaria SpA. On November 5, 2018, the Regional Administrative Court of
Lazio decided to suspend its decision and referred to the European Court of Justice the analysis of the compatibility of the ltalian rule under
Article 43 of the TUSMAR, as applied by AGCOM, with the free movement principle enshrined in the Treaty on the Functioning of the
European Union, On December 18, 2019, the Advocate General of the Court of Justice of the European Unicn (CJEU) issued opinions {which
are not binding on the Court) in favor of Vivendi's position, considering in particular that the Italian requlations constitute a disproportionate
obstacle to the freedom of establishment in relation to the objective of protecting the pluralism of information. The CJEU is expected ta rule
in the first half of 2020, after which the Italian court will render its decision.

Proceedings related to the change in Mediaset's corporate structure

On July 2, 2019, Vivendi filed a complaint against Mediaset and Fininvest before the Milan Civil Court requesting the Court to (i) annul the
resolution of the Mediaset Board of Directors adopted on April 18, 2019, preventing Vivend! from exercising the voting rights associated with
the shares not transferred to Simon Fiduciaria following the AGCOM'’s decisian of April 18, 2017 {representing 9.61% of the share capital
and 9.9% of the voting rights) at Mediaset's Extraordinary General Shareholders” Meeting held on April 18, 2019, and {ii} annul the resalution
adopted by that meeting approving the implementation of a double voting rights system for shareholders who have held their shares for at
least two years and who request such rights.

On June 7, 2019, Mediaset announced a plan to create MediaforEurope IMFE), a Netherlands-based holding company that would result from
tha merger of Mediasst SpA and Mediaset Espafia. On September 4, 2019, the merger plan was approved by the Shareholders” Meetings of
the ltalian and Spanish companies, and then re-approved (due 1o the appeals filed by Vivendi] by the Shareholders' Meetings of Mediaset
SpA and Mediaset Espafia on January 10 and February 5, 2020, respectively. At both of the meetings held in Italy, Simon Fiduciaria was
deprived of its vating rights by Mediaset's Board of Directors and Vivend: initiated legal proceedings in Spain, ltaly and the Netherlands:

- on September 16, 2019, Vivendi braught summary proceedings before the Madrid Commercial Court requesting the suspension of
the resolution authorizing the creation of MFE adopted by Mediaset Espafia’s Genera! Shareholders’ Meeting of September 4,
2019. In a decision issued on October 11, 2019, the Madrid Commercial Court granted Vivendi's request, a decision which
Mediaset has appealed. Vivendi has alsa initiated proceedings on the merits ta annul the resolution;

- on Octaber 1, 2018, Vivendi liled a motion on the merits with the Court of Milan seeking the annulment of the resolution
authorizing the creation of MFE adopted by Mediaset SpA’s Shareholders' Meeting of September 4, 2019, which resolution was
suspended following an interlocutory action brought in parallel by Vivendi on October 15, 2019. Following the amandments made
to MFE's by-laws proposed by Mediaset’s Board af Directors and approved by the Shareholders' Meeting of January 10, 2020,
Vivendi again filed a mation for summary judgment on the merits with the Court of Milan. In a decision issued on February 3, 2020,
the Court of Milan denied Vivendi's request for suspension of the planned merger. Vivendi announced that it would appeal against
this decision; and

- on October 29, 2019, Vivendi initiated proceedings on the merits before the District Court of Amsterdam seeking an injunction to
prohibit Mediaset Investment N V. (the future MFE) from amending its articles of asscciation by including certain provisions which,
according to Vivendi, infringe upon the rights of minority shareholders. Vivendi has also filed an interlocutory action in the
Netherlands seeking to obtain the suspension of the resolution adopted by Mediaset SpA's General Sharehelders' Meeting of
January 10, 2020.

Telecom Ralia

On August 5, 2017, the ltalian Government informed Vivendi that it was opening a formal investigation into whether certain provisions of
Law Decree No. 21 of March 15, 2012 on special powers of the Italian Government relative to the defense and national security sectars
{Article 1} and to activities of strategic importance in the fields of energy, transport and communications {Article 2), had been respected by
Telecom ltalia and Vivendi. Vivendi considered the provisions of that decree inapplicable to Vivendi. In particular, (i} Article 1, concerning the
defense and national security sectors had never been hitherto declared and communicated to the market given the nature of the activities
carried out by Telecom Italia, and {ii) Article 2, which relates to the energy. transport and communications sectors, does not apply to Vivendi
since it refers to purchases of significant shareholdings made by non-European entities.

Additionally, and in the same timeframe as the above-mentioned investigation, on September 13, 2017, the Consob declared that Vivendi
exercises de facto contral over Telecom Italia. Vivendi and Telecom Italia formally contest this position and appealed to the Lazio Regional
Administrative Court. On April 17, 2619, the Lazio Regional Administrative Court dismissed the appeal brought by Telecom ftaliag and Vivendi,
each of which filed an appeal with the italian Countil of State on July 16 and 17, 2019, respectively.

On September 28, 2017, the Presidency of the Council of Ministers declared that (i} the notification made by Vivendi under Article 1 of the
aforementioned legislative decree as a precautionary measure was made late and (ii) Telecom ltalia had not made a notification under
Article 1 of the decree following a change of contral over its assets that are of strategic importance in the fields of energy, transport and
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communicatians. Therefare, the Presidency of the Council of Ministers launched proceedings against Telecom ltalia for failing to make the
required notification under Article 2 of the same legislative decree. Vivendi and Telecom ltalia have appealed this finding.

Furthermore, by a decree dated Octaber 16, 2017, the Italian Government decided to exercise the special powers laid down in Asticle 1 of the
2012 legislative decree, relative to the defense and national security sectors. This decree imposes a number of organizational and
governance measures on Vivendi and Telecom Italia and its twa subsidiaries, Telecom Itafia Sparkle Spa ("Sparkle”} and Telsy Elettronica e
Telecamunicazioni Spa (" Telsy”). In particular, Telecom ltalia, Sparkle and Telsy must have a division in tharge of supervising all activities
related to defense and national security, which is fully autonomous and endowed with human and financial resources sufficient to guaraniee
its independence, and to appoint to their gaverning bodies a member who is an Italian citizen, who is approved by the ltalian Government
and who has security clearance. it also requires the establishment of a supervisory committee under the auspices of the Council of Ministers
(Comitato df monitoraggio) to maonitor compliance with these obligations. On February 13, 2018, Vivendi and Telecom ltalia filed an appeal
against this decree with the Italian Presidency of the Council of Ministers. This appeal was dismissed on November 13, 2019

In addition, by a decree dated November 2, 2017, the Italian Government decided to implement the special powers conferred by Article 2 of
the 2012 legislative decree, relative 1o the fields of energy, transpart and communications, This decree imposes on Telecom Italia the
obligation to imptement development, investment and maintenance plans for its networks to quarantee their operatian and security, to
provide universal service, and, more generally, to satisfy public interest in the medium and long term, under the control of the Comitato di
monitoraggio, who must be notified of any reorganization of the Telecom italia group’s holdings or any project having an impact on the
security, availability and operation of the networks. On March 2, 2018, Vivendi and Telecom [talia filed an appeal against this decree with
the ltahan Presidency of the Council of Ministers.

Finally, by a decree dated May 8, 2018, the Italian Government imposed an administrative fine of €74 million on Telecom ltalia for failure 10
comply with its information obligations (failure ta notify under Article 2 of Law Decree No. 21 of March 15, 2012, see ahove). On July 5,
2018, the Regional Administrative Court of Lazio suspended the enforcement of such fine.

Etisalat against Vivendi

On May 12, 2017, Etisalat and EINA filed a request for arhitration before the International Court of Arbitration of the International Chamber
of Cornmerce pursuant to the terms of the agreement for the sale of SPT/Maroc Telecom entered into an November 4, 2013, the closing of
which took place on May 14, 2014, This request cancerned several claims in respect of representations and warranties made by Vivendi and
SFR in connection with the sale agreement. On January 3, 2019, the Arbitral Tribunal rendered its decision, rejecting Etisalat's claim far
compensation in its entirety.

Parabole Réunion

fn July 2007, Parabole Réunion filed a legal action before the Paris Tribunal of First instance following the termination of its rights to
exclusively distribute the TPS channels in Reunion lsland, Mayotte, Madagascar and Mauritius, and the degradation of the channels made
available to it. Pursuant to a decision dated September 18, 2007, Canal+ Group was prohibited, under threat of a fine, from allowing the
broadcast by third parties of these channels {or replacement channels that have substituted these channels} and was ordered to replace the
TPS Foot channel in the event it was dropped. Canal+ Group appealsd this decision. In a ruling datad June 19, 2008, the Paris Court af
Appeal partially reversed the judgment and stated that these replacement channels were not to be granted exclusively if the channels were
made available to third parties prior to the merger with TPS. Parabole Réunion was unsuccessful in its claims concerning the content of the
channels in question. On November 10, 2009, the French Supreme Court dismissed the appeal brought by Parabole Réunion.

On September 24, 2012, Parabole Réunion filed a claim against Canal+ France, Canal+ Group and Canal+ Distribution before the enforcement
magistrate of the Court of First Instance of Nanterre seeking enforcement of the fine imposed by the Paris Tribunal of First Instance and
confirmed by the Court of Appeal. On November 6, 2012, Parabole Réunion expanded its claim to cover the TPS Star, Cinecinema Classic,
Cult and Star channels. On April 9, 2013, the enforcement magistrate dismissed in part Parabole Réunion’s claim and declared the rest
inadmissible. He noted that Canai+ Group had no legal obligation with respect ta the content or the maintaining of programming on channels
made available to Parabole Réunion and held, after noting that production of the TPS Foot channel had nat stopped, that there was no need
1o replace this channel. Parabole Réunion filed a first appeal against this decision on April 11, 2013, On May 22, 2014, the Versailles Court of
Appeal declared this appeal inadmissible due ta Parabole Réunion’s lack of representative capacity. On February 14, 2014, Parabole Réunion
filed an appeal on points of law and filed a second appeal against the April 9, 2013 decision. On April 9, 2015, tha French Supreme Court
overturned the May 22, 2014 decision of the Versailles Court of Appeal in which the appeal filed by Parabole Réunion on April 11, 2013 was
declared inadiissible. The case was remanded to the Paris Court of Appeal which, an May 12, 2016, upheld the decision of the Court of First
instance and dismissed alf of Parabole Réunion’s claims. In a decision issued on September 28, 2017, the French Supreme Court dismissed
Parabole Réunion's appeal against the decision of the Court of Appeal of Paris.

At the same time, on August 11, 2009, Parabole Réunian filed a complaint against Canal+ Group before the Paris Tribunal of First Instance,
requesting that the Tribunal order Canal+ Group to make available a channel with a level of attractiveness similar to that of TPS Foot in 2006
and to pay damages. On April 26, 2012, Parabole Réunien also filed a complaint against Canal+ France, Canal+ Group and Canal+ Distribution
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befora the Paris Tribunal of First Instance requesting the Tribunal to acknowledge the failure of the companies of the group to fulfill their
contractual obligations to Parabole Réunion and their commitments to the Ministry of Economy. These two actions have been consolidated
into a single action. On April 29, 2014, the Paris Tribuna! of First Instance partially recognized the admissibility of Parabole Réunion’s claim
with respect to the period following June 19, 2008 and recognized the contractual liability of Canal+ Group due to the degradation of the
guality of channels made available to Parabole Réunion. The Tribunal also ordered an expert report on the damages suffered by Parabole
Réunian, rejecting the assessment produced by the latter. On June 3, 20186, the Paris Court of Appeal upheld the April 29, 2014 decision of
the Paris Tribunal of First Instance, Canal+ Group filed an appeal against this decision to the French Supreme Court, which was dismissed on
January 31, 2018.

In an order issued on October 25, 2016, the Pre-Trial Judge held that the April 29, 2014 decision in which Canal+ Group was ordered to
compensate Parabole Réunion established in principle a debt of the latter, even if the assessment of its amount was still to be finalized. The
Judge ordered Canal+ Group to pay the sum af €4 million as an advance. On January 17, 2017, the Paris Tribunal of First Instance ordered
Canal+ Group to pay the sum of £37,720,000, with provisional enforceahility. On February 23, 2017, Parabole Réunion appealed against that
decision to the Paris Court of Appeal. On July 20, 2017, Canal+ Group filed its response to the appeal and a cross-appeal. Due to the failure
of Parabole Réunion group to file its respanse within the time period prescribed by law, on December 8, 2017, Canal+ Group filed a mation
raising the failure to meet such deadline and, consequently, seeking an invalidation of the expertise ordered on October 12, 2017 (see
below). On June 7, 2018, the Pre-Trial Judge of the Paris Court of Appeal issued an order, dismissing the request for the invalidation of the
expertise underway. Canal+ Group lodged & petition for review against this order, which it withdrew in October 2018, noting the progress of
the expertise.

On May 29, 2017, Parabole Réunion raised an incidental question in order to have the court appeint an additional expert to assess the loss in
value of its business. On Octaber 12, 2017, the Pre-Trial Judge of the Parig Court of Appeal granted this request and a judicial expert was
appointed. On December 17, 2018, Parabale Réunion raised a new incidental question before the Pre-Trial Judge of the Paris Court of Appeal
in order to have the court clarify the mission of the judicial expert who had halted his work. In an order issued on April 4, 2019, the Pre-Trial
Magistrate of the Paris Court of Appeal decided that the judicial expert would formulate a hypothetical estimate of damages for the loss in
value of the business based on the number cf subscribers proposed by Parabale Réunion {i.e., 40,000}, with the judicial expert specifying, if
appropriate, whether the loss in value of the business resulted from the 40,000 lost and/or missed subscribers attributeble to Canal+ Group.
However, the Pre-Trial Magistrate (i} rejected Parabole Réunion's request to include in the judicial expert's additional work the assumption
that the 40,000 subscribers referred to above had generated a certain EBIT margin and (ii) ordered Parabele Réunion to bear the costs of the
incidental procedure. The judicial expert resumed his work in mid-April 2019, which is still ongoing.

Canal+ Group against TF1, M6 and France Télévision

0n December 9, 2013, Canak+ Group filed a complaint with the French Competition Authority against the practices of the TF1, M6 and France
Télvision groups in the French-language film market. Canal+ Group claims that the defendants added certain pre-emption rights to co-
production contracts aimed at restricting competition. On February 23, 2018, the French Competition Authority served a notification of
grievances on France Télévision, TF1 and M6. On February 13, 2019, the case was reviewed by the French Competition Authority, which, on
May 25, 2019, rendered a decision dismissing the case. On July 2. 2019, Canal+ Group appealed against this decision.

TF1 and M6 agreements

On September 30, 2017, Canal+ Group filed summary requests before the French Council of State (Conseil d'Etad) seeking an annulment of
the decisions of the French Broadcasting Authority (Conseil Supérieur de FAudiovisuel) (the “"CSA”) of July 20 and 27, 2017 relating to the
TF1 and MB channels, respectively, These decisions renew the autharizations for the terrestrial transmission of TF1 and MG, in the contaxt of
the requests of the twa grougs to obtain compensation for the distribution of their free-to-air OTT channels, including their eponymous TF1
and M6 channels. On November 26, 2018, after reaching an agreement with TF1, Canal+ Group withdrew from the proceedings against TF1.
On July 22, 2019, Canal+ Group subsequently withdrew from the proceedings against M6,

Aston France and Strong against Canal+ Group

On September 25. 2014, Aston notified the French Competition Authority about Canal+ Group’s decision to stop selling its satellite
subscription called “cards only” {enabling the reception of Canal+/Canalsat pragrams on Canal Ready-labeled satellite set-top boxes,
manufactured and distributed by third parties, including Aston}. In parallel. on September 30, 2014, Astan filed a request for injunctive relief
against Canal+ Group before the Commercial Caurt of Paris, seeking a stay of the decision of the Canal+ Group to terminate the Canal Ready
partnership agreement and thus stop the marketing of satellite subscriptions called “cards only”. On October 17, 2014, the Paris Commercial
Court issued an arder denying Aston’s requests. On November 4, 2014, Aston appealed this decision and, ¢n January 15, 2015, the Paris
Court of Appeal, ruling i chambers, granted its requests and suspended the decision of Canal+ Group to stop selling its "cards only”
subscriptions until the French Competition Authority rendered its decision on the merits of the case. On March 21, 218, Canal+ Group
received the French Competition Authority’s preliminary assessment setting out its competition concerns and submitted to the French
Competition Authority a propasal for commitments. On July 24, 2018, the French Competition Authority, considering that the commitments,
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in force until December 31, 2021, met hath the need to combat piracy and maintain an alternative offer of set-top boxes to the ones leased
by Canal+ Group, decided to make them compulsory and closed the proceedings.

{n addition, on January 18, 2019, another company, Strong, filed an application with the Paris Commercial Court for injunctive relief
requesting the Court to order the suspension of Canal+ Group's decision to stop marketing subscriptions on Canal Ready-labeled sateflite
set-tap boxes follawing the above-mentioned decision of the French Competition Authority. Aston, which had not contested the
commitments made by Canal+ Group to the French Competition Authority, voluntarily intervened in this injunctive relief praceeding. On
February 22, 2019, the Paris Commercial Court dismissed Strong's and Aston's claims and ardered them, jointly and severally, to pay Canal+
Group €20,6060.

Touche Pas a Mon Poste

On June 7, 2017, the French Broadcasting Authority (Consei! Supérieur de I'Audiovisuel) (the “CSA™) decided to sanction C8 for a sequence
broadcast on the show “TPMP” on December 7, 2016. The CSA considered that this sequence in which the presenter of the show, Cyril
Hanouna, and one of its columnists, Capucing Anav, are seen engaging in a game on set during an "off" sequence, undermined the image of
women. The sanction consisted of the suspension of advertising broadcasts during the show, “Touche Pas & Mon Poste™ and its
rebroadcasts, as well as well during the 15 minutes before and the 15 minutes after its broadcast, for a period of two weeks from the second
Monday following notification of the decision.

On the same date. the CSA sanctionaed C8 far anather sequence broadcast on the show "TPMP! La grande Rassrah™ on Navember 3, 2016.
The CSA considered that this new sequence, the filming by hidden camera of Matthieu Delormeau. a columnist for the show, viclated his
dignity. This sanction consisted of the suspension of advertising breadcasts during the show, “Touche Pas & Mon Poste” and its
rebroadcasts, as well as during the 15 minutes befare and the 15 minutes after its broadcast, for a period of one week.

On July 3, 2017, following the two decisions of the CSA, C8 filed two actions for annulment with the French Council of State {Conseif d'ttad).
On July 4, 2017, €8 filed two claims for compensation with the CSA, which were rejected by implied decision. On November 2. 2017, C8
appealed against each of these to the Council of State. On June 18, 2018, the Council of State dismissed C8's action for annulment of the
CSA's first decision, but granted the second application, overturning the CSA's second decision. The Council of State’s decision to dismiss
C8's action for annulment of the CSA's first decision is the subject of an appeal pending betore the European Court of Human Righis, filed in
December 2018.  On November 13, 2019, the Council of State rejected the first claim for compensation but upheld the second, ordering the
CSA to pay €1.1 million to €8 in compensation for the loss of a week's worth of advertising on its airwaves.

On July 26, 2017. the CSA decided to sanction C8 for a sequence broadcast on the show "TPMP Baba hot ling" on May 18, 2017, considering
Lhat the channel violated the prinriple of respect for privacy and its obligation to combat discrimination, and imposed a monetary fine of
€3 million. Following this decision, on September 22, 2017, C8 filed an action tor annubment beluie the Council of State, which was
dismissed on June 18, 2018, This decision is the subject of an appeal pending before the European Court of Human Rights, filed in Decembar
2018. In addition, C8 filed a claim for compensation with the CSA, whose implicit rejection of it was challenged before the Council of State
on January 25, 2018. On September 7, 2018, C8 withdrew its claim for compensation,

In connection with the same case, on February 18, 2019, Canal+ Group sent a letter to the CSA requesting the cancellation of the
aforementioned €3 million fing in light of the November 2018 statements made by a representative of the French association, Le Refuge,
explaining that it had not received a complaint from an alleged victim of the hoax, contrary to its initial statements. On April 5, 2019, this
request was rejected. An appeal against this decision was filed with the Council of State an June 5, 2019.

In addition, on November 28, 2018, an Independent Rapporteur, upon referral by the Managing Director of the CSA, commenced sanction
proceedings against €8 and served a notification of grievances on C8. The facts that may lead to a sanction relate to a sequence on the
September 12, 2018 TPMP show during which Cyri) Hanouna made remarks that could be considered as insulting against two executives of
the TF1 channel. Dn April 24, 2019, the CSA decided not 1o sanction C8.

Finaliy, on June 4, 2019, the CSA's independent Rapporteur commenced sanction proceedings against C8 and served it with a notification of
grievances. The facts that may lead 1o a sanction relate to a sequence from the October 31, 2018 TPMP show during which old nude photos
of a TF1 host were shown aon the air. On December 18, 2019, the CSA imposed a fine of £10,000 on €8.

Rovi Guides, Inc. against Canal + Group

Rovi Guides filed a request for mediation before the International Chamber of Commerce for the breach by Canal+ Group of an electronic
program guide Yicense agreement entered into in 2008 and for the non-payment of royalties related therete between January 1, 2016 and
June 30, 2017.

The mediation terminated without an agreement and Rovi Guides filed a request for arbitration on June 1, 2018. A decision is expected in
the first half of 2020.
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Harry Shearer and Century of Progress Productions against Studiocanal, Universal Music Group and Vivendi

A complaint was filed in California federal court against Studiocanal and Vivendi by Harry Shearer, through his company Century of Progress
Productions, in his capacity as a creator, actor and composer of the film “This Is Spinal Tap”, an American film produced and financed in
1984 by Embassy Pictures (Studiacanal is the successor to Embassy’s rightsl. Mr. Shearer is seeking damages for breach of contractual
abligations to provide operating accounts, fraud, and failure to use the film's trademark, and is also seeking attribution of the trademark. On
February 8, 2017, four new plaintiffs, co-creators of the film, joined the proceedings. On February 28, 2017, in response to the complaint, the
defendants filed a motion ta dismiss, in which they asked the Court to declare the claims of the new plaintiffs to be inadmissible and to deny
the claim for fraud. On September 28, 2017, the Court issued its decision. With respect to inadmissibility, it dismissed the claims of three of
the four co-creators as well as the fraud claim but gave permission to the plaintiffs to file amended complaints in their individual capacities
as well as to supplement their fraud claim. On October 19, 2017, a new complaint (the "Second Amended Complaint”) was filed, which
reintraduced the claims of three plaintiffs previously found to be inadmissible and added Universal Music Group {UMG]) as a plaintiff. On
December 21, 2017, UMG and Studiocanal each filed a motion to dismiss in response. By decision of August 28, 2018, the Court denied
Studiocanal's motion to dismiss the plaintiffs' fraud claim. While the Court did not recognize the existence of fraud, it left open the
possihility for the plaintifs to prove it in the subsequent proceedings on the merits and granted some of UMG's mations but with |eave for
the plaintiffs to file an amended complaint with respect to these claims. The Court also denied UMG's motion to dismiss the plaintiffs’
application for declaratory relief to terminate and recover fram UMG the copyrights in the sound recerdings from the mation picture in the
United States. On September 18, 2018, the plaintiffs filed their new complaint {the "Third Amended Complaint”). In parallel, the parties
decided to enter into a first round of madiation which did not result in a settlement in the case of Studiocanal and Vivendi. However, the
plaintiffs and Studiocanal have agreed to begin an audit of the operating accounts sent to the plaintiffs to determine whether they contain
any accounting irregularities. On October 24, 2019, UMG and the plaintiffs entered into an agreement under which the film's soundtrack will
continue to be distributed by UMG, and payment of alf royalties will be made exclusively and directly to the plaintiffs by UMG, which is no
longer a party to the proceeding. Although negotiations are continuing between Studiocanal and the plaintiffs, the proceedings on the merits
have resumed. Following a hearing on January 74, 2020, the Court imposed mediation on the parties. A meeting between the parties will be
held on March 18, 2020.

Maitena Biraben against Canal+

Maitera Biraken challenged her termination by Canal+ for gross misconduct before the French Labar Court {Lonseils de Frutd'hommes). On
September Z7, 2018, the French Labor Court rendered its decision, finding that Ms. Biraben’s termination was without justified cause. The
Court ordered Canal+ ta pay total amount of €3,246,456, representing €38,456 in backpay and paid leave, €148,000 in severance pay,
£510,000 in damages and £€2,550,000 in termination compensation. Canal+ appealed against this judgment.

Investigation by the Departmental Directorate for the Protection of Populations in the Hauts de Seine

On April 20, 2018, the Departmental Directorate far the Protection of the Populations of the Hauts de Seine { Jirection Départementale de /a
Protection das Populations des Hauts de Seine) (DDPPI2) ordered Canal+ Group to stop positioning enriched offers to its subscribers during
the term of their contract, a practice which the Court described as selling without prior order. On June 19, 2018, Canal+ Group filed a notice
of appeat with the French Minister of the Economy, which was rejected on August 9, 2018. On October 5, 2018, Canal+ Group filed an appeal
with the Administrative Court of Cergy-Pontoise.

In parallel, the DDPP92 infarmed Canal+ Group that it had referred the case to the Public Prosecutor's Office of Nanterre and, in relation to
this. sent it a note stating that it considered that Canal+ Group had committed the offense of the forced sale of services, punishable under
the provisions of the French Consumer Code {Code de fa consommatin). The inter partes procedure is ongoing.

Canal+ Group against the French Professional Football League

On July 4, 2019, following the cancellation between Decernber 2018 and April 2019 of a number of Ligue 1 matches due to the "Yellow Vest"
protests in France with their postponement having been decided by the French Professional Football League (Ligue de Footbal! Frofessionnef
{LFP) unilaterally, Canal+ Group filed a complaint against the LFP seeking damages for the loss suffered as a result of these postponements.
Canal+ Group considers that, having acguired, at the time of the call for tenders for the periods 2016/2017 to 2019/2020. the broadcasting
rights to matches and magazines for the identified time slots, the LFP breached the terms of the call for tenders. Canal+ Group is seeking
£46 millian in damages. During a hearing held on November 25, 2019, the LFP requested the dismissal of Canal+ Group's cleims and raised a
counterclaim requesting that the Canal+ Group be ordered to pay damages for the prejudice allegedly caused to it by the publicity
surrounding these proceedings.

Proceedings before the Bohigny Labor Court
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Several employees of the Canal+ Group telephone call center located in Saint-Denis brought an action against Canals Group before the
Bohigny Labar Court seeking the annuiment of their dismissal on the grounds that the job pratection plan implemented in the call center is
discriminatory.

Thierry Ardisson, Ardis, Télé Paris against C8 and SECP

On September 24, 2019, fallowing the non-renewal of the television programs “les Terriens du samed” and "les Terriens du Dimanche”,
Thiesry Ardisson, Ardis and Télé Paris brought an action against C& and SECP before the Paris Commercial Coust for the termination of
cormmercial relations withaut prior notice. The plaintiffs, claiming a situation of economic dependence, sought an award Jn solidum against
(8 and SECP to pay damages to Ardis in the amount of €5,821,680, Télé Paris in the amount of £3,611,429, and Thierry Ardissan in the
amount of €1 million. On January 21, 2020, the Court issued a judgment ordeting C8 to pay €811,500 to Ardis and €269,333 to Télé Paris.
Thierry Ardisson's claim was dismissed and SECP was acquitied.

Canal+ Group against Technicalor

On September 2, 2019, Canal+ Group filed a complaint before the Paris Commercial Court against Technicelor for breach of its contractua)
commitments, fn its compiaint, Canal+ Group alleged that Technicoler failed to deliver the G9 and G3 fight set-top hoxes in accordance with
the manufacturing and delivery agreements entered into between the two companies. Canal+ Group is seeking reimbursement of additional
costs incurred, alternative transportation costs, late payment penalties and the payment of damages. On October 9, 2019, Technicolor filed a
complaint against Canal+ Group, Canal+ Reunion, Canal+ Antilles and Canal+ Caledonia before the Nanterre Commercial Court.

Canal+ Group against Pace

On November 14, 2015, Canal+ Group filed a complaint before the Paris Commercial Court against Pace, a supplier of G5 satetlite and OTT
set-top hoxes, alleging that a number of malfunctions and defects in the G5 decoders prevent it from offering them to its customers.

Aspire against Cash Money Records and UMG

On April 7, 2017, Aspire Music Group filed a complaint with the New York State Supreme Court against Cash Money Records alleging breach
of contract and non-payment of profits from Drake's first six albums. Following unsuccessful negotiations, the plaintiff amended its
complaint to add UMG as a defendant on Aprit 12, 2018, UMG filed a motion to dismiss on the grounds that it lacks privity with Aspire and is
not fiable far Cash Maney’s contractual obligations to Aspire. The Court denied UMG’s motion to dismiss, and UMG appeaied that decision.
On February 7, 2019, the Appellate Division granted UMG's appeal. On July 17, 2018, the parties entered into a settlement agreement
putting an end to this dispute.

Soundgarden, Hole, Steve Earle and the estates of Tom Petty and Tupac Shakur against UMG

On June 21, 2019, the groups Soundgarden and Hole, Steve Earle, Tom Petty's ex-wife and Tupac Shakur's estate filed a class action lawsuit
against UMG in the Central District Court of California refating to a 2008 fire that allegedly destroyed thousands of archived recordings.

The plaintifts allege that UMG breached the terms of the contracts with the artists by failing to adequately protect the recordings. It is alsa
argued that the Group should have shared the settlement proceeds received as a resuft of its negotiations with the insurance companies and
NBC Universal. On July 17, 2019, UMG filed a motion to dismiss the lawsuit. On August 18, 2019, the plaintiffs filed an amended complaint
removing Hole as a plaintiff, and adding a number of claims. On September 6, 2019, UMG filed a new motion to dismiss.

Jehn Waite and Joe Ely against UMG Recordings, Inc.

On February 5, 2019, a class action lawsuit was filed against UMG Recordings, Inc. on behalf of a putative class of all recording artists who
had requested the termination of their contracts with UMG pursuant to Section 203 of the Copyright Act which allows, under certain
conditions, a creator who has contractually transferred the rights to his or her work to a third party to terminate such contract after 35 years,
The complaint seeks to have the Court recognize the termination of the contracis of the artists involved in the litigation and also alleges
copyright infringement, as UMG continued to use the recordings after the puiported end date of the contract. On May 3, 2019, UMG
Recardings filed a motion to dismiss. On June 15, 2019, the plaintiffs filed a First Amended Complaint adding artists Syd Straw, Kasim
Suiton and The Dickies as additional plaintiffs. On June 26, 2019, UMG Recordings, Inc. filed a new motion to dismiss.

UMG Recordings, Inc. and Universal Music Publishing Group {along with the other major Jabels and publishers) against Cox
Communicatians, Inc. and CexCom LLG

On July 31, 2018, a complaint for copyright infriingement was filed by UMG Recordings, Inc. and Universal Music Publishing Group {along
with the other major labels and pubtishers including Sony and Warner} against Cox Communications, an Internet access and service provider,
and its parent company CoxCom, for knowingly inducing and supporting copyright infringement by its customers, contrary to the provisions of
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the Digital Millennium Copyright Act (DMCA}, which requires an Internet service provider ta implement a termination palicy against its
repeat infringing customers. At the end of the trial, which took place in December 2019, the jury awarded the plaintiffs $1 billion in damages.

Investigation hy U.S. federal prosecutors into business practices in the advertising industry

On June 11, 2018, Havas received a subpoena for documents relating to ane of its Spanish subsidiaries, Havas Media Alliance WWSL. These
documents have been provided to the refevant US authorities. This request by the federal prosecutors appears to relate to business practices
involving discounts and rebates. At this stage, Havas is not a party to any proceedings and is nat being interviewed.

Investigation into the services provided by Havas Paris to Business France

On February 7, 2018, Havas Paris, a subsidiary of Havas SA, was indicted for having benefited from favoritism in an amount of £379,319. This
indictment was hrought in the context of a judicial investigation opened by the Paris Public Prosecutor's Office for the offence of favoritism
allegedly committed by Business France when it organized a communication event which it entrusted to Havas Paris. Havas Paris denies the
claims against it and has appealed against this decision.

Glass Egg vs. Gameloft Inc., Gameloft SE, Gameloft Iberica and Vivendi

On August 23, 2017, Glass Egg, a company specializing in the design of 3D cars for use in video games, sued Gameloft Inc., Gameloft SE,
Gameloft {berica and Vivendi in the U.S. District Court for the Northern District of California. It is seeking damages for copyright
infringement, unfair competition and misappropriation of trade secrets. The Court allowed the plaintiff to amend its initial complaint three
times. On September 17, 2018, Gameloft Inc. responded to Glass Egy's fourth amended complaint, denying all its claims. Discovery is
oangoing. In addition, in an order dated February 12, 2018, the Court determined that it had no jurisdiction over Gameloft |berica and Vivendi
SA. The admissibility of the complaint against Gameloft SE remains challenged and the Court has ordered limited discovery to determing
whether it has jurisdiction.

Swiss Competition Commission against Interforum Suisse

On March 13, 2008, following a complaint lodged by local booksellers, the Secretariat of the Swiss Competition Commission {COMCDO)
opened an investigation into distributors of Franch-language books operating in Switzerland, including Interforum Suisse.

On May 27, 2013, COMCO imposed a fine of CHF 3,792,720 on Interforum Suisse, cansidering that Interforum Suisse was a party to unlawful
market-partitioning agreements. On July 12, 2013, Interforum Suisse filed an appeal with the Swiss Federal Administrative Court {TAF)
challenging this decision.

On October 30, 2019, the appeal was dismissed and the amount of the fine imposed by the COMCO was confirmed. On January 13, 2020,
Interforum Suisse filed an appeal before the Swiss Federal Supreme Court and requested a suspension of the provisional enforcement of the
TAF's decision, which it was granted on January 31, 2020.

Reti Televisive ltaliane (RTI) against Dailymotion

Since 2012, several legal actions have been filed by RTl, a subsidiary of Mediaset, against Dailymotion before the Civil Court of Rome.
Similar to claims it has made against other majer online video platforms, RTI is seeking damages for infringement of its neighboring rights
{audiovisual production and broadcasting rights} and unfair competition as well as the removal of the contested content from the Dailymation
platfarm. In one of these cases, on July 15, 2019, following a complaint filed on April 12, 2012, the Civil Court of Rome ordered Dailymotion
to pay €5.5million in damages to RTI and to remove the videos in guestion under penalty of fine. On September 11, 2019, Dailymation
appealed the decision to the Rome Court of Appeal and filad an application for a suspension of the provisional execution of the decision,
which was granted on October 31, 2019.
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Note 25 Major consolidated entities or entities accounted for under the equity method

As of December 31, 2019, approximately 1,185 entities were consolidated or accounted for under the eguity method {compared to
approximately 1,140 entities as of Decernber 31, 2018).

December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
Country Accounting Voting  Ownership  Accounting Voting  Ownership
Method  Interest Intgrest Method  Interest Interest
Vivendi 5.A. France Parent company Parent company
Universal Music Group, lac. United States c 100% 100% ¢ 100% 100%
Universal Music Group Holdings, Inc. United States C 100% 100% C 106% 100%
UMG Recordings, Inc. United States C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Vevo United States £ 49.4% 49.4% E 49.4% 49.4%
Universal Music Group S.A.S. France £ 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Universal Internationai Music B.V. Netherlands C 100% 7106% C 100% i00%
Universal Music Entertainment GmbH Gerrnany C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Universal Music 11C Japan C 100% 160% C 100% 100%
Universal Music France S.AS. France C 100% 100% c 100% 100%
Universat Music Holdings Ltd. United Kingdom ¢ 100% 160% C 100% 106%
EMI Group Werldwide Holding Ltd. United Kingdom C 100% 160% C 100% 100%
Universal Music Group Treasury S.AS. France C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Groupe Canal+ S.A. France c 100% 100% c 100% 100%
Société d'Edition de Canal Plus France C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Multithématiques S.A.S. France C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Canal+ International S.AS. France C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
£8 France C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Studiocanal S.A. France C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
M7 {a} Luxembourg C 100% 100% - - -
IT Neovision Poland C 5% 51% C 51% 51%
VSTV [b) Vietnam C 49% 49% C A9% 49%
Havas S.A. France H 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Havas [lealth, Inc United States C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Havas Media Group USA, LLC United States C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Havas Worldwide New York, Inc, United States C 100% 160% [ 100% 100%
BETC France C 100% 100% C 160% 100%
Havas Edge, LLC United States C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Havas Paris France C 99% 99% c 99% 39%
Arnold Worlgwide, LLC United States C 100% 100% c 100% 100%
Havas Media France France C 100% 100% C 130% 100%
Creative Lynx L1d. United Kingdom C 100% 78% C 100% 78%
Havas Media Ltd. United Kingdom C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
BETC Digital France C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Editis - Antinéa 6 S.A. {c) France [ 100% 100% - - -
Editis Holding S.A. France C 100% 100% -
Editis S.AS. France C 100% 100% -
SEJER France C 100% 100%
Interforum France ¢ 100% 100% -
Edi 8 fFrance G 100% 100% -
Univers Poche France C 100% 100% - - -
Gameloft S.E. France c 100% 100% [ 100% 100%
Gameloft Inc. United States C 100% 100% % 100% 100%
Gameloft Inc. Oivertissement Canada # 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Gamelaft \herica S.A. 3pain G 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Gameloft Software Beijing Ltd. China C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Gamelaft S.de R.L de CV. Mexico G 100% 100% C 106% 100%
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December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
Country Accounting Voting  Ownership  Accounting Voting  Ownership
Methed Interest interest Method Interest Interest
Vivendi Village S.A.S. France C 100% 100% c 100% 100%
See Tickets (d} C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
L'Olympia France C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
CanalQlympia France C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Olympia Production France C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Festival Production France C 70% 70% c 70% 70%
Paddington and Company Ltd. United Kingdom C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
New Initiatives
Daitymation France C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Group Vivendi Africa France C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Vivendi Contant France C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Banijay Group Halding France E 31.4% 31.4% E 31.4% 31.4%
Corporate
Telecom ltalia ltalia E 2394% 17.15% = 23.94% 17.15%
Boulogre Studios France C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Peltel Investment Poland C 100% 100% C 100% 100%

C: consolidated; E: equity affiliates.
a.  Canal+ Group has fully consclidated M7 since September 12, 2019 (please refer to Note 2.3}

b, VSTV (Vietnam Satellite Digital Television Company Limited) is held at 49% by Canal+ Group and 51% by VTV {the Vietnamese public
television company). This company has been consolidated by Vivendi because Canal+ Group has both operational and financial control
over it pursuant to an overall delegation of power that was granted by the majority shareholder and under the company’s bylaws.

c.  Vivendi has fully consnlidated Editis since February 1, 2019 please refer to Note 2.2).

d. Includes See Tickets France (formerly Digitick), See Tickets UK, See Tickets US and See Tickets B.V. (formerly Paylogic, a ticketing and
technology company based in Amsterdam, acquired by Vivendi Village on April 16, 2018) and Starticket (a ticketing company based in
Switzerland, acquired by Vivendi Viliage on December 30, 2019).

Note26  Statutory auditors fees

Feas paid by Vivendi SA in 2019 and 2018 to its statutory auditors and members of the statutory auditor firms were as follows:

Deloitte et Associés Ernst & Young et Autres

Amount % Amount % Total

{in millions of euros) 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Statutory audit, certification, consolidated and individual financial statements audit

Issuer 0.6 056 6% 6% 07 0.7 3% 12% 1.3 13

Fully consolidated subsidiaries 8.8 9.0 87% 32% 42 3.7 76% 64% 13.0 12.7
Subtotal 9.4 9.6 93% 98% 49 44 89% 76% 14.3 140
Services other than certification of financial statemants as required by laws and regulations {a)

Issuer . - - - 0.1 0.1 2% 2% 0.1 0.1

Fully consolidated subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - -
Subtotal - - - - 0.1 01 2% 2% 0.1 0.1
Services other than certification of financial statements provided ugon the entity's request (a}

Issuer - 01 - 1% 0.3 - 5% - 03 0.1

Fully consolidated subsidiaries 0.7 0.1 7% 1% 02 1.3 4% 22% 0.9 1.4
Subtotal 0.7 02 7% 2% 0.5 13 8% 22% 1.2 15
Total 10.1 9.8 100% 100% 5.5 58 100% 108% 15.6 15.6

a. Includes services required by law and regulation (e.g.. reports on capital transactions, comfort letters, validation of the consolidate
statement of extra-financial performance) as well as services provided upan reguest of Vivendi or its subsidiaries {due diligence, le
and tax assistance, various reports}.
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Note27  Audit exemptions

Vivendi S.A. has provided guaraniees to the following subsidiaries, incorparated in England and Wales, under the registered number
indicated, in order for them to claim audit exemptions, with respect 1o fiscal year 2019, under section 4794 of the UK Companies Act 2006.

Company Company
Name Number Name Number
E.M.. Overseas Holdings Ltd, 00403200 Universal/Anxious Music Ltd. 01862328
EM! [IP} Ltd, 03984464 Universal Music {UK) Holdings Ltd. 3383881
EMIt Group {Newco) Ltd. (7800875 Universal Music Holdings {UK) Ltd. 00337803
EMI Group Electronics Ltd. 00461611 Universal Music Leisure Ltd. (3384487
EMI Group International Holdings Ltd. 01407770 Universal Music Publishing MGB Halding UK Ltd. 05092413
EMI Graup Worldwide 03158106 Universal SRG Group Ltd. 00284340
EMI Group Worldwide Holdings Ltd. 06226803 V2 Music Group Ltd. 03205625
EMI Lid. 00053317 Virgin Music Group 02259349
EtIt Recorded Music (Chile) Ltd. (07934340 Virgin Records Overseas Ltd. 00335444
Estupendo Records Ltd. 03278620 A Man about a Dog limited (08817956
Mawlaw 388 Ltd. 03590255 UTB evenis limited 10461061
Relentless 20606 Ltd. 03967906 AMAAD Haldings Limited 12003313
Trinifold Music Ltd. 01781138

In addition, Vivendi S.A. has provided guarantees to the following Universal Music Group subsidiaries, incorporated in the Netherlands,
under the registered number indicated, under section 403 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civi! Code. As the financial data of the companies is
consolidated within these financial statements, the Dutch entities are allowed to prepare abridged financial statements which are exempt
from publication and audit.

Company
Name Number
Universal internationat Music B.V. 31018439
Universal Music B.V. 31019600
Universal Music Publishing hnlernational B.V. 31037866
Universal Music Publishing B.V. 32101966
CMHLB.V, 32140273

Note28  Subsequent events

The significant event that occurred between the closing date as of December 31, 2019 and February 10, 2020 {the date of Vivendi's
Management Board meeting that approved the Consclidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2019) was as follows:

» on January 7, 2020, Vivend) was registered in its new form as a European Company. As from that date, its name is followed by the
words "Société Europdenne” or the ahbreviation “SE". Vivendi fs subject to the provisions of French commercial company law that
are applicable to it in France, including the Council Regulation EC No. 2157/2001 of October 8, 2001 on the statute for a European
company angd the French Commercial Code {Code de commerce).

763, 74
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